
           

CALENDAR FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
AND FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS, AGENCIES, AND AUTHORITIES GOVERNED BY THE BOARD

BOARD CHAMBERS ROOM 107, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 651 PINE STREET

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA 94553-1229

JOHN GIOIA, CHAIR, 1ST DISTRICT

CANDACE ANDERSEN, VICE CHAIR, 2ND DISTRICT

MARY N. PIEPHO, 3RD DISTRICT

KAREN MITCHOFF, 4TH DISTRICT

FEDERAL D. GLOVER, 5TH DISTRICT

DAVID J. TWA, CLERK OF THE BOARD AND COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, (925) 335-1900

PERSONS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD DURING PUBLIC COMMENT OR WITH RESPECT TO

AN ITEM THAT IS ON THE AGENDA, WILL BE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES.

The Board Chair may reduce the amount of time allotted per speaker at the beginning of each item or public comment period

depending on the number of speakers and the business of the day. 

Your patience is appreciated.

A lunch break or closed session may be called at the discretion of the Board Chair.

AGENDA

February 3, 2015

             

9:00 A.M. Convene, Call to Order and Opening Ceremonies

Inspirational Thought- "As one person I cannot change the world, but I can change the world of

one person." ~ Paul Shane Spear

 

CONSIDER CONSENT ITEMS (Items listed as C.1 through C.100 on the following agenda) –

Items are subject to removal from Consent Calendar by request of any Supervisor or on request

for discussion by a member of the public. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be

considered with the Discussion Items.
 

PRESENTATIONS (5 Minutes Each)
 

PR.1   PRESENTATION recognizing February 2014 as American Heart Month.

(William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director)

 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

D. 1 CONSIDER Consent Items previously removed.
 

D. 2 PUBLIC COMMENT (2 Minutes/Speaker)
 

D.3   CONTINUED hearing to consider the appeals of the County Planning



D.3   CONTINUED hearing to consider the appeals of the County Planning

Commission decision to approve the proposed Propane and Additional Butane

Recovery Project for Phillips 66 Rodeo Refinery in Rodeo; and to consider related

actions under the California Environmental Quality Act, County File

#LP12-2073. (Communities For A Better Environment and Shute, Mihaly, &

Weinberger, LLP, on behalf of the Rodeo Citizens Association, Appellants)

(Phillips 66 Company, Owners) (John Kopchik and Lashun Cross, Department of

Conservation and Development)
 

D.4   CONSIDER adoption of Resolution No. 2015/9 to implement Laura's Law and to

certify that no voluntary mental health program serving adults and no children's

mental health program will be reduced as a result of the expansion of Assisted

Outpatient Treatment in Contra Costa County. (William Walker, M.D., Health

Services Director)
 

D.5   CONSIDER approving and authorizing the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to

execute an agreement with Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) to establish a

framework for evaluating the removal of trees as part of PG&E’s Pipeline

Pathway Project, as recommended by the Public Works Director. (100% PG&E

funds) (Brian Balbas, Public Works Department)
 

D.6   CONSIDER adoption of Resolution No. 2015/38 to approve the extension of the

Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU United Healthcare Workers West, as

recommended by the County Administrator. (David Twa, County Administrator) 
 

D.7   CONSIDER approving County Administrator recommendation for appointment

to the position of Director of Conservation and Development-Exempt, effective

February 4, 2015. (David Twa, County Administrator)
 

D. 8 CONSIDER reports of Board members.
 

Closed Session

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

1. Agency Negotiators: David Twa and Bruce Heid.

Employee Organizations: Contra Costa County Employees’ Assn., Local No. 1; Am. Fed., State,

County, & Mun. Empl., Locals 512 and 2700; Calif. Nurses Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union,

Local1021; District Attorney’s Investigators Assn.; Deputy Sheriffs Assn.; United Prof.

Firefighters, Local 1230; Physicians’ & Dentists’ Org. of Contra Costa; Western Council of

Engineers; United Chief Officers Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union United Health Care Workers

West; Contra Costa County Defenders Assn.; Probation Peace Officers Assn. of Contra Costa

County; Contra Costa County Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn.; and Prof. & Tech. Engineers,

Local 21, AFL-CIO.



2. Agency Negotiators: David Twa.

Unrepresented Employees: All unrepresented employees.

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Title: County Administrator

 

ADJOURN in memory of 

Robert Anthony Dal Porto, Sr., Discovery Bay Resident

 

 

CONSENT ITEMS
 

Road and Transportation
 

C. 1   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/32 approving and authorizing the Public Works

Director, or designee, to partially close a portion of Parker Avenue between 1st

Street and 6th Street, on March 14, 2015 from 9:00 a.m. through 9:30 a.m., for

the purpose of the Annual Little League Opening Day Parade, Rodeo area. (No

fiscal impact)
 

C. 2   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract amendment with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc., effective January 6,

2015, to increase the payment limit by $51,000 to a new payment limit of

$337,000 for additional professional engineering services for the Marsh Creek

Road Bridge (Br. No. 28C-0141) Replacement Project, Clayton area. (89%

Federal Highway Safety Improvement Program Funds, 11% Local Road Funds)
 

Engineering Services

 

C. 3   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/39 accepting completion of improvements for

subdivision SD13-09303, for a project developed by Shapell Homes, a Division of

Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the Public

Works Director, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (100% Developer Fees)
 

C. 4   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/40 accepting completion of improvements for

subdivision SD13-09325, for a project developed by Shapell Homes, a Division of

Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the Public

Works Director, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (100% Developer Fees)
 

Claims, Collections & Litigation

 

C. 5   RECEIVE report concerning the final settlement of Kathryn Alexander vs.



C. 5   RECEIVE report concerning the final settlement of Kathryn Alexander vs.

County of Contra Costa; and AUTHORIZE payment from the Workers'

Compensation Internal Service Fund in an amount not to exceed $125,000, as

recommended by the Risk Manager. (100% Workers' Compensation Internal

Service Fund)
 

C. 6   DENY claims filed by Enterprise Rent-A-Car Claim No. 05824904, Allstate

Insurance as Subrogate of Tammy Sizemore, Roque Gonzalez and Livier Garcia,

Michael Walling, Bobbi Crew, CSAA NCNU LB, and Luis Duenas.
 

Honors & Proclamations

 

C. 7   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/30 recognizing Dianne Wilson as the 2015 Moraga

Business Person of the Year, as recommended by Supervisor Andersen.
 

C. 8   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/42 recognizing February as American Heart

Month, as recommended by the Health Services Director.
 

C. 9   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/43 recognizing Dick Burkhalter as the 2014 Orinda

Volunteer of the Year, as recommended by Supervisor Andersen.
 

Appointments & Resignations

 

C. 10   APPOINT Kathy Torru, Jeff Mini, Don Hoffman, Ray Brant and Vince Chow to

the Diablo Municipal Advisory Council to a term coterminous with the member's

term on the Diablo Community Services District Board of Directors, as

recommended by Supervisor Piepho.
 

C. 11   ACCEPT resignation of Nell Ryan, DECLARE a vacancy in Local Committee,

Danville-Alamo Seat on the Advisory Council on Aging, and DIRECT the Clerk

of the Board to post the vacancy, as recommended by the Employment and

Human Services Director.
 

C. 12   REAPPOINT Janet Smith, Ron Banducci, and Richard Rezek to the County

Service Area P-2A Citizen Advisory Committee, as recommended by Supervisor

Piepho.
 

C. 13   REAPPOINT Sharon Marsh to the Byron-Brentwood-Knightsen Union Cemetery

District, as recommended by Supervisor Piepho.
 

C. 14   REAPPOINT Bob Mankin and Gaylin Zeigler to the Discovery Bay P-6 Citizen

Advisory Committee, as recommended Supervisor Piepho.
 

C. 15   REAPPOINT Kathleen Gage to the Member-at-Large #3 seat and APPOINT



C. 15   REAPPOINT Kathleen Gage to the Member-at-Large #3 seat and APPOINT

Toya Thomas-Cruz to the Member-at-Large #2 seat on the Managed Care

Commission, as recommended by the Commission.
 

Appropriation Adjustments

 

C. 16   Contingency Reserve (0990): APPROVE Appropriation Adjustment No. 5031

transferring $1,002,805 in appropriations to Conservation and Development

(0280), District Attorney (0242), Health Services (0853), Human Resources

(0035), Public Defender (0243), Probation (0308), Employment & Human

Services (0501) for fiscal year 2014-15 Venture Capital Projects. (100% General

Fund)
 

C. 17   Employment and Human Services (0504) : APPROVE Appropriation and

Revenue Adjustment No. 5034 authorizing new revenue and expenses in the

amount of $2,114,080, for the California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to

Kids Expanded Subsidized Employment Program to reflect actual State

allocations. (100% State)
 

C. 18   Employment and Human Services (0504) : APPROVE Appropriation and

Revenue Adjustment No. 5035 in the amount of $1,085,850, for the California

Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids Housing Support Program to reflect

actual State allocations. (100% State)
 

C. 19   Employment and Human Services (0504): APPROVE Appropriation and

Revenue Adjustment No.5038 authorizing the decrease of revenue expenditures

by $256,207 in the CalWORKs Mental Health and Substance Abuse Program to

reflect actual 2014/2015 State allocations. (100% State)
 

Personnel Actions

 

C. 20   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21555 to add three Social Services

Program Assistant (represented) positions in the Employment and Human

Services Department. (45% Federal, 55% State)
 

C. 21   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21576 to reclassify one Information

System Administrator III (represented) position and its incumbent to Information

Systems Programmer Analyst III (represented) in the Department of Conservation

and Development. (100% Land development funds)
 

C. 22   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21605 to add one Pharmacist I

position (represented) in the Health Services Department. (100% CCHP

Enterprise Fund III)
 

C. 23   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21603 to add two Mental Health



C. 23   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21603 to add two Mental Health

Community Support Worker II positions (represented) and cancel Community

Health Worker II positions (represented) in the Health Services Department. (Cost

savings)
 

Leases 
 

C. 24   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a lease agreement with Balco Properties, LTD, LLC, for a twelve-year term for

approximately 16,709 square feet of office space located at 2600 Stanwell Drive,

Concord, as requested by the Employment and Human Services Department.

(80% Federal/State Funds, 20% General Fund)
 

Grants & Contracts
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreements between the County and the

following agencies for receipt of fund and/or services:

 

C. 25   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Probation Officer, or designee, to

apply for, accept and execute a grant contract with the California Board of State

and Community Corrections in an amount not to exceed $119,285 to continue

facilitation of Proud Parenting Programs for young fathers and mothers involved

in the criminal justice system for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016.

(90% State, 10% STAND! For Families Free of Domestic Violence)
 

C. 26   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Probation Officer, or designee, to

apply for and accept an Evidence-Based Practices Training Project grant in an

amount not to exceed $20,000 from the California Board of State and Community

Corrections to enhance evidence-based practices at John A. Davis Juvenile Hall,

for the period May 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. (90% State, 10% County

match)
 

C. 27   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the State of California, Emergency Medical Services

Authority, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $47,883 to provide

County’s EMS Federal Block Grant Support Quality Improvement Project, for the

period January 1 through September 30, 2015 (No County match)
 

C. 28   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with California Department of Community

Services and Development, including modified indemnification language, to pay

the County an amount not to exceed $40,000 to administer the Low Income Home

Weatherization Program for the period January 1, 2015 through January 31, 2017.

(No County match)
 

C. 29   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or



C. 29   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to apply for and accept grant funding from the Contra Costa County

Healthy and Active Before 5 Collaborative in an amount not to exceed $500 to

support the purchase of non-disposable dishes for use in Contra Costa County

Head Start Centers, thereby reducing the environmental impact of paper products,

for the period January 1 through June 30, 2015. (No County match)
 

C. 30   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with the Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking

of the Diocese of Stockton, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $28,000 to

provide food services to the childcare program at El Concilio Preschool for the

period February 1 through October 31, 2015. (No County match)
 

C. 31   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

contract with the California Department of Water Resources for a Flood

Emergency Project Grant in the amount of $570,000 for flood readiness planning,

for a period of three years from the date of execution of the contract. (100% State)
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreement between the County and the

following parties as noted for the purchase of equipment and/or services:

 

C. 32   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with Child Abuse Prevention Council

to decrease the payment limit by $40 to a new payment limit of $1,358,786 for

continued child abuse prevention services, for the period July 1, 2013 through

June 30, 2015. (66% State, 10% Federal, 24% County)
 

C. 33   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Public Works Director, a purchase order amendment with Walnut Creek Ford, to

increase the payment limit by $175,000 to a new payment limit of $600,000 and

extend the term from January 31, 2015 to January 31, 2016, for vehicle parts and

accessories, Countywide. (100% Fleet Internal Service Fund) 
 

C. 34   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Public Works Director, a purchase order amendment with Future Ford, to increase

the payment limit by $40,000 to a new payment limit of $120,000 and extend the

term from January 31, 2015 to January 31, 2016, for vehicle parts and

accessories, Countywide. (100% Internal Service Fund - Fleet)
 

C. 35   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract with Prime Mechanical Service, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$500,000 to provide heating, air conditioning and ventilation services for the

period December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2017, Countywide. (100%

General Fund)
 

C. 36   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 36   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited), in

an amount not to exceed $220,000 to provide temporary occupational, physical

and speech therapists, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians, medical social

workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications at Contra

Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period January 1 through

December 31, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I) 
 

C. 37   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with Aspiranet, to increase the

payment limit by $28,084 to a new payment limit of $228,084 for continued

receiving center services for children pending placement to protective custody,

with no change in the contract term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. (70%

State, 30% County)
 

C. 38   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with STAND! For Families Free of Violence, in an

amount not to exceed $108,072 to provide services for the Encourage Arrest

Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Project, for the period January 1

through December 31, 2015. (100% Federal)
 

C. 39   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with STAND! For Families Free of Violence, in

an amount not to exceed $507,529 to provide Phase II Lethality Assessment

Program Implementation for Domestic Violence Homicide Prevention for the

period December 5, 2014 through September 30, 2016. (100% Federal)
 

C. 40   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Regents of the University of California, on

behalf of its University of California, San Francisco School of Medicine,

effective November 5, 2014, to increase the payment limit by $70,000 to a new

payment limit of $105,000 to provide additional residency training program

services in family medicine at Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health

Centers, with no change in the original term of May 1, 2013 through June 30,

2016. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 41   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Risk Manager to execute a contract

with Contra Costa County Schools Insurance Group in an amount not to exceed

$198,500 to perform medical billing reviews for the period effective January 1

through December 31, 2015. (100% Workers' Compensation Internal Service

Fund)
 

C. 42   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

contract with Michael Baker International in an amount not to exceed $570,000

for flood safety services for the period February 1, 2015 through January 31,

2017. (100% State)
 



C. 43   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with Northwoods Consulting Partners,

Inc., in an amount not to exceed $1,089,814 for the continued license and support

of the document management software, and for software customization services

for the period February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2016. (10% County; 45%

State; 45% Federal)
 

C. 44   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Animal Services Department, a purchase order with Tri Star Vet in

an amount not to exceed $139,929 to procure specialized stainless steel stackable

rolling cat cages. (100% Donations)
 

C. 45   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Animal Services Department, a purchase order with La Boit

Specialty Vehicles in an amount not to exceed $170,000 to procure a mobile pet

adoption vehicle. (100% Donations)
 

C. 46   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Peyman Keyashian, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$400,000 to provide anesthesiology services at Contra Costa Regional Medical

and Health Centers for the period January 19, 2015 through January 31, 2016.

(100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 47   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Cypress Meadows of Antioch, LLC, in an amount not to

exceed $153,096 to provide residential board and care services for post medical,

surgical, and/or custodial care patients who have been discharged from Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center, for the period November 1, 2014, through

October 31, 2015. (100% County General Fund)
 

C. 48   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Clerk-Recorder, or designee, to execute a

contract amendment with AtPac, Inc., effective February 3, 2015, to increase the

payment limit by $17,644 to a new payment limit of $1,672,852 to provide access

to the Recorder's data system to 32 additional Assessor staff persons, with no

change to the original term. (100% Modernization Trust Fund)
 

C. 49   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Mental Health Management I, Inc. (dba Canyon Manor),

in an amount not to exceed $217,095 to provide mental health subacute care and

treatment services for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, with a

six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015 in an amount not to

exceed $108,548. (100% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 50   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on



C. 50   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on

behalf of the Probation Department, a purchase order with Bay Cities Produce

Co., Inc. in an amount not to exceed $150,000 to procure whole and processed

fresh fruits and vegetables for the Juvenile Hall and Orin Allen Youth

Rehabilitation Facility food programs, for the period January 1 through December

31, 2015. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 51   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Department, a purchase order amendment with Fisher Scientific,

Inc., to increase the payment limit by $150,000 to a new payment limit of

$450,000, for various clinical and pathology laboratory reagents, small

equipment, supplies and test kits for Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health

Centers, with no change in the original term from May 2, 2014 through April 30,

2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 52   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Department, a purchase order amendment with Abbott

Laboratories, Inc., to increase the payment limit by $40,000 for a new payment

limit of $120,000 for reagents and supplies needed for the IStat Handheld

Analyzer for Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers, with no change

in the original term of September 1, 2012 through August 31, 2015. (100%

Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 53   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of

Health Services Department, a purchase order amendment with Zebra

Technologies, to increase the payment limit by $140,000 to a new payment limit

of $540,000 to provide patient wrist bands and labeling at Contra Costa Regional

Medical Center, with no change in the original term of June 5, 2013 through June

4, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 54   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Department, a purchase order with Biomerieux, Inc., in the

amount of $135,000 for reagents and supplies for the Pathology and Clinical

Laboratory at the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center, for the period January 1

through December 31, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 55   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Department, a purchase order with Beckman Coulter, Inc. in the

amount of $280,000 for reagents and supplies needed to conduct urinalysis testing

on patients seen at the Contra Costa Regional Medical and Health Centers for the

period February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2021. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 56   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of

Health Services Department, a purchase order with American Medical Systems,

Inc., in the amount of $250,000 for supplies and implants for the gynecological

and urological surgery units at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center, for the

period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. (100% Enterprise Fund I)



 

C. 57   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Health Services Department, a purchase order with Sanofi Pasteur, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $150,000 for vaccines and injectable medications at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers, for the period

January 1 through December 31, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 58   RATIFY the County Clerk-Recorder’s, or designee’s, execution of a contract

amendment with Election Systems & Software, LLC, which increased the

payment limit by $532,964 to a new payment limit of $1,583,223 and extended

the term from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2016, for continued hardware

and software maintenance services and support. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 59   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Greater Richmond Inter-Faith Program,

effective January 1, 2015, to increase the payment limit by $36,477 to a new

payment limit of $373,865 to provide additional consultation and technical

assistance on infectious disease to Health Services Department’s Clinic Service,

School-based Health Centers program, with no change in the original term of

September 1, 2014 through August 31, 2015. (51% Federally Qualified Health

Centers; 13% Targeted Case Management; 13% Public Health Administration;

23% County of Alameda, as grantee of Federal AIDS Program Funds)
 

C. 60   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with David H.C. Raphael, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$1,200,000 to provide general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa

Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period January 1 through December

31, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 61   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Rainbow Community Center of Contra Costa County, in

an amount not to exceed $486,496 to provide specialized behavioral health

treatment services to members of the lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer

and questioning community and their families for the period July 1, 2014 through

June 30, 2015, including a six-month automatic extension through December 31,

2015 in an amount not to exceed $243,248. (16% Federal Financial Participation;

84% Mental Health Service Act)
 

C. 62   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Seneca Family of Agencies in an amount not to exceed

$7,661,820, to provide mobile crisis response and school- and community-based

children’s specialty mental health services for the period July 1, 2014 through

June 30, 2015, with a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015

in an amount not to exceed $3,830,910. (42% Federal Financial Participation,

41% Mental Health Realignment, 13% Mt. Diablo Unified School District, 4%

Mental Health Services Act)
 



C. 63   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Ujima Family Recovery Services in an amount not to

exceed $1,692,084 to provide residential and outpatient treatment for pregnant

and parenting women and their small children, for the period July 1, 2014 through

June 30, 2015 (84% Federal Perinatal Set-Aside;16% Drug Medi-Cal funds)
 

C. 64   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Adolescent Treatment Centers, Inc., in an amount not to

exceed $358,838 to provide mental health services for seriously emotionally

disturbed dually-diagnosed adolescents at its Thunder Road Facility for the period

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, with a six-month automatic extension

through December 31, 2015 in an amount not to exceed $179,419. (50% Federal

Financial Participation; 50% Realignment)
 

C. 65   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a

Software and Services Agreement with 3M Cogent, Inc., in an amount not to

exceed $657,000 to procure mobile identification devices, software,

implementation services, and support of the software for the period January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2018. (100% CAL-ID funds)
 

C. 66   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Hugo E. Altamirano, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$400,000 to provide anesthesiology services at Contra Costa Regional Medical

and Health Centers, for the period January 19, 2015 through January 31, 2016.

(100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 67   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Ramon Berguer, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$1,200,000 to provide general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa

Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period January 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2017. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 68   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Desarrollo Familiar, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$263,380 to provide mental health services in West County for the period July 1,

2014 through June 30, 2015, with a six-month automatic extension through

December 31, 2015 in an amount not to exceed $131,690. (18% Federal

Medi-Cal, 40% Substance Abuse/Mental Health Services Administration Grant,

42% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 69   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Stephen D. Weiss, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$1,640,000 to provide general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa

Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period January 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2017. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 70   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 70   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Bi-Bett Corporation in an amount not to exceed $129,590,

to provide transitional housing services for homeless adult males who have

recently completed substance abuse treatment, for referrals from County’s

Assembly Bill 109 program, for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.

(100% State Public Safety Realignment Fund)
 

C. 71   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc., in an amount not

to exceed $1,350,000 to provide general surgery services for patients at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Health Centers, for the period January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2017. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 72   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Michael S. Baker, M.D., in an amount not to exceed

$345,000 to provide professional general surgery services at Contra Costa

Regional Medical and Health Centers, for the period January 1 through December

31, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 73   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with the City of El Cerrito, effective July 1, 2014,

to increase the payment limit by $23,843 to a new payment limit of $352,473, to

provide additional first responder fire paramedic services, with no change in the

original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. (100% Emergency Medical

Services funding)
 

C. 74   Acting as the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors and the Governing

Board of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, APPROVE and

AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director and the Contra Costa County Fire

Protection District Chief, or designees, to execute a contract amendment, effective

July 1, 2014, to increase the amount payable by the County to the Fire District by

$315,553 to a new payment limit of $4,112,290, to provide additional First

Responder Paramedic Program Services, with no change in the original term of

July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. (100% Emergency Medical Services funding)
 

C. 75   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with the City of Pinole for its Fire Department,

effective July 1, 2014, to increase the payment limit by $15,439 to a new payment

limit of $234,525, to provide additional first responder fire paramedic services,

with no change in the original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. (100%

Emergency Medical Services funding)
 

C. 76   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 76   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District,

effective July 1, 2014, to increase the payment limit by $15,439 to a new payment

limit of $234,525 to provide additional first responder fire paramedic services,

with no change in the original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. (100%

Emergency Medical Services funding)
 

C. 77   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order with Producers Dairy Products, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $175,000 to procure dairy products as needed for the

Martinez and Marsh Creek detention facilities, for the period January 1 through

December 31, 2015. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 78   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order with Producers Dairy Products, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $200,000 to procure dairy products as needed for the West

County Detention Facility for the period January 1 through December 31, 2015.

(100% General Fund)
 

C. 79   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Counsel, or designee, to execute a

contract with Baker & O'Brien, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $700,000 to

provide refining industry analyses in connection with refinery property tax

appeals, for the period January 1 through December 31, 2015. (100% Property

Tax Administration fees)
 

C. 80   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the the Chief Information Officer, Department of

Information Technology, or designee, to execute a contract with CSI

Telecommunications, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $200,000 to provide

Federal Communications Commission radio licensing and microwave frequency

coordination as needed; for the period February 1, 2015 through January 31,

2016. (100% User Fees)
 

C. 81   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with First Baptist Church of Pittsburg,

California, including modified indemnification language, to increase the payment

limit by $105,170 to a new payment limit of $1,237,440 to provide childcare

services at Fairgrounds Children’s Center, with no change to the term July 1, 2014

through June 30, 2015. (26% Federal, 74% State)
 

C. 82   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Department

Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with Kids' Clubs, Inc.,

including modified indemnification language, to decrease the payment limit by

$253,369 to a new payment limit of $1,137,857 to provide State Preschool,

Pre-kindergarten Family Literacy, and Head Start services, with no change to

term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. (89% State; 11% Federal)
 

C. 83   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the



C. 83   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the

Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order with Waxie Sanitary Supply in an amount not

to exceed $180,000 to procure miscellaneous janitorial supplies as needed within

the County's detention facilities, for the period January 1 through December 31,

2015. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 84   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Department

Director, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with Richmond

Elementary School, Inc., including modified indemnification language, to

increase the payment limit by $9,498 to new payment limit of $200,736 to

provide State preschool services, with no change to term of July 1, 2014 through

June 30, 2015. (100% State)
 

Other Actions
 

C. 85   DECLARE as surplus and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to

dispose of fully depreciated vehicles and equipment no longer needed for public

use, as recommended by the Public Works Director, Countywide. (No fiscal

impact)
 

C. 86   APPROVE the refund of overpayment of documentary transfer tax totaling

$15,323; and AUTHORIZE the County Auditor-Controller to issue refunds to

specified parties, as recommended by the Clerk-Recorder. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 87   APPROVE the design and bid documents, including plans and specifications, for

the Roof Replacement at 2099 Arnold Industrial Way, Concord Project; and

AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to solicit bids to be

received on or about March 12, 2015 and to issue bid addenda, as needed, for

clarification of the contract bid documents. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 88   ADOPT revised bylaws form the Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa

County, as recommended by the Commission.
 

C. 89   APPROVE the Notice of Intention to Purchase Real Property for a 0.93-acre

parcel adjacent to the West County Health Center on San Pablo Avenue, San

Pablo, owned by Palm Plaza Development, as recommended by the Public Works

and Health Services Directors. (100% Hospital Enterprise Fund)
 

C. 90   ACCEPT the Clerk-Recorder’s certificate of signature verification results for

referendum petition on Ordinance No. 2014-10, which would have adjusted the

salaries of the Board of Supervisors members, as recommended by the County

Administrator.
 

C. 91   ACCEPT the 2014 Annual Report submitted by the Knightsen Town Advisory

Council, as recommended by Supervisor Piepho.
 



C. 92   ACCEPT the 2014 Annual Report from the Byron Municipal Advisory Council,

as recommended by Supervisor Piepho.
 

C. 93   ACCEPT the 2014 Annual Report from the Bethel Island Municipal Advisory

Council, as recommended by Supervisor Piepho.
 

C. 94   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute an unpaid student training agreement with the Regents of the University

of California, on behalf of University of California San Francisco, to provide

supervised field instruction to physical therapy students for the period January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2020. (No Fiscal Impact)
 

C. 95   ACCEPT the Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Care Committee's 2014

Annual Report, as recommended by the Health Services Director.
 

C. 96   APPROVE the design and bid documents, including plans and specifications, for

the North Richmond Pump Station Diversion Project; and AUTHORIZE the

Public Works Director, or designee, to solicit bids to be received on or about

March 10, 2015 and to issue bid addenda, as needed, for clarification of the

contract bid documents, Richmond area. (63% Environmental Protection Agency

Grant Funds, 37% Stormwater Utility Area 17 Assessments)
 

C. 97   ACCEPT the 2014 Annual Report from the Contra Costa Commission on

Women, as recommended by the County Administrator.
 

C. 98   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the allocation of $213,286 from the Crockett

Co-Generation Property Tax Allocation for four projects, as recommended by the

Crockett Community Foundation and Supervisor Glover. (100% General Fund)
 

C. 99   CONTINUE the emergency action originally taken by the Board of Supervisors

on November 16, 1999 regarding the issue of homelessness in Contra Costa

County, as recommended by the Health Services Director. (No fiscal impact)
 

C.100   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/50 as approved by the Retirement Board, which

establishes retirement plan contribution rates for the period January 1, 2015

through June 30, 2016 for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District and

employer contribution rates to be effective for the period July 1, 2015 through

June 30, 2016 for the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District, as recommended by

the County Administrator.
 

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Board meets in all its capacities pursuant to Ordinance Code Section 24-2.402, including as the

Housing Authority and the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency. Persons who wish to

address the Board should complete the form provided for that purpose and furnish a copy of any

written statement to the Clerk.



Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and

distributed by the Clerk of the Board to a majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors less

than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine Street, First

Floor, Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553, during normal business hours.

All matters listed under CONSENT ITEMS are considered by the Board to be routine and will be

enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a

member of the Board or a member of the public prior to the time the Board votes on the motion to

adopt. 

Persons who wish to speak on matters set for PUBLIC HEARINGS will be heard when the Chair

calls for comments from those persons who are in support thereof or in opposition thereto. After

persons have spoken, the hearing is closed and the matter is subject to discussion and action by the

Board. Comments on matters listed on the agenda or otherwise within the purview of the Board of

Supervisors can be submitted to the office of the Clerk of the Board via mail: Board of

Supervisors, 651 Pine Street Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553; by fax: 925-335-1913.

The County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to

attend Board meetings who contact the Clerk of the Board at least 24 hours before the meeting, at

(925) 335-1900; TDD (925) 335-1915. An assistive listening device is available from the Clerk,

Room 106.

Copies of recordings of all or portions of a Board meeting may be purchased from the Clerk of the

Board. Please telephone the Office of the Clerk of the Board, (925) 335-1900, to make the

necessary arrangements.

Forms are available to anyone desiring to submit an inspirational thought nomination for inclusion

on the Board Agenda. Forms may be obtained at the Office of the County Administrator or Office

of the Clerk of the Board, 651 Pine Street, Martinez, California.

Subscribe to receive to the weekly Board Agenda by calling the Office of the Clerk of the Board,

(925) 335-1900 or using the County's on line subscription feature at the County’s Internet Web

Page, where agendas and supporting information may also be viewed:

www.co.contra-costa.ca.us 

STANDING COMMITTEES

The Airport Committee (Karen Mitchoff and Supervisor Mary N. Piepho) meets quarterly on the

second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. at Director of Airports Office, 550 Sally Ride Drive,

Concord.

The Family and Human Services Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Candace

Andersen) meets on the second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Finance Committee (Supervisors Mary N. Piepho and Federal D. Glover) meets on the first

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us


The Finance Committee (Supervisors Mary N. Piepho and Federal D. Glover) meets on the first

Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Karen Mitchoff)

meets on the first Thursday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration

Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Internal Operations Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and John Gioia) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 2:30 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Legislation Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

first Thursday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Public Protection Committee (Supervisors John Gioia and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Transportation, Water & Infrastructure Committee (Supervisors Candace Andersen and

Mary N. Piepho) meets on the first Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

Airports Committee March 9, 2015 10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Family & Human Services Committee February 9, 2015

canceled

10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Finance Committee March 2, 2015 10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee February 5, 2015 1:00 p.m. See

above

Internal Operations Committee February 9, 2015 2:30 p.m. See

above

Legislation Committee February 5, 2015 10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Public Protection Committee February 9, 2015 1:00 p.m. See

above

Transportation, Water & Infrastructure

Committee

March 2, 2015 1:00 p.m. See

above

AGENDA DEADLINE: Thursday, 12 noon, 12 days before the Tuesday Board meetings.



Glossary of Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms (in alphabetical order):

Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms, abbreviations, and

industry-specific language in its Board of Supervisors meetings and written materials. Following is

a list of commonly used language that may appear in oral presentations and written materials

associated with Board meetings:

AB Assembly Bill

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments

ACA Assembly Constitutional Amendment

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

AFSCME American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees

AICP American Institute of Certified Planners

AIDS Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome

ALUC Airport Land Use Commission

AOD Alcohol and Other Drugs

ARRA American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of 2009

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BayRICS Bay Area Regional Interoperable Communications System

BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission

BGO Better Government Ordinance

BOS Board of Supervisors

CALTRANS California Department of Transportation

CalWIN California Works Information Network

CalWORKS California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids

CAER Community Awareness Emergency Response

CAO County Administrative Officer or Office

CCCPFD (ConFire) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CCHP Contra Costa Health Plan

CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority

CCRMC Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

CCWD Contra Costa Water District

CDBG Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

CIO Chief Information Officer

COLA Cost of living adjustment

ConFire (CCCFPD) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CPA Certified Public Accountant

CPI Consumer Price Index

CSA County Service Area

CSAC California State Association of Counties

CTC California Transportation Commission

dba doing business as

DSRIP Delivery System Reform Incentive Program

EBMUD East Bay Municipal Utility District



ECCFPD East Contra Costa Fire Protection District

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EIS Environmental Impact Statement

EMCC Emergency Medical Care Committee

EMS Emergency Medical Services

EPSDT Early State Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment Program (Mental Health)

et al. et alii (and others)

FAA Federal Aviation Administration

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency

F&HS Family and Human Services Committee

First 5 First Five Children and Families Commission (Proposition 10)

FTE Full Time Equivalent

FY Fiscal Year

GHAD Geologic Hazard Abatement District

GIS Geographic Information System

HCD (State Dept of) Housing & Community Development

HHS (State Dept of ) Health and Human Services

HIPAA Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Syndrome

HOME Federal block grant to State and local governments designed exclusively to create

affordable housing for low-income households

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS Program

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle

HR Human Resources

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

IHSS In-Home Supportive Services

Inc. Incorporated

IOC Internal Operations Committee

ISO Industrial Safety Ordinance

JPA Joint (exercise of) Powers Authority or Agreement

Lamorinda Lafayette-Moraga-Orinda Area

LAFCo Local Agency Formation Commission

LLC Limited Liability Company

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

Local 1 Public Employees Union Local 1

LVN Licensed Vocational Nurse

MAC Municipal Advisory Council

MBE Minority Business Enterprise

M.D. Medical Doctor

M.F.T. Marriage and Family Therapist

MIS Management Information System

MOE Maintenance of Effort

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission

NACo National Association of Counties

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

OB-GYN Obstetrics and Gynecology

O.D. Doctor of Optometry



OES-EOC Office of Emergency Services-Emergency Operations Center

OPEB Other Post Employment Benefits

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration

PARS Public Agencies Retirement Services

PEPRA Public Employees Pension Reform Act

Psy.D. Doctor of Psychology

RDA Redevelopment Agency

RFI Request For Information

RFP Request For Proposal

RFQ Request For Qualifications

RN Registered Nurse

SB Senate Bill

SBE Small Business Enterprise

SEIU Service Employees International Union

SUASI Super Urban Area Security Initiative

SWAT Southwest Area Transportation Committee

TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership & Cooperation (Central)

TRANSPLAN Transportation Planning Committee (East County)

TRE or TTE Trustee

TWIC Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee

UASI Urban Area Security Initiative

VA Department of Veterans Affairs

vs. versus (against)

WAN Wide Area Network

WBE Women Business Enterprise

WCCTAC West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. ACCEPT testimony on the appeals of Phillips 66 Propane Recovery Project approval by the County Planning

Commission.

2. CLOSE the public hearing.

3. CERTIFY the 2013 Draft and Final EIR, including the entire Recirculated Environmental Impact Report (REIR),

consisting of the Recirculated Draft EIR (RDEIR) dated October 2014, and the Recirculated Final EIR (RFEIR) dated

January of 2015; and CERTIFY that the Board has reviewed and considered the contents, that it is adequate and

complete, that it has been prepared in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the

State and County CEQA Guidelines, and that it reflects the County’s independent judgment and analysis. The

Department of Conservation and Development, Community Development Division, located at 30 Muir Road,

Martinez, CA, is the custodian of the documents and other material which constitute the record of proceedings upon

which this decision is based.

4. DENY the appeals from Communities for a Better Environment and Rodeo Citizens Association, and UPHOLD

the County Planning Commission’s decision to approve the Land Use Permit (County File #LP12-2073) with the

added condition of approval #36 and modified condition of approval #5.

5. ADOPT the findings contained in the County Planning Commission Resolution No. 19-2013, which 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes: See Addendum

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

NO: John Gioia, District I

Supervisor

Contact:  Lashun Cross 925 674-7786

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

D.3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Interim Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appeal of the County Planning Commissions Approval of LP12-2073 (Phillips 66 Rodeo Refinery)



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

includes the CEQA findings, Growth Management Standards and Land Use Permit findings as the basis for the

Board’s action.

6. ADOPT the attached Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.

7. DIRECT the Community Development Division to post a Notice of Determination with the County Clerk.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None. The applicant, Phillips 66 Company, is obligated to pay any additional costs above the initial application

deposit associated with the processing of the application.

BACKGROUND:

On January 21, 2014, the Board of Supervisors received testimony on two appeals filed in response to the

Planning Commission’s decision to approve the Phillips 66 Propane Recovery Project. Staff's responses to the

appeals are contained in the attached January 21, 2014 board order (Exhibits #6 and #16). Prior to the Board

hearing, on January 14, 2014, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD or Air District),

submitted a letter requesting additional information in order to verify the Project’s potential impacts on public

health, and to verify the projected decrease in greenhouse gas emissions. Upon conclusion of public testimony, the

Board continued this item and directed Conservation and Development staff to respond to the Air District's letter.

Subsequently, on June 3, 2014, the Board directed staff to recirculate portions of the 2013 Draft EIR for public

review following completion of a cumulative analysis of health risks. The Board also directed staff to respond to a

letter submitted to the Board by the appellants from the Attorney General to the City of Pittsburg, dated January

15, 2014, regarding a recirculated EIR for the WesPac Pittsburg Energy Infrastructure Project. The Board further

directed staff to respond to specific testimony received at the hearing. The Board continued this item to September

23, 2014, December 16, 2014 and ultimately to February 3, 2015.

The portions of the 2013 EIR that were recirculated are Air Quality, Biological Resources, Energy Conservation,

Geology and Soils, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, Hydrology and Water Quality,

and the Analysis of Impacts. All the remaining portions of the 2013 Draft and Final EIR have not been superseded

by the RDEIR and RFEIR and are recommended for certification along with the RDEIR and RFEIR.

January 14, 2014 Letter from the Air District and Recirculation of the EIR

On January 14, 2014, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District issued a letter requesting analysis of the

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG) that would be associated with the end use of recovered propane and butane,

and requesting a health risk assessment (HRA) be conducted for the Propane Recovery Project. The HRA was to

include verification of the Project’s toxic air contaminant (TAC) emissions. Also, requested was a cumulative

health risk analysis of the maximum exposed sensitive receptor (i.e. daycare, schools, elderly, etc.) that would

include other sources of air pollution that could contribute to human health risks, including TAC emissions from

rail activities, Refinery modifications, and Interstate Highways.

The Board determined on June 3, 2014, to conduct the additional GHG and health risk analyses and, in

accordance with the Contra Costa County Guidelines for administering CEQA, determined this would require that

the EIR be recirculated in order to provide the public an opportunity to review the new information provided by

the studies. The County CEQA Guidelines, Section 15088.5—Recirculation of an EIR Prior to Certification,

states, “The County Department of Conservation and Development is required to re-circulate the EIR when

significant new information is added to the EIR after public notice is given of the availability of the draft EIR but

before certification. New information added to an EIR is not ‘significant’ unless the EIR is changed in a way that

deprives the public of a meaningful opportunity to comment upon a substantial adverse environmental effect on

the project”. The additional GHG and health risk analyses were determined to constitute “significant new

information,” and accordingly, the EIR was recirculated to give the public and any interested parties the

opportunity to review and comment. On October 21, 2014, the Recirculated Draft EIR (RDEIR) was released with

a forty-five day public comment period that ended on December 5, 2014.

The Air District instructed the County to consider in the analysis the end uses of the propane and butane after it



was sold on the market. Therefore a thorough investigation was conducted regarding these potential uses and their

associated post-sale GHG emissions, and it was determined that the post-sale amount and nature of the associated

emissions cannot reasonably be estimated without undertaking a substantial amount of speculation. In accordance

with CEQA Guidelines, Section 15145, if after investigation, a lead agency finds that a particular impact is too

speculative for evaluation, the agency should note its conclusion and terminate discussion of the impact.

Therefore, staff has not attempted to quantify the associated net GHG emissions and refer to the RDEIR, Section

4.5, pages 4.5-13 and 4.5-14 for summary of the results of the investigation. On December 2, 2014, the Air

District stated its agreement with this conclusion.

BAAQMD’s health risk guidance was used to evaluate Project specific and cumulative health risks. That guidance

recommends that cumulative health risks first be estimated by combining Project specific risks with the risks from

other existing and proposed sources of toxic air contaminants. Then, the total combined health risks are compared

to BAAQMD’s cumulative health risk thresholds.

The cumulative health risk analysis included health risks from Project specific emission sources. These included

the new boiler (or increased use of the steam power plant (SPP)), fugitive emission sources, and increased

locomotive emissions. In addition, the cumulative analysis evaluated the health risks from other existing and

proposed projects in the vicinity. These other emission sources included existing refinery emissions, proposed

refinery emission sources not related to the Project (such as the Marine Terminal II and III projects),

transportation sources (rail and highway), and other stationary sources in the project vicinity (e.g., NuStar

Terminal, Air Liquide Hydrogen Plant, etc.). 

The health risk analysis found that for both Project scenarios (boiler and increased use of SPP), the cumulative

cancer risk at the maximally affected residence and worker locations would be less than the BAAQMD’s

significance threshold of 100 per million. Similarly, the analysis found that the maximum cumulative chronic

hazard from all sources would be less than BAAQMD’s significance threshold of 10 per million.

During the public comment period, the Air District issued a letter on December 2, 2014 (Exhibit #15), stating they

were in agreement with the results of the health risk and emissions analyses. The Air District further stated that the

RDEIR justifies the Project's GHG emission decrease based on the anticipated change in fuel gas use. Other

comments were received during the public comment period and at the Zoning Administrator’s hearing held on

November 17, 2014, which was another opportunity to accept public comments; these comments have been

responded to within the Recirculated Final Environmental Impact Report (RFEIR).

Staff Responses to Specific Public Comments Made at the January 21, 2014 Hearing as Requested by the

Board

Project Description:

The appellants contended that the EIR should have also been recirculated based on the inaccuracy of the project

description, because the Project scope does not include or address the nature of the crude oil that Phillips 66 will

be capable of processing, that it does not identify and describe recent modifications to process units and operation,

and that it does not describe the proposed Project’s relationship with other projects being pursued at the Phillips

66 refinery in Santa Maria. Overall, the appellants stated that the proposed Project would allow the Rodeo

Refinery to process more heavy, high-sulfur crudes by rail, such as tar sands. They further cited the “Greg Karras

Declaration” and “Fox Report” as evidence of insufficient amounts of butane and propane in the Refinery’s

existing Refinery Fuel Gas (RFG), thus asserting that the Project is therefore dependent on a change to its crude

slate in order to produce the proposed levels of propane and butane. RFG is defined as any gas generated and

combusted at a petroleum refinery as a fuel used to run refinery processing units.

The Project application and RDEIR proposes the recovery of propane and butane, and the Project is based on

existing levels of propane and butane in the RFG produced by the existing Refinery crude slate. Sufficient levels

of butane and propane already exist in the RFG under current conditions at the Refinery. The Project was

accordingly designed to give the facility the ability to capture, or recover, existing propane and butane, not to

produce new or higher levels of propane and butane. Likewise, without the proposed Project, there would be no

project-related decrease in Greenhouse Gas and sulfur dioxide emissions or a decrease in the number of flaring



events at the Refinery. 

Currently, the propane and butane that is not recovered is used as fuel for the refinery (i.e. RFG). Exhibit #12

shows the butane and propane production at 15,400 bpd (barrels per day) for August 2011. Review of similar data

for January through November of 2013, (see Exhibit #13), indicates levels consistent with the levels of butane and

propane measured in August of 2011. The project proponents’ proposal includes six pressurized storage tanks

holding 2,500 barrels of propane each. The capacity of the removal equipment, including the amount of propane

and butane, is specified in the Project’s BAAQMD permit application and within the project description as 14,500

bpd. The project description is consistent with the BAAQMD permit, and does not seek to maximize butane and

propane production by an increase or change in crude oil, but proposes to recover butane and propane that already

exists in the Refinery Fuel Gas stream and to replace the fuel value of these extracted gases with purchased natural

gas. The project limits and equipment are clearly described within the RDEIR, and they do not imply the Rodeo

Refinery will change its facility or equipment to bring in heavy tar sands or change the crude slate. Nor is the

proposed Project dependent on any projects at the Phillips 66 Santa Maria refinery. To further emphasize that the

recovery of the propane and butane (Liquid Petroleum Gas or LPG) is limited to levels of LPG currently

produced, staff recommends an additional condition which requires that Phillips 66 Company shall ensure that the

throughput of propane and butane be limited to 14,500 barrels per day. The text of the recommended condition is

cited below:

COA #36: Phillips 66 shall ensure that the throughput of propane and butane at the LPG Recovery Unit shall not

exceed 14,500 barrels per day.

The project description is complete and adequate and all aspects of the proposed Project are supported by

substantial evidence in the administrative record; therefore, an inadequate project description was not a factor in

the recirculation of the EIR.

Fire District-Public Safety and Services:

Several speakers at the January 21, 2014, hearing expressed concerns regarding the ability of the Rodeo-Hercules

Fire District (RHFD) to respond to fires, explosions, or other emergencies at the Refinery. These concerns appear

to stem from the 2012 closure of Station #75, located at 326 Third Street in Rodeo, which is perceived to have left

the Refinery without adequate coverage in the event of an emergency at the facility. In other words, there is public

concern that the RHFD now has a decreased emergency-response capability, and is thus under equipped to be the

first responders to emergencies at the Refinery due to the closure of Station #75. RHFD Station #75 in Rodeo

re-opened on October 1, 2014; therefore, any concerns regarding the closure of Station #75 have been resolved

for the present time. It is also important to note that RHFD Station #75 was not, and still is not, the first responder

for emergencies at the Refinery; nevertheless, since the Refinery is in their jurisdiction, the Rodeo-Hercules Fire

District automatically responds to any incidents at the facility in a stand-by or advisory capacity.

Phillips 66 generally provides its own emergency response for Refinery incidents, independent of the RHFD. Its

emergency teams are trained and equipped to respond to fires, rescues, hazardous materials releases, and other

emergencies that could occur at the Refinery, including any potential incidents involving the proposed Project

construction and/or operations. The Refinery is also a member of the Bay Area Petrochemical Industry Mutual

Aid Organization (PMAO), which is composed of more than half a dozen refineries and chemical plants whose

operators have agreed to provide one another with emergency response resources in the event of a major

emergency. The PMAO holds monthly meetings and conducts quarterly equipment-deployment drills, including

an annual training exercise to maintain inter-facility working relationships. Assistance is also available in the

event of certain hazardous chemical releases from the County Hazardous Materials, Richmond Fire Hazardous

Materials, and the San Ramon Valley Fire Hazardous Materials. These agencies are automatically alerted to any

incidents at the refineries.

The general procedure in the event of an emergency at the Refinery begins with the initial report of the emergency

condition, such as a fire, injury, etc. A Refinery emergency is reported by dialing number 88 on the Refinery’s

internal phone system or via the in-plant Refinery radio to a unit control room. Dialing 88 is the Refinery’s

equivalent of calling 911. The emergency phone is answered by the Marine Terminal Dispatcher who then uses



the “All Call” function to announce the type of emergency and the location over all of the Refinery’s radios and

the public-address system. The Rodeo Refinery uses the Incident Command System to direct and control the

emergency operations. The Shift Superintendent is the Incident Commander. The Incident Commander will

conduct an initial assessment of the situation and determine if it can be handled by the Refinery’s Emergency

Response Team (ERT) or if additional assistance will be required from the outside emergency-response resources.

The Rodeo refinery has 15 ERT members assigned on a 24/7 basis to respond to all types of emergency scenarios

within the refinery. Once an emergency notification is made, the designated ERT members respond to an

announced staging location for further instructions and deployment. In the event that additional

emergency-response support is needed beyond the Refinery’s on-site capabilities, supplemental emergency

responders and equipment are available from Refinery off-shift ERT members and mutual aid. As mentioned

above, mutual aid is also provided by the PMAO. Additional emergency-response services are also available from

the RHFD Stations 75 and 76 in Hercules and the Crockett Carquinez Fire Department. These fire departments

attend annual fire training with the Refinery personnel and have a long history of working closely with the

facility. The proposed project would not require the construction of a new fire station. Given that Phillips 66

currently provides its own internal fire protection and emergency-response services along with adequate

emergency personnel, equipment, and response ability, therefore the project impact on the demand for fire

services would be minimal. 

Transportation of Crude, Propane and Butane Via Railroads:

Several comments were received regarding rail routes, rail car storage, and the transport of crude, propane, and

butane by rail. However, the County has no authority to impose any conditions on the railroad once a train has left

the Refinery. Limitations on local and state regulation of railroads (Federal Preemption) is discussed in the RDEIR

in Section 3.3.2.17, Tank Cars and a summary is provided below.

Under the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution, no state or local government may impose laws or

regulations that unduly burden interstate commerce. Because railroads are a key component of the system of

interstate commerce, most aspects of railroad operations are governed exclusively by federal law. With respect to

land use requirements, the Interstate Commerce Commission Termination Act (ICCTA) affords railroads

flexibility in making necessary improvements and modifications to rail infrastructure, subject to requirements of

the federal Surface Transportation Board. Congress afforded railroads this flexibility because of the integrated

national nature of the American rail system and the need for uniform and consistent standards across the country.

As a general matter, ICCTA broadly preempts state and local regulation of railroads. This preemption extends to

“the construction, acquisition, operation, abandonment, or discontinuance of spur, industrial, team, switching, or

side tracks, or facilities . . . . [T]he remedies provided under this part with respect to regulation of rail

transportation are exclusive and preempt the remedies provided under Federal or State law." The courts have

repeatedly held that the ICCTA preempts state and local regulation, i.e., “those state laws that may reasonably be

said to have the effect of ‘managing’ or ‘governing’ rail transportation." The ICCTA also preempts state and local

regulation of the construction and operation of rail lines.

In summary, because of Federal Preemption, the County has no authority to impose any conditions on the railroad

once a train has left the Refinery.

Several commenters have expressed concern the Project will include the transport of crude oil by rail to the

refinery. In North America, the movement of crude oil by rail, in particular, Bakken crude oil from the Midwest

and the Canadian tar sands, has increased and subsequently has become controversial due to recent incidents of

exploding rail cars. In response to these recent such incidents in Canada, North Dakota, and Alabama, the National

Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) made several recommendations in 2012 to require older tank cars to be

retrofitted in order to meet standards enacted in 2011 that require thicker steel in new tank cars. In addition, the

Association of American Railroads (AAR) has urged the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) to improve

tank car regulations. These proactive safety measures focus on moving crude oil by rail and the active fleet

designed to carry this material. It should be emphasized, the project description does not include the transport of

crude by rail.

Crude oil tank cars differ from cars that transport liquid petroleum gas (LPG) and have been retrofitted with safety



devices and other upgrades in and around 2009. The Department of Transportation classifies crude tank cars as

Class 111 and LPG cars as Class 112. This is information provided by AAR/RSI (Railway Supply Institute),

which helps to make the rail industry safe. The main difference between LPG tank cars and crude tank cars is that

LPG cars are thicker than crude cars. It should be noted that Phillips 66 already transports butane by rail.

The railroad is owned by Union Pacific Rail Road (UPRR). Once cars are loaded and transferred to UPRR,

whether it's incoming or outgoing cars, UPRR determines the constructive placement, which includes storage of

cars on track, the railroad yard, and determination of the route taken. Phillips 66 has no direct control over

operating decisions and has previously conveyed public concern to UPRR. To further encourage this

communication, condition of approval #11 was placed in the Land Use Permit; it reads:

COA #11: "Phillips 66 must continuously monitor the storage of rail cars (primarily propane and butane rail cars),

and as needed contact the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) to request and encourage that UPRR to utilize on-site

areas for storage of rail cars and to make space available on-site to the extent practicable for the storage of any

propane and butane rail cars."

Geology and Liquefaction:

Some comments at the January 21, 2014 hearing expressed concern about the geological peer review letter by

Darwin Myers Associates (DMA) dated July 13, 2012. Specifically, commenters cited the last sentence of the

third paragraph on Page 5 of the DMA report which recommended that the application should not be deemed

complete until a project-specific geotechnical report was prepared for the project. The implication being that since

the recommended report was not prepared, a serious oversight was made in terms of the EIR’s analysis of

geologic hazards.

Darwin Myers Associates is a geology consultant that is retained by the County to review the geological aspects

of projects being considered. DMA typically reviews projects that are located in areas that are susceptible to

seismic events, such as the Rodeo Refinery. Although DMA makes recommendations for projects, it was

determined by County staff that the recommended site-specific geotechnical report was not necessary prior to

deeming the application complete, since a design-level geotechnical investigation would be performed for the site

areas of each proposed project component prior to construction. In a subsequent letter dated, April 10, 2014,

DMA supported the County’s decision to move forward with the CEQA process without the recommended

project-specific geotechnical report, because there is a large volume of existing subsurface geotechnical data for

the Refinery property to adequately characterize potential geologic hazards, and also, because most of the project

components are not proposed to be located in zones of high liquefaction potential.

Evaluation of liquefaction potential will be required for any site where components of the Propane Recovery

Project will be constructed prior to issuance of building permits, and if determined necessary, appropriate

stabilization measures will be implemented (see COA #7). The design-level investigation will include an analysis

of expected ground motions at the site from known active faults. This analysis would be in accordance with

applicable County ordinances and policies and be consistent with the current California Building Code (CBC),

which requires structural design that can accommodate ground accelerations expected from known active faults.

The investigations would determine final design parameters for the earthwork (i.e. grading), foundations,

foundation slabs, and any surrounding related improvements, such as utilities, roadways, parking lots and

sidewalks. The investigations would be reviewed by the Department of Conservation and Development and the

County’s consulting geologist. Additionally, appropriate grading and design in accordance with the CBC

requirements and the County’s grading ordinance would be used to reduce the secondary effects of ground shaking

on structures and infrastructure. Any fill materials would be appropriately compacted and engineered as directed

by the California certified engineering geologist or geotechnical engineer assigned to monitor the project.

The project has been conditioned to assure that the necessary and appropriate level of geotechnical investigation

and review will be employed prior to issuance of building and grading permits and during the construction phases

of the project (See COAs #7 and #8). The impacts of liquefaction, seismicity, and other potential geologic hazards

on the project were also thoroughly examined and considered in Section 4.4—Geology and Soils of the RDEIR, as

well as in the June 2013 Draft EIR, and in Master Response 2.5—Liquefaction and Seismicity of the November

2013 Final EIR. Therefore, the proposed project will not have any impacts to geology that cannot be addressed



under the County’s standard procedures at the time of the building permit review process. 

Attorney General Letter Regarding the WesPac Pittsburg Energy Infrastructure Project, dated

January 15, 2014: 

The January 15, 2014 Attorney General (AG) letter addresses a Recirculated EIR for the WesPac Pittsburg

Energy Infrastructure Project, which is a project to transform an inactive oil storage and transfer facility into a

center for the storage, transfer, and transportation of crude oil by rail, pipeline, ship and barge, and bring new

sources of crude to the Bay Area for refining. The AG letter, in summary, points out that the recirculated WesPac

EIR failed to do the following:

--to analyze the significance of the local air quality impacts on the residents and the community of Pittsburg;

--to consider the effects on other Bay Area communities of refining the new crudes;

--to adequately disclose and address the risk of accidents that could result from transportation, storage, and

refining of the new crudes; and

--to fully disclose and consider mitigation for the Project’s climate-change related impacts.

The Propane Recovery Project proposes to store and transport propane by rail and to recover additional amounts

of butane; the Refinery currently ships butane by rail, but not propane. The Propane Recovery Project will utilize

the Rodeo Refinery’s existing Refinery Fuel Gas (RFG) produced from the existing Refinery crude slate, and is

not dependent on a new crude slate or any changes to the existing crude slate. The design and removal of

equipment and the amount of propane and butane that can be removed is specified within the BAAQMD permit

and has been inserted into an enforceable condition included in the draft permit prepared by the BAAQMD.

Furthermore, the volume is specified as 14,500 bpd and is based on actual samplings and measurements of

propane and butane in the RFG at the Rodeo Refinery in 2011. A summary of those measurements is attached as

Exhibit #12; a review of similar data in 2013 shows levels consistent with the levels of butane and propane from

2011 (see Exhibit #13). In contrast, the WesPac project proposes to modernize and reactivate an existing oil

storage and transfer facility in Pittsburg, California. The WesPac facility would receive crudes from various

sources for storage and transfer to various customers. The Propane Recovery Project is not refining new crudes to

recover additional LPGs; Phillips 66 is proposing to utilize the existing RFG produced by the existing crude slate

to remove existing quantities of butane and recover existing quantities of propane. 

Once-Through Cooling System:

A few of the comments made at the January 21, 2014 Board hearing related to potential impacts on water quality

and biologic resources due to increased use of the Refinery’s once-through cooling (OTC) system. The OTC

system is the current process in which Phillips 66 uses salt water extracted from the bay to reduce the temperature

and cool off process streams, then discharging the water back into the bay. The use of the OTC system was

analyzed in Hydrology and Water Quality, Section 4.10.5(a) of the June 2013 Draft EIR, and further clarified in 

Hydrology and Water Quality, Section 4.7.5(a) and Biological Resources, Section 4.2.5(d) of the RDEIR, which

concluded that any OTC system impacts to biologic resources or water quality will be less than significant,

because the increased use of the OTC system would not require any new construction or expansion of the existing

system. The increased use would be accommodated entirely by the existing five pumps and equipment, and would

continue to operate within the Refinery's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit

conditions, as determined by the Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

Boiling Liquid Expanding Vapor Explosion (BLEVE):

Several commenters at both the January 21, 2014 Board hearing and the November 17, 2014 Zoning

Administrator public comment hearing expressed concerns about propane and butane explosions, especially in the

form of a boiling liquid expanding vapor explosion. A boiling liquid expanding vapor explosion could occur

when sealed tanks of liquid or gaseous hazardous materials are exposed to fire, which may cause excessive

pressures within the tank, combined with weakening of the tank walls. The sudden failure of the vessel and rapid

vaporization and expansion of its contents is termed a “BLEVE." A Quantitative Risk Analysis was performed to

address the concerns regarding propane and butane explosions, and the results are presented in Hazards and

Hazardous Materials, Section 4.6.6(a) of the RDEIR, and the risk associated with the proposed Project’s transport

of propane and butane was found to be less than significant. 

The analysis evaluated potential impacts, including whether the project would affect risk levels within the



The analysis evaluated potential impacts, including whether the project would affect risk levels within the

Refinery and in locations well beyond the Refinery boundaries. As described in RDEIR Section 4.6.5,

Consequence Analysis Methodology, to describe the worst case hazards at the Refinery, a consequence modeling

program developed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) was used to determine the maximum

potential impacts of the current hazardous material processing and storage in the Refinery, as well as those

associated with the proposed process unit and storage equipment. Results of this analysis are summarized in

RDEIR Section 4.6.5.7, Summary of Maximum Hazard Zones. Figure 4.6.1 identifies the Worst Case Hazard

Zones for the existing Refinery layout. The hazards and risks associated with rail car BLEVEs of propane and

butane were included in the rail risk assessments in both the 2013 DEIR and RDEIR.

The RDEIR concluded that the overall risk increase due to the additional transport of butane and propane by rail is

not materially higher than the current baseline risk associated with the current butane transport activity at the

Refinery. Consequently, the proposed Project would have a less than significant impact.

Some commenters questioned the methodology used in the BLEVE analysis and suggested a specific

methodology, as presented in a conference paper (Roberts, 2000). It should be noted that the same exact

methodology used in the conference paper cited by the commenters was used for the RDEIR analysis. The

conference paper even referenced the developers of the methodology (Martinsen and Marx, 1999) who, in fact,

work as experts within Quest Consultants Inc., the very hazards firm who prepared the BLEVE analysis for the

RDEIR. 

It should also be noted that, as stated in RDEIR Section 4.6.2.1, Regional and Local Setting, BLEVES are

extremely rare. As an industrial facility that handles hazardous chemicals, the Refinery must be constructed and

operated in accordance with certain codes and standards, which are enforced via administrative mechanisms such

as internal audits, design reviews, and building inspections. Operations at the Refinery are subject to extensive

regulatory and safety controls (RDEIR Section 4.6.2.2, Regulatory Setting), to limit the probability of such an

event, and a comprehensive emergency response system is in place to ensure public safety.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Propane Recovery Project would not be constructed and the Refinery would not be able to recover and sell

the existing propane and additional butane. There would be no project-related decrease in Greenhouse Gas

emissions or a decrease in the number of flaring events at the Refinery.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The impacts associated with sensitive receptors, which includes children has been addressed within Chapter 4.1 of

the Recirculated Draft Environmental Impact Report. It has been determined through the preparation of the Health

Risk Assessment (HRA) that the emissions associated with the proposed Propane and Additional Butane

Recovery Project would be a less than significant impact.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/37 

Exhibit #1: CPC Resolution No. 19-2013 

Exhibit #2 Conditions Approved by CPC 

Exhibit #3a: Appeal Letter 11/22/13 Shute Mihaly & Weinberger, LLP (SMW) 

Exhibit #3b: SMW 11/18/13 Letter and Related Fox Report 

Exhibit #4a: Appeal Letter 12/02/13 Communities For A Better Environment (CBE) 

Exhibit #4b: CBE 1/19/13 Letter by Roger Lin 

Exhibit #4c: CBE 11/19/13 Letter and Related Report by Greg Karras 

Exhibit #4d: CBE 12/12/13 Letter Regarding WesPac Project 

Exhibit #4e: CBE 01/07/14 

Exhibit #5: Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 



Exhibit #6 County Responses to Project Appeals 

Exhibit #7: Phillips 66 Response to Appeals 

Exhibit #8: CPC 11/19/13 Staff Report 

Exhibit #9: Notification List 

Exhibit #10: Maps 

Exhibit #11: CBE 01/14/14 Letter 

Exhibit #12: LPG production for 2011 

Exhibit #13: LPG Production for 2013 

Exhibit #14: Comments Received During Continued BOS Hearings 

Exhibit #15 12/2/14 Air District Letter 

Exhibit #16 1/21/14 Board Order with Responses to Appeals 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 02/03/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/37

Phillips 66 Company, Propane Recovery Project Land Use Permit Application, County File #LP12-2073 Rodeo Area, District V

WHEREAS, PHILLIPS 66 COMPANY (Applicant & Owner) propose to recover for sale propane and additional butane from

refinery fuel gas (RFG) and other process streams; and to decrease sulfur dioxide emissions from the refinery combustions

sources as a result of removing sulfur compounds from RFG, which is a necessary part of the process to recover propane that is

sold commercially. The proposal would be phased and would add, modify, and remove processing equipment such as, but not

limited to, new storage tanks and treatment facilities, removal of two 265-foot heater stacks and the addition of two new rail

spurs on approximately 3 acres located at the Rodeo Refinery in the community of Rodeo of Contra Costa County, for which an

application was received by the Department of Conservation and Development, Community Development Division on June 22,

2012; and

WHEREAS, for purposes of compliance with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and State and

County CEQA Guidelines, a Draft Environmental Impact Report (“Draft EIR”) dated June 2013, and a recirculated Draft EIR

dated October 2014, was prepared for the Project; and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Preparation of an Environmental Impact Report was distributed on July 24, 2012, and a scoping session

held on August 20, 2012, on the Project in Martinez, CA; and

WHEREAS, the Draft EIR identified potentially significant impacts related to Air Quality, Cultural Resources, Noise, Traffic

and Transportation and the Draft EIR recommended mitigation measures which would reduce each impact to a

less-than-significant level, the Draft EIR recommended mitigation measures which would reduce each impact to a

less-than-significant level, with no Significant and Unavoidable impacts identified with the Project; and

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2012, a Notice of Completion and Availability with copies of the Draft EIR were distributed and

circulated for a noticed 60-day public comment period to end on July 25, 2013, and 

WHEREAS, the County Zoning Administrator held a public hearing on July 15, 2013, to provide further opportunity for public

comments on the Draft EIR; and

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2013, the public review period for the Draft EIR was extended 15 days to allow additional time for

public review with a new end date of August 9, 2013; and

WHEREAS, following the close of public comment on the Draft EIR, the County prepared written responses to the comments

received and in November 2013, the County as required by CEQA, State, and County CEQA Guidelines, published the Response

to Comments known as the Final Environmental Impact Report (“Final EIR”) which incorporates the Draft EIR and provides

master responses and reasoned responses to all the comments received during the comment period including minor changes or

additions to the Draft EIR; and

WHEREAS, at a public meeting on, Monday, November 18, 2013, the County Zoning Administrator recommended certification

of the 2013 Final EIR finding it to be adequate and complete; and

WHEREAS, after notice having been fully given, a public hearing was scheduled before the County Planning Commission on,

Tuesday, November 19, 2013, for the 2013 Final EIR, during which the Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated

all the testimony and evidence submitted in this matter, including the Environmental Impact Report, approved the project as

contained in its Resolution No. 19-2013; and

WHEREAS, on November 25 and December 2 of 2013, the Department of Conservation and Development, Community



Development Division received two appeals citing numerous objections to the Final EIR’s analysis and conclusions; and

WHEREAS, after notice have been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled before the Board of Supervisors on Tuesday,

January 21, 2014. The Board continued this item to April 1, 2014, June 3, 2014, September 23, 2014, and December 16, 2014,

with direction to work with the Air District and recirculate portions of the environmental document, and

WHEREAS, on October of 21, 2014, the Recirculated Notice of Completion and Availability was distributed and circulated for a

45-day public comment period ending on December 5, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the County Zoning Administrator held a public hearing for the Recirculated Draft EIR on November 17, 2014, to

provide further opportunity for public comments on the Recirculated Draft EIR; and

WHEREAS, the public review period for the Recirculated Draft EIR ended on December 5, 2014, with no extension granted; and

WHEREAS, following the close of public comment on the Recirculated Draft EIR, the County prepared written responses to the

comments received and in January 2015, the County as required by CEQA, State, and County CEQA Guidelines, published the

Response to Comments known as the Recirculated Final Environmental Impact Report (“Recirculated Final EIR”) which

incorporates the Recirculated Draft EIR and provides master responses and reasoned responses to all the comments received

during the comment period including minor changes or additions to the Recirculated Draft EIR; and

WHEREAS, at a public meeting on, Monday, February 2, 2015, the County Zoning Administrator recommended certification of

the 2015 Recirculated Final EIR finding it to be adequate and complete; and

WHEREAS, the public hearing before the Board of Supervisors will be given on Tuesday, February 3, 2015, whereas all

interested persons therein might appear and be heard.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors (“the Board”) takes the following actions: 

ACCEPT the County Zoning Administrator’s recommendation to certify with respect to portions of the 2013 Final EIR

and the entire 2015 Recirculated Final EIR.

A.

ACCEPT the County Planning Commission’s recommendations with respect to the 2013 Final EIR and Project as outlined

in County Planning Commission Resolution No. 19-2013.

B.

C. CERTIFY that this Board considered portions of the contents of the 2013 Final EIR and the entire 2015 Recirculated Final EIR prior to making a decision on the Project. 

CERTIFY portions of the 2013 Draft and Final EIR and the entire 2015 Recirculated Final EIR for the Phillips 66 Propane

and Additional Butane Recovery project, finding it to be adequate and complete, finding that it has been prepared in

compliance with CEQA (Public Resource Code 210000-21177), the State CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs., Title 14,

Section 15000-15387) and the County CEQA Guidelines, and finding it reflects the County’s independent judgment and

analysis, and specifying that the Community Development Division is the custodian of the documents and other material

which constitutes the record of proceedings upon which this decision is based.

D.

ADOPTS the CEQA Findings that address environmental impacts and mitigation measures, and ADOPTS the Mitigation

Monitoring and Reporting Program in the 2015 Recirculated Final EIR.

E.

APPROVES the proposed Land Use Permit, County File #LP12-2073, based on the CEQA Findings, Growth Management

Standards and Land Use Permit Findings subject to the Conditions of Approval and Mitigation Measures.

F.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the reasons for these recommendations are as follows: 

PROJECT FINDINGS 

CEQA FindingsA.

1. Introduction: The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors adopts the following findings for certification of the 2013 Environmental Impact Report and 2015 Recirculated

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and approval of the Propane Recovery Project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, California Public Resources Code, Sections

21000, et seq. the Guidelines for Implementation of CEQA, Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Sections 15000, et seq. (CEQA Guidelines) and the County’s CEQA

Guidelines. 

Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, no public agency shall approve and

carry out a project where an EIR has been certified, which identifies one or more significant impacts on the environment that

would occur if the project is approved, unless the public agency makes one or more findings for each of those significant

impacts, accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale for each finding. The possible findings, which must be supported by

substantial evidence in the record, are:

a. Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project that mitigate or avoid the significant impact on



the environment. b. Changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and have been,

or can and should be, adopted by that other agency. c. Specific economic, legal, social, technological or other considerations make

infeasible the mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the EIR.

For those significant impacts that cannot be mitigated to below a level of significance, the public agency is required to find that

specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological or other benefits of the project outweigh the significant impacts of the

project. The Propane Recovery Project did not present any significant impacts that cannot be mitigated below or to a

less-than-significant impact level.

2. Project and EIR: The project proposes refinery processing equipment improvements to recover for sale additional amounts of

propane and butane from refinery fuel gas (RFG) and other process streams; and to decrease sulfur dioxide (SO 2) emissions

from the refinery as a result of removing sulfur compounds from RFG streams. The proposed project would add and modify

processing and ancillary equipment within the Phillips 66 Rodeo refinery in Contra Costa County.

The proposed project would add: 1) a hydrotreater, 2) new fractionation columns to recover propane and butane, 3) six propane

storage vessels and treatment facilities, 4) two new rail spurs, and 5) the removal of two 265-foot heater stacks. To provide the

steam required by the project, either a new 140 million BTU/hr steam boiler would be added or more steam would be provided

by the existing steam power plant if the new boiler were not built. There would also be minor modifications to existing process

units and utility systems for the purpose of tie-ins and to address any changes in operating pressure or temperature at the tie-in

points. The project also would require hydrotreating a portion of the RFG, a process that would reduce the amount of sulfur in the

fuel gas, and because fuel gas is now burned to produce heat for refinery processes, it would ultimately reduce the refinery’s SO2 
emissions within the atmosphere.

The project would be built in two phases. The first phase (Phase I) would include all project components except propane storage

and the additional rail loading rack and spurs. During the second phase (Phase II), the facilities to store and ship propane would

be added along with the piping and other ancillary equipment necessary to get the propane from the Propane/Butane Recovery

Unit to the storage vessels and loading racks. 

The Department of Conservation and Development determined that an EIR was required for the project. Accordingly, the

County, as lead agency for this Project, distributed a Notice of Preparation on July 24, 2012. The Draft Environmental Impact

Report (“Draft EIR”), State Clearinghouse Number 2012072046, was released for public review on June 10, 2013, and on

October 21, 2014, for the recirculated Draft EIR. The initial public comment period was scheduled for 45 days and was extended

an additional 15 days, ending on August 9, 2013. The public comment period for the recirculation Draft EIR was scheduled for

45-days ending on December 5, 2014. A public hearing before the Zoning Administrator to receive comments on the 2013 Draft

EIR was held on July 15, 2013, and on November 17, 2014, for the recirculated Draft EIR. The Final Environmental Impact

Report (“Final EIR”) was published and distributed in November 2013, and in January of 2015, for the recirculated Final EIR.

The Zoning Administrator held a hearing on November 18, 2013, and February 2, 2015, and recommended certification of both

the 2013 EIR and 2015 recirculated EIR. 

The 2013 EIR, as referenced in these findings, includes the Draft EIR (and its appendices) as supplemented and revised by the

Final EIR, and the Final EIR (and its appendices). The Final EIR contains EIR Text Revisions (Chapter 4) that restates and

revises some text, figures and tables of the Draft EIR. When these findings refer to sections, tables, figures or text of the EIR, and

unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, reference is being made to the 2015 recirculated Draft and Final EIR which

includes updates to several EIR sections as identified within Chapter 1 of the recirculated Draft EIR. 

The 2013 EIR and the 2015 recirculated EIR identify potentially significant environmental impacts that would occur if the

project were implemented, and feasible mitigation measures would reduce all of the potentially significant impacts to

less-than-significant levels. The EIRs provide a comprehensive analysis of the project’s impacts, and cumulative impacts to

which the project would contribute. The EIRs include responses to all written and oral comments received during the comment

period, and provide adequate, good faith, and reasoned responses to all comments raising significant environmental issues. The

EIRs also address a reasonable range of alternatives. Evidence regarding the range of alternatives, and the evidence indicating

that off-site and reduced development alternatives were not studied in detail, because they would not achieve most of the project

objectives, are in the EIRs and in the record. The Board adopts the analysis and conclusions of the EIRs and bases its decision

upon the evidence referenced in the EIRs and their appendices.

The comprehensive analysis within the EIRs provides the Board with the necessary information required by the California

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to properly analyze and evaluate any and all of the potential environmental impacts of the

Project.

Certification of EIR



The Board finds that both EIRs have been completed in compliance with CEQA; that the Board reviewed and considered the

information contained in the EIRs prior to approving the project; and the EIRs reflect the County’s independent judgment and

analysis.

Recirculation 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15088.5 requires a lead agency to recirculate an EIR for further review and comment when significant

new information is added to the EIR after public notice is given of the availability of the Draft EIR but before certification of the

Final EIR. New information added to an EIR is not significant unless the EIR is changed in a way that deprives the public of a

meaningful opportunity to comment upon a substantial adverse environmental effect of the project or a feasible way to mitigate

or avoid such an effect that the project proponent declines to implement. The Guidelines provide examples of significant new

information under this standard, which involve evidence of a new or more severe significant impact, all as more specifically set

forth in the EIR. 

On June 3, 2014, the Board provided direction to the staff of the Department of Conservation and Development to work with the

Air District and recirculate portions of the 2013 Draft EIR given the issues raised by the request to prepare a community health

risk assessment and provide meaningful opportunity for public review.

The Board recognizes that the 2015 recirculated Final EIR incorporates information obtained since the 2013 Draft EIR was

completed, and contains additions, clarifications, modifications, and other changes. Various minor changes and edits have been

made to the mitigation measures, text, tables and figures of the recirculated Draft EIR, as described in the recirculated Final EIR.

Information that confirms the conclusions of the recirculated Draft EIR has been provided in response to comments, and

mitigation measures have been edited for clarity, feasibility, and to strengthen them. With respect to this information, the Board

adopts the conclusions and analysis of the recirculated EIR based upon the evidence to which the EIR refers. This information

confirms and provides additional support for the conclusions of the 2013 Draft EIR and the recirculated Draft EIR, and further

confirms that impacts will remain less-than-significant. 

Based on the foregoing, and having reviewed the information contained in the EIRs and in the documents comprising the

administrative record, the Board finds that no additional significant new information has been added since public notice was

given of the availability of the 2014 recirculated Draft EIR that would require another recirculation.

Differences of Opinion Regarding Environmental Analysis 

In making its determination to certify the 2013 Final EIR and the 2015 recirculated Final EIR and to approve the project, the

Board recognizes that the project involves controversial environmental issues and that a range of technical and scientific opinion

exists with respect to those issues. The Board has acquired an understanding of the range of this technical and scientific opinion

by its review of the 2013 Draft EIR and 2015 recirculated Draft EIR, the comments received on both the 2013 and 2015

recirculated Draft EIR and the responses to those comments in the Final EIRs, as well as other testimony, letters, and reports

submitted for the record. The Board recognizes that some of the comments submitted on the EIRs, and at the hearing, disagree

with the conclusions, analysis, methodology and factual bases stated in the EIRs. The EIRs were prepared by experts, and that

some of these comments were from experts, thus creating a disagreement among experts. In turn, this understanding has enabled

the Board to make its decisions after weighing and considering the various viewpoints on these important issues. 

Impact Conclusions and Mitigation Measures

The summary of impacts, mitigation measures, and resulting levels of significance within the recirculated EIR is a part of

Appendix D to these findings and incorporated herein by reference. The mitigation monitoring and reporting program provides a

summary description of each impact, describes the applicable mitigation measures identified in the recirculated EIR and adopted

by the Board, and states the Board’s findings on the significance of each impact after imposition of the adopted mitigation

measures. A full explanation of these environmental findings and conclusions can be found in the recirculated Draft EIR. The

Board adopts, and incorporates the analysis and explanation in the recirculated EIR, adopts in these findings the determinations

and conclusions of the recirculated EIR relating to environmental impacts and mitigation measures. These findings are based

upon the evidence contained in and referenced in the 2013 Draft EIR, recirculated Draft EIR, in staff reports, in the submittals

from the applicant, and on the record as a whole.

The Mitigation, Monitoring Reporting Program [MMRP] within the recirculated Draft EIR as Appendix D is hereby adopted by

the Board, and is incorporated into these findings. The mitigation measures will reduce or avoid the potentially significant and

significant impacts of the project to less-than-significant levels, and will reduce some less-than-significant impacts as well. In

adopting these mitigation measures, the Board intends to adopt each of the mitigation measures identified by the recirculated

EIR. Accordingly, in the event a mitigation measure recommended in the recirculated EIR has inadvertently been omitted, such

mitigation measure is hereby adopted and incorporated in these findings by reference. In addition, in the event the language



describing a mitigation measure set forth fails to accurately reflect the substance of the mitigation measures in the recirculated

EIR due to a clerical error, the language of the mitigation measure as set forth in the recirculated EIR shall control, unless the

language of the mitigation measure has been specifically and expressly modified by these findings. Some language has been

modified to reflect County practices and procedures regarding department approval processes, and to reflect technical details of

the project that do not substantively affect the mitigation of impacts. 

The Board finds that changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially

lessen the significant environmental effects on the environment. As shown in the MMRP Appendix D of the recirculated Draft

EIR, primary responsibility for implementation, monitoring and enforcement of all mitigation measures lies with the County.

Other agencies may play a role in approving the project. For example, there may be consultation with the Regional Water Quality

Control Board regarding storm water plans and other water quality aspects of the project, and resource agencies may become

involved should any resource issues need their input as a result of the project.

Some of the EIR’s mitigation measures were modified in response to such comments. Other comments requested minor

modifications in mitigation measures identified in the recirculated Draft EIR, requested mitigation measures for impacts that

were less-than-significant, or requested additional mitigation measures for impacts as to which the recirculated Draft EIR

identified mitigation measures that would reduce the identified impact to a less-than-significant level; these requests are declined

as unnecessary. The alternative and additional mitigation measures are not necessary to reduce impacts to a less-than-significant

level, and some purported to address an impact that was not potentially significant. With respect to the additional measures

suggested by commenters that were not added to the recirculated EIR, the Board adopts the reasons set forth in the responses to

comments contained in the EIRs as its grounds for not including the adoption of these mitigation measures.

3. The various documents and other materials constitute the record upon which the Board bases these findings and the approvals

contained herein. These findings cite specific pieces of evidence, but none of the Board’s findings are based solely on those

pieces of evidence. These findings are adopted based upon the entire record, and the Board intends to rely upon all supporting

evidence in the record for each of its findings. 

B. Growth Management Performance Standards

1. Traffic: A traffic impact analysis was prepared for the Propane Recovery Project which suggested mitigation measures that, if

implemented, would reduce any potential impacts on traffic during construction of the project to less-than-significant levels. The

project was also reviewed by the Public Works Department and Caltrans for impacts on traffic and circulation, and is subject to

compliance with their conditions of approval and the mitigation measures required and identified within the 2013 Final

Environmental Impact Report. Therefore, the proposed project will not have an adverse impact on traffic in the area.

2. Water: The refinery currently receives approximately 3,000 gallons per minute of fresh water from the East Bay Municipal

Utility District (EBMUD). Implementation of the project would require an increase in fresh water by approximately 20 gallons

per minute. The additional fresh water required for the proposed project would be available from EBMUD’s existing

entitlements. The additional water supply required during project construction would be only a small, temporary increment as

compared to existing and proposed water usage.

3. Sewage Disposal: Although the refinery lies within the Rodeo Sanitary District's service area, the refinery collects, treats, and

discharges all wastewater and storm water to its own on-site wastewater treatment system. Since the refinery does not discharge

to the public wastewater treatment facilities, the capacity of the Rodeo Sanitary District's wastewater treatment facility would be

unaffected by the project. The refinery currently discharges approximately 2.8 million gallons per day of wastewater to the

on-site treatment plant, but it has the ability to treat up to 10 million gallons per day. The project would increase wastewater flows

to the refinery’s treatment plant by 0.03 million gallons per day, well below the plant’s 10-million-gallon maximum treatment

capacity. Thus, the refinery has the capacity to treat the additional wastewater flow. 

4. Fire Protection: The refinery is licensed by the State Fire Marshal to provide its own fire protection. The refinery is part of a

Mutual Aid Organization, which is composed of more than half a dozen refineries that agree to provide one another with

emergency response resourced in the event of a major emergency. The Rodeo-Hercules Fire District could also provide

emergency services to the refinery; however, the Rodeo-Hercules Fire District would be supported by the Pinole Fire

Department, the Crockett-Carquinez Fire District, and the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District in the event that major

assistance was needed at the refinery. Implementation of the Propane Recovery Project is not expected to require additional

support from public fire protection agencies.

5. Public Protection: The Growth Management Element standard is 155 square feet of Sheriff’s facility/station area and support

facilities for every 1,000 member of the population. The Small population increase associated with this project is not considered

significant, because the project would create temporary new jobs and only two permanent jobs. Any population growth resulting

from the new permanent job positions would be insignificant and positive to the economy and would not impact the County’s



from the new permanent job positions would be insignificant and positive to the economy and would not impact the County’s

ability to achieve the performance standard.

6. Parks and Recreation: The implementation of the project could possibly induce population growth and ancillary use by

employees of nearby facilities due to the increase in employment opportunities. However, any population growth induced will not

have a major cumulative effect on the demand for park and recreation facilities and is not subject to payment of park dedication

fees.

7. Flood Control and Drainage: The proposed project elements would all be constructed within the previously-developed areas,

where storm water and runoff is controlled and treated on-site before discharge. Therefore, drainage patterns would not be altered

by the proposed project.

C. Land Use Permit Findings

1. That the proposed conditional land use shall not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare of the county.

Project Finding: All significant environmental impacts of the Propane Recovery Project as identified in the 2013 Final EIR and

the 2015 recirculated Final EIR, including Air Quality and emissions associated with construction and operational activities will

be reduced to less-than-significant levels after the implementation of mitigation measures. Further, the reduction of sulfur dioxide

(SO2) is an environmental benefit. Therefore, based on the forgoing, the Propane Recovery Project will not be detrimental to

health, safety, and general welfare of the County.

2. That the proposed conditional land use shall not adversely affect the orderly development of property within the county.

Project Finding: The refinery is approximately 1,100 acres in size and is located in the unincorporated area of Rodeo in Contra

Costa County. Interstate Highway 80 (I-80) bisects the refinery in a northeast to southwest direction. All elements of the Propane

Recovery Project would be located on about one acre within the existing boundaries of the 495-acre portion of refinery property

already developed for refining operations. All elements of the project will be within the portion of the lands designated for Heavy

Industry use by the County General Plan and zoned Heavy Industrial (“H-I”) under the Contra Costa County Ordinance Code.

Pursuant to these designations, oil refining and other manufacturing operations are allowed and are permitted uses, respectively.

Based on the foregoing, the Propane Recovery Project will not adversely affect the orderly development of property with the

County.

3. That the proposed conditional land use shall not adversely affect the preservation of property values and the protection of

the tax base within the county.

Project Finding: The refinery has been in operation at its current location since 1896. The proposed project will be situated on

approximately one acre located throughout the 495-acre portion of the refinery property already developed for refining

operations. The proposal will not change the refinery’s current land use, nor will it be inconsistent with the present industrial uses

in the vicinity of the refinery, including those conducted at the PG&E substation, the Shore Terminal (formerly NuStar) facility,

and the Rodeo Sanitary District. The refinery also consists of approximately 600 acres of undeveloped land, a portion of which is

used by the refinery as a buffer zone to limit potential impact of the refining operations on non-industrial land uses located in the

refinery’s general vicinity.

The construction and operation of the proposal will result in the hiring of temporary and permanent employees at the refinery.

Further, implementation of the Propane Recovery Project would increase the assessed value of the refinery property, which

would expand the County’s tax base. The proposal will not adversely affect the preservation of property values and the protection

of the tax base within the County.

4. That the proposed conditional land use shall not adversely affect the policy and goals as set by the general plan.

Project Finding: The proposed project is consistent with the overall goals and policies of the General Plan. The Land Use

Element supports petroleum processing and refining within the Heavy Industrial Districts. The project meets the Growth

Management Performance Standards section of the General Plan, and all potentially significant impacts on Air Quality, Cultural

Resources, Noise, and Transportation & Traffic will be mitigated to less-than-significant levels. The mitigations as set forth in the

2015 recirculated Final Environmental Impact Report will protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the public.

5. That the proposed conditional land use shall not create a nuisance and/or enforcement problem within the neighborhood or

community.

Project Finding: The proposal to be constructed will be located on land designated Heavy Industry by the General Plan and

zoned H-I by the County Ordinance Code. Industrial operations have occurred throughout the refinery property for many years.

The residential development of Bayo Vista and the community of Rodeo are located south of the refinery. The refinery maintains



The residential development of Bayo Vista and the community of Rodeo are located south of the refinery. The refinery maintains

an open space buffer zone between the oil processing areas and the closest sensitive receptors. The Shore Terminal is located

directly to the north of the refinery, with the community of Tormey and Crockett as the closest neighborhoods in this direction;

however, topographically these communities are physically separated from the refinery by rolling hills. The refinery abuts the

San Pablo Bay to the west, with land designated by the General Plan as Open space (OS) to the east.

Airborne emissions of certain gasses do have the ability to produce odors, which can result in public nuisances and complaints

from residential communities. As discussed within the 2013 Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) in Chapter 2—Master

Responses on page 2-10, the refinery and the communities continue to work on a fence line monitoring system, as required as

part of a previous land use permit. The Propane Recovery Project appears unlikely to result in an increase of odorous emissions,

as certain equipment and technology are anticipated to be installed and/or used as part of the fence line monitoring system.

The Noise Element of the General Plan does contain land use compatibility standards for noise which are intended to limit the

noise impacts. Noise from operation of the Propane Recovery Project was determined to be 44 decibels from 2,300 feet (the

distance to the closest residential receptors), which would be less than the County exterior day-night noise level threshold of 60

decibels. As set forth in the Final EIR, any noise impacts from construction will be mitigated to less-than-significant levels.

Temporary traffic impacts for the construction of the proposed project would be the most likely potential source of

project-related nuisances in the vicinity of the refinery. These traffic impacts will be mitigated to less-than-significant levels by

the implementation of Mitigation Measures, which include the requirement of traffic control plans and prescribed

construction-traffic routes. Therefore, the proposal will not create a nuisance and/or enforcement problem within the

neighborhood or community.

6. That the proposed conditional land use shall not encourage marginal development within the neighborhood.

Project Finding: The Propane Recovery Project will be located in areas zoned H-I under the County Ordinance Code and

designated Heavy Industry in the County General Plan. Most of the undeveloped land adjacent to the 495-acre developed portion

of the refinery is maintained by Phillips 66 as open space to serve as a buffer between refining operations and the adjacent

non-industrial land uses. The areas to the north and southwest are already developed for industrial use. The refinery will not alter

its use of the buffer zone. The proposal is intended to recover and sell the excess propane, which is a byproduct that is already

produced at the refinery during the refining process and but not sold, but is rather burned as processing fuel in the refinery fuel

gas. This project will maintain the existing land use in a manner that will ensure its continued ability to meet future demands. The

proposal will not encourage marginal development within the neighborhood.

7. That special conditions or unique characteristics of the subject property and its location or surroundings are established.

Project Finding: The Phillips 66 Rodeo refinery has existed in its present location for more than 100 years and is one of the few

areas in the County suitable for the proposed project. The project areas are zoned Heavy Industrial District (H-I) by the County

Ordinance Code. This designation allows a permitted use of oil refining and other manufacturing operations. The project will not

result in any changes in the existing use of the refinery in that propane and butane are both already produced at the facility.

The location and custodian of the documents and materials that comprise the record is Contra Costa County, Department of

Conservation and Development, 30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA, 94553, telephone (925) 674-7205.

Contact:  Lashun Cross 925 674-7786

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Acknowledge that the Health Services Department has reviewed the adopted Mental Health Services Act

(MHSA) three year plan and concluded that $2.25 million can be redirected to alternative programs.

1.

Authorize the implementation of Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) under Laura’s Law and direct that no

voluntary programs serving adults, and no children’s mental health programs may be reduced as a result of

implementation of Laura’s Law.

2.

Adopt Resolution No. 2015/9 to direct the implementation of Laura’s Law for a three year period and make a

finding that no voluntary mental health programs serving adults, and no children’s mental health programs,

will be reduced as a result of implementing Laura’s Law.

3.

Direct the Health Services Department to return to the Board with an amendment to the three year MHSA Plan

after soliciting the required community input.

4.

Affirm that the Laura’s Law implementation is to be a three year term project; continuance to be contingent

upon demonstration of the efficacy of court ordered out-patient treatment.

5.

Acknowledge a potential unfunded financial liability to continue housing subsidies for individuals who have

transitioned into lower levels of care but are still in need of housing subsidies. This unknown ongoing cost

would need to be quantified and addressed.

6.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Cynthia Belon,

925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Warren Hayes,   Patrick Godley,   Cynthia Belon   

D.4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Implementation of Laura's Law in Contra Costa County



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

> 

Acknowledge the need to establish the same level and type of services for individuals who meet Laura’s Law eligibility

for court ordered treatment, but elect to voluntarily engage in services.

7.

Direct the Health Services Department to develop an evaluation design that determines the difference, if any, in program

impact and cost savings to the County for individuals who are ordered to participate in services versus those individuals

who voluntarily participate in the same level and type of services.

8.

Direct the Health Services Department to develop a program design with stakeholder participation, and comply with

MHSA statutory requirements for a community program planning process.

9.

Direct the Health Services Department to pursue any available grant funding to offset the cost of implementing and

sustaining the AOT Program.

10.

Acknowledge that Laura's Law has a sunset provision and will expire on January 1, 2017, and, in the unlikely event the

legislation is not extended as it has been in the past, the matter will be brought back to the Board of Supervisors for

further consideration.

11.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Health Services Mental Health:

No County General Fund impact; $2.25 million MHSA funding is contained within the Health Services Department. Due to

the implementation of the Affordable Care Act, the Health Services Department has been able to project downward the total

MHSA funds actually needed to sustain Behavioral Health Services staffing costs at the newly opened Cynthia and George

Miller Wellness Center (MWC). The MHSA Three Year Plan is now determined to be able to accommodate $2.25 million of

additional programming per year for the next three years without reducing existing voluntary mental health program services.

Public Defender:

Assuming that Laura's Law clients would require a similar level of involvement by the Public Defender as current Lanterman

Petris Short (LPS) conservatorship cases, it is anticipated that a similar level of staffing would be needed once the program is

fully operational. A total cost of approximately $133,500 in County General Funds is estimated for one part-time Public

Defender III positions and a part-time Legal Assistant position. The Department would need to monitor the workload and

make adjustments either up or down after the first year.

County Counsel:

County Counsel has estimated that they will need approximately $157,000 to implement Laura's Law to fund one half-time

Senior Deputy County Counsel and one half-time Senior Clerk position. These costs would be charged back to the Health

Services Department. County Counsel tasks will include determination of whether the AOT criteria are met, and the

preparation, filing and serving of the petition. The Department would need to monitor the workload and make adjustments

either up or down after the first year.

Superior Court:

The Court has provided an estimated cost of $128,000 based on 1.5 positions required to support the estimated workload

associated with 37 cases as an extension of the current LPS court calendar. The Court has indicated that actual costs may be

less but until the program is implemented, a more accurate estimate is not possible.



BACKGROUND:

Summary:

On October 7, 2014 the Board of Supervisors (BOS) considered the report from the Contra Costa Health Services Assisted

Outpatient Treatment (AOT) Workgroup. The BOS expressed its intention to implement an involuntary assisted outpatient

treatment program (also known as AB 1421, or Laura’s Law), and instructed the County Administrator’s Office (CAO) and

Health Services Department to provide additional information in preparation for a January 2015 BOS meeting. Key to the

additional information requested was to address whether the BOS could make a finding that no voluntary programs would be

reduced as a result of implementing Laura’s Law.

On October 28, 2014 the BOS considered and adopted the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Three-Year Program and

Expenditure Plan (Three Year Plan), and directed the Health Services Director to initiate a process to achieve a structurally

balanced program budget by the beginning of Fiscal Year 2017-18. They also directed the County Administrator and Health

Services Director to report to the BOS at their January 2015 meeting whether current MHSA funds would be available to

implement Laura’s Law, and what impact this would have on the County’s existing voluntary mental health program services.

Accordingly, the Health Services Department has reviewed all elements of the three year MHSA budget to identify areas that

need to be updated or modified. The MHSA budget for the Miller Wellness Center was established prior to the implementation

of the Affordable Care Act (ACA) on January 1, 2014. The budget assumed normal start-up costs, Medi-Cal billings, and a

large percentage of uninsured "Short-Doyle or Basic Health Care" individuals. While the psychiatric portion of the Center has

not yet opened, the Health Services Department now has a year of experience with the ACA in other patient care settings. It is

clear that the uninsured patient percentage throughout the Department has been drastically reduced over the last year as a

result of individuals obtaining health care coverage through the ACA. Accordingly, the Department concludes that the

2015/16 MHSA budget of $2,750,000 for the Miller Wellness Center is outdated and can safely be reduced to $500,000 with

no impact on the current program design.

The Health Services Department has determined and previously reported that for the next three year period projected MHSA

revenues would not keep pace with the projected MHSA budget. This imbalance is due to the expenditure of surplus funds

generated from prior periods being used for current period programs. This apparent structural imbalance would eventually

exhaust unspent funds from previous years, and would necessitate the modification of programs funded by the MHSA

sometime in fiscal year 2018/19 or after. An in-depth program review of the effectiveness of all MHSA funded program is

on-going. Programs will be adjusted over time, based upon the evaluated program outcomes, to accommodate available

funding. Periodic reports and adjustments may be made as circumstances dictate.

Background Detail:

What is Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT)?1.

AOT is civil court ordered mental health treatment for persons with serious mental illness who demonstrate that they are

resistant to voluntarily participating in services that have been offered. Treatment is provided in the community on an

outpatient basis, and AB 1421, or Laura’s Law, has based its minimum required treatment standards on the Assertive

Community Treatment (ACT) model. ACT is intensive and highly integrated outpatient treatment for individuals whose

symptoms of mental illness result in serious functioning difficulties in several major areas of life, often including work,

social relationships, residential independence, money management, and physical health and wellness. An experienced,

highly qualified multidisciplinary team consisting of a psychiatrist, nurse, mental health clinicians, peer providers, and

other rehabilitation professionals provide 24/7 mobile, out of office interventions with a low participant to staff ratio.

ACT is an evidence based practice that is cited by AB 1421 as having been proven to be effective.

Who would be eligible for AOT?2.

Laura’s Law, or AB 1421 defines eligibility as adults who suffer from a serious mental illness, 1) are unlikely to survive

safely in the community without supervision, 2) have a history of lack of compliance with treatment, 3) due to their

mental illness have either been hospitalized or incarcerated at least twice within the last 36 months, or have committed

one or more acts of serious and violent behavior toward him/herself within the last 48 months, 4) have been offered

treatment commensurate with an ACT level of care but have continued to fail to engage in treatment, 5) whose condition

is substantially deteriorating, 6) participation in treatment would be the least restrictive placement necessary to ensure

the person’s recovery and stability, 7) the person is in need of the treatment in order to prevent further deterioration that

would likely result in grave disability or serious harm to him/herself, or to others, 8) would likely benefit from

treatment.



How many individuals would meet these eligibility criteria?3.

Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services staff estimate that at any given time approximately 37 individuals would meet

the criteria for AOT, and an equal number of individuals would meet the same level of severity but who would likely

participate voluntarily in services.

Are Counties required to provide AOT?4.

No. AB 1421, first enacted in 2002, stipulates that Counties may choose to provide AOT by means of authorization from

their Board of Supervisors.

Why should a County choose to provide AOT?5.

Proponents, primarily led by parents of adult children who are seriously mentally ill, cite the following reasons:

Individuals who are gravely disabled by mental illness deny or are not aware of the seriousness of their condition.

Consequently, they tend to continue to deteriorate, refuse treatment, and inevitably cause serious harm to

themselves, their loved ones, and the community. Enacting Laura’s Law breaks that cycle by ensuring the “right

to care”, and mandating treatment until they can achieve sufficient self-awareness to appropriately make best use

of treatment.

Use of the court system ensures that the behavioral health system is accountable to provide the right level of

treatment for individuals who are currently cycling through psychiatric emergency responses.

Enacting Laura’s Law saves the County money by replacing repeated high-cost psychiatric emergency and

in-patient hospitalizations with lower-cost out-patient, community-based treatment.

Enacting Laura’s Law saves lives by providing intervention for people who are disproportionately at risk for

homelessness, violence, incarceration and death.

Why should a County choose not to provide AOT?6.

Opponents, primarily led by consumers with adverse experience with forced treatment, cite the following reasons:

Implementing Laura’s Law does not provide sufficient protection against potential abuse of the process of

involuntary commitment; such as non-mental health professionals initiating the process of forcibly removing

someone for evaluation, even if that person has not violated the law.

Forcible removal of a person from the community by law enforcement can be dangerous, is damaging to the

individual, furthers the stigma experienced by people who have a mental illness, and compromises a client’s right

to confidentiality.

Out-patient treatment ordered by a civil court has not been proven to be effective long term, and can undermine the

powerful positive effects of a provider/client relationship and family/community support built on mutual trust and

partnership. Quality, voluntary treatment appropriately applied to a person’s unique strengths and limitations has

been proven to be effective for persons who are seriously disabled by the effects of mental illness.

Implementing Laura’s Law is expensive in an already underfunded public mental health and County court system.

What are other counties doing regarding implementation of Laura’s Law?7.

From a total of 61 possible responses, 46 jurisdictions completed a recent survey, with Contra Costa staff selectively

following up for further clarification and analysis.

26 are not implementing Laura’s Law. Nine Counties have decided not to implement Laura’s Law, but have or are

enhancing their voluntary services for the most severely disabled by establishing programs that meet the

minimum standards for ACT level of services (includes Alameda County). Reasons given for not implementing

Laura’s Law:

o Added voluntary services (usually modeled after ACT) address this population

o Lack of funding

o Court systems are not capable of handling the increased workload

o Board of Supervisors voted no 

13 are considering implementation, to include Contra Costa County.

Five have voted to implement, but have not yet started (Los Angeles, Orange, San Francisco, Placer, Mendocino).



One county, Yolo, has just started a pilot project for up to five individuals to be added on to an existing ACT

Team.

One county, Nevada, reports that they have served 5-10 individuals per year since 2008. They contract out their

program to Turning Point at a treatment cost of $20,000 per person. They estimate that the County saves $1.81 for

every dollar they spend on this program. Funding source for treatment is a combination of Mental Health Services

Act (MHSA), Medi-Cal and Medi-Care. Funding source for court costs are County General Fund and State

Superior Court funds.

How much could Contra Costa save by implementing Laura’s Law?8.

This is unknown. Nevada County reports costs savings (see above), but no county comparable in size to Contra Costa

has implemented Laura’s Law long enough to determine whether individuals involuntarily participating in outpatient

treatment results in either reduced public mental health costs or an overall reduction in public costs incurred by these

individuals. The analysis that resulted in an estimate of potentially 37 individuals in Contra Costa being directed to AOT

also estimated that these individuals incurred approximately $1.5 million in yearly public mental health costs associated

with psychiatric emergency responses. Primary care and criminal justice costs are unknown.

A rigorous research design is needed, with pre- and post-intervention costs in order to determine the degree of any cost

savings.

What is the position of stakeholders in Contra Costa County?9.

Input from individuals receiving, providing, or otherwise actively engaged with public mental health services in Contra

Costa County is divided on the issue of whether to implement Laura’s Law.

On March 13, 2014 the Mental Health Commission, who provides oversight on behalf of the Board of

Supervisors, voted 8 to 1 in favor of implementing Laura’s Law, with 2 abstaining, and 2 individuals not present

to vote.

On July 15, 2014 the Assisted Outpatient Workgroup, commissioned by the Board of Supervisors’ Family and

Human Services Committee, were asked to indicate their level of support for implementing Laura’s Law. The

group did not reach a level of consensus. Of the 6 participating consumers and family members of consumers, 5

expressed support for implementing Laura’s Law, with one opposed. The remaining 15 county employees and

private provider representatives were neutral, and indicated they would support the direction of the Board of

Supervisors.

On August 7, 2014 the Consolidated Planning Advisory Workgroup, who advises the Behavioral Health Services

Director, voted 11 to 2 against implementing Laura’s Law, with 4 abstaining (county employees) and 5

individuals not present to vote.

However, there was broad consensus from the above groups and the over 500 individuals participating in the MHSA

Three Year Program and Expenditure Planning process that an intensive multi-disciplinary service response is lacking

for individuals who are most debilitated by the effects of mental illness, and who continue to cycle through the most

costly levels of care without success.

Are there legal considerations?10.

Yes.

Disability Rights California has gone on record with their opposition to AOT, and stated they will legally

challenge the implementation of Laura’s Law by Los Angeles County. The impact on other counties is unknown.

However, a representative of this statewide disability rights advocacy organization entered their opposition to

Contra Costa implementing Laura’s Law at the October 28 Board of Supervisor meeting.

Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 5348 (b) (Laura’s Law) mandates that “any county that provides assisted

outpatient treatment services pursuant to this article shall also offer the same services on a voluntary basis”.

Contra Costa County currently does not offer a voluntary program that is comparable to the minimum program

standards as specified in AB 1421. Implementing Laura’s Law would require also establishing the same services

for individuals with the same level of disability who volunteer for services.

As per Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5349, the Contra Costa Board of Supervisors would be required to

include in a resolution to implement Laura’s Law the statement that “no voluntary mental health program…may

be reduced as a result of the implementation of this article”.

How much is this MHSA structural fiscal imbalance?11.



Per the 10/28/14 Board report the MHSA fund has a balance of $49 million, which includes $7.1 million in “prudent

reserve” funds that can only be used when MHSA revenues are insufficient to fully fund existing programs. The MHSA

budget for current year ($41.6 million) is approximately $5 million more than estimated revenue ($36.9 million), and

this shortfall escalates to approximately $10 million annually thereafter. Utilizing these projections it is estimated that,

without correction, the MHSA fund balance would be exhausted in five to six years.

How close are projected revenues of the County's Mental Health Services Fund versus what is actually received?12.

Prior to the start of each fiscal year, the State Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) provides estimates to the

counties based upon input from the State Controller's Office. For the last five years actual MHSA revenues received

from the State exceeded estimates by $6.7 million, or 4.9% for the five year period. Any revenues received in excess of

the projections become part of the fund balance for the next fiscal year, and are considered in the subsequent budget

development.

Contra Costa County MHSA Revenues

(Dollars in millions)

FY09/10 FY10/11 FY11/12 FY12/13 FY13/14 Total

Contra Costa Estimated Revenue1 $31.7 $25.9 $19.3 $30.5 $30.5 $137.9 

Contra Costa Actual Revenue Received2 $30.7 $26.5 $23.2 $36.1 $28.1 $144.6 

Variance ($1.0) $0.6 $3.9 $5.6 ($2.4) $6.7 

Variance in Percent -3.2% 2.3% 20.3% 18.3% -8.0% 4.9%

Notes:

1) Contra Costa statewide percentage is 2.272674% per MHSA Distribution Ratios per State Controller's

Office.

2) Contra Costa Actual Revenue Received reflects amounts received for each program year and not actual

deposits to the Trust fund. Does not include interest earned from Trust Account.

Are there MHSA funds available in the next three years to fund the above mental health treatment program

without reducing current voluntary programs?

13.

Yes. Due to the implementation of the Affordable Care Act, the Health Services Department has been able to project

downward the total MHSA funds actually needed to sustain Behavioral Health Services staffing costs at the newly

opened Cynthia and George Miller Wellness Center (MWC). The MHSA Three Year Plan is now determined to be able

to accommodate $2.25 million of additional programming per year for the next three years without reducing existing

voluntary mental health program services.

What is recommended, given the above information and the Board of Supervisor’s direction?14.

Establish a Laura’s Law program as a three year term project, with continuance to be contingent upon

demonstration of the efficacy of court ordered out-patient treatment, as well as sufficiency of MHSA funds

available to continue the program without causing the reduction of voluntary programs. 

Design the program to concurrently establish the same level and type of services for individuals who meet Laura’s

Law eligibility for court ordered treatment, but who elect to voluntarily engage in services.

How much would it cost to implement the above recommendations?15.

Resource Development Associates (RDA), the consulting AOT Workgroup facilitator, submitted a report to the Board

of Supervisors in October that provided treatment, Superior Court, County Counsel and Public Defender cost estimates

for 37 individuals who were ordered to participate in treatment. The report also estimated mental health treatment costs

for an additional 76 individuals who voluntarily participated in full service partnerships. 

The Board then directed County administration to re-visit the program and fiscal assumptions that RDA used to arrive at

these estimates. For example, treatment and court costs were derived by accepting estimates of costs that other counties

were using for planning purposes, such as assuming a $37,500 treatment cost per individual. County staff subsequently

engaged in a “zero based budgeting” approach, in which needed line items within personnel, operating and

administrative costs were built upon minimum standards prescribed by AB 1421, as well as current staffing and

operating costs for various professional disciplines currently funded by Contra Costa County.



As a result of this subsequent analysis Behavioral Health Services staff now indicates that a mental health treatment

program meeting the minimum program standards and legal requirements specified in AB 1421 can be implemented for

$2.25 million. This treatment program can serve up to 37 court ordered individuals, and a similar number of individuals

with the same level of severity who are the subject of a petition, but who choose to volunteer for services. Thus a single

mental health treatment program could serve up to 70-75 individuals who are both court ordered and voluntary. 

Costs for non-mental health treatment participation, such as Superior Court, County Counsel, Public Defender and the

Sheriff’s Office were also subsequently reviewed. Direct Superior Court costs were revised downward to $128,000,

Public Defender costs were revised downward to $133,500, and County Counsel costs were reduced downward to

$157,000. This reduced the estimated Court, County Counsel and Public Defender costs downward to $418,500.

Additional workload and increased costs to the Sheriff’s Department are unknown. 

The following factors need to be considered regarding costs:

If MHSA funds are used as a funding source, a community program planning process is required where

stakeholder input would be solicited regarding program design. Costs could vary depending upon the program

design that results from this process.

Housing subsidies committed to and paid for during program participation would potentially be an ongoing

County financial responsibility after an individual has moved to a different level of care, as funding would need to

be secured to enable individuals to stay in their homes. This unknown ongoing cost needs to be determined as part

of the evaluation of program impact and potential cost savings.

A one-time start-up cost of up to $250,000 could be incurred prior to the start of treatment for such items as

retrofitting a facility for staff and client safety and reasonable accommodation, and one-time purchases, such as

furnishings, computers, communication equipment and vehicles.

How long would it take before a program could start?16.

It is estimated that it would take 10 months from Board resolution to start of program services. Major milestones to

accomplish would be:

Complete a community program planning process 4 months

Board approves implementing plan and authorizes budget 1 month 

Contract awarded to contract provider and/or fill county positions 3 months

Plan for program start, train staff 2 months

Total 10 months

If the Board approves Resolution No. 2015/9, attached to this Board Order, client services could start by November

2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Board does not approve the recommendations in this Board Order the status quo will be maintained.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/9 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/9

IN THE MATTER OF THE FULL IMPLEMENTATION OF “LAURA’S LAW” (ASSEMBLY BILL 1421):

“ASSISTED OUTPATIENT TREATMENT” IN CONTRA COSTA COUNTY

WHEREAS, the State of California has enacted the “Assisted Outpatient Treatment Demonstration Project Act of 2002”, known

as Laura’s Law, effective January 1, 2003 (Assembly Bill (AB) 1421, Chapter 1017, Stats. 2002); and 

WHEREAS, this legislation provides that counties which choose to implement Laura's Law will furnish assisted outpatient

treatment services for their residents who meet specified criteria; and 

WHEREAS, this legislation provides that no voluntary mental health program serving adults and no children’s mental health

program may be reduced as a result of the implementation of this program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED ACCORDINGLY BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THAT: 

The Assisted Outpatient Treatment Demonstration Project Act of 2002, known as Laura’s Law, is operative in Contra

Costa County.

1.

The Board of Supervisors finds that no voluntary mental health program serving adults and no children’s mental health

program will be reduced as a result of the expansion of assisted outpatient treatment in Contra Costa County.

2.

Contact:  Cynthia Belon, 925-957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Warren Hayes,   Patrick Godley,   Cynthia Belon   



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute an agreement with Pacific Gas and

Electric (PG&E) to establish a framework for evaluating the removal of trees as part of PG&E’s Pipeline Pathway

Project. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No Fiscal Impact. Under the agreement, PG&E agrees to reimburse the County for staff costs incurred in evaluating

PG&E’s tree removal program. 

BACKGROUND: 

In January of 2014 PG&E approached the County indicating that it was pursuing its Pipeline Pathway Project

throughout the East Bay. At that time, PG&E expected to begin this work in early spring of 2014. The project would

involve the removal of vegetation and improvements above and adjacent to PG&E’s gas transmission pipelines. We

do not have the full scope from PG&E so we cannot elaborate on the number of trees. According to PG&E, the

purpose of this proposed project is “to enhance safety by reducing risks to the integrity of the pipeline and improving

access for PG&E to do safety work.” PG&E was and still is finalizing 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Brian Balbas (925)
313-2284

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

D.5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) Pipeline Pathways Project Framework Agreement



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

the proposed vegetation impacts for various communities within unincorporated Contra Costa County; however, it

became apparent the proposed work would impact vegetation, including many large trees, in both the public Right

of Way and private property easements throughout the County.

The County, cities and the community viewed the proposed PG&E project very unfavorably. As a result a

coalition of cities and the County formed to discuss the proposed project and work with PG&E to re-examine the

project. Eventually the Contra Costa County Public Managers Association and administrators, and many City

attorneys from various jurisdictions joined to oppose the project. These actions led to PG&E “pausing” the project

and work with the coalition to determine a more workable project for all the communities in Contra Costa County.

PG&E subsequently began meeting with the Public Managers Association in an attempt to reach agreement on a

framework for moving the project forward. The attached Project Framework Agreement was a result of those

efforts. This agreement has been acted upon by many cities within Contra Costa County and PG&E has requested

that the County also act on this as the County and PG&E continue to work on the details of any work PG&E

proposes as part of the Pipeline Pathway Project. Both the County and PG&E understand the commitment to

maintaining gas pipeline integrity and safety as well as the importance of trees and landscaping to our

communities. Some of the other commitments in the attached agreement include:

1. Reevaluating all trees initially proposed for removal, upon request by the County, and only proposing the

removal of trees for which data supports safety concerns, all with a goal towards reducing the number of trees

proposed for removal. PG&E also understands that the County wants to receive all of the potential impacts for all

communities in unincorporated Contra Costa County as soon as possible for review;

2. Complying with ministerial encroachment permit procedures and requirements;

3. Identifying trees protected by local tree ordinance;

4. Mitigating for protected tree removals as mutually agreed upon by the County and PG&E;

5. Paying the costs associated with the County evaluation of work, including third party arborists and other

consultant and staff time as agreed by the County and PG&E;

6. Evaluating various specified mitigation measures that could potentially avoid the need for the tree removals;

7. Providing detailed data, as specified, to allow the County to evaluate and understand the project;

8. Conducting field reviews with the County.

The Framework Agreement does not resolve the dispute between the County and PG&E over whether PG&E is

subject to local tree removal ordinances. Instead, the Agreement is designed to develop a framework for limiting

the number of trees required for removal and to develop information for the County to carefully consider PG&E’s

tree removal requests. County staff and PG&E acknowledge that there may eventually be disputes over PG&E’s

right to remove trees. If such a dispute arises, the County and PG&E could seek legal or regulatory remedies at

that time.

At this time, staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Framework Agreement. We believe that

the commitments made by PG&E in the Framework Agreement are appropriate and that PG&E will develop the

appropriate level of data and information for the County to review as they pursue the Pipeline Pathway Project.

Staff does not believe that entering into this Framework Agreement prevents the County from enforcing its legal

rights now or in the future. Therefore staff recommendation is for the Board of Supervisors to consider this

Framework Agreement and authorize the Chair to execute it.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Framework Agreement with PG&E will not be executed.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

PG&E Agent Agreement 



PPP Framework Agreement 









1

PG&E Pipeline Pathways Project
Framework Agreement



 PG&E pursuing Pipeline Pathways Project (PPP)
 What is the issue?

 PG&E requesting a 20 foot clear zone along their pipeline pathways –
safety priority
• Tree roots cause potential damage to pipes

 What does this mean for our communities?
 Initial proposal - potential removal of a significant number 

of  trees Countywide
• including highly protected species in public Right of Way and 

private easement areas

 Initial reaction = public outcry
 Conflicts with local tree preservation ordinances

2



PG&E seeking removal of vegetation and improvements above and adjacent 
to PG&E’s gas transmission pipelines

3



 Approached problems on countywide basis 
(Contra Costa & Tri-Valley)
 Collaborative work among elected officials, legal 

counsels and city managers/staff

 PG&E ‘paused’ PPP
 Sub-committee of Public Managers Association 

negotiated Framework Agreement
 PG&E to provide countywide information and 

potential impacts to our communities

4



 Process
 Several meetings with key PG&E  leaders
 PMA reps met with PG&E
 Seeking solutions that can work for the County and 

cities
 Provided Framework Agreement 

 Agreement outlines commitments going 
forward 
 both parties’ committed to maintaining gas pipeline 

integrity and safety and to the importance of trees 
and landscaping to community character 

5



 reevaluating all trees; only 
proposing tree removal if 
data supports safety 
concerns
 goal is reduce #of trees 

removed

 complying with ministerial 
encroachment permits

 identifying trees protected 
by local ordinances

 mitigating protected tree 
removals as agreed by 
County and PG&E

 paying County costs 
associated with our 
evaluation of work

 evaluating mitigation 
measures that could 
potentially avoid tree 
removals

 providing detailed data to 
allow staff to evaluate 
and understand the 
project, and 

 conducting field reviews 
with the County

6



 Does:
 develop a framework for limiting the number of 

trees required for removal, 
 develop information for the County to carefully 

consider PG&E’s tree removal requests

 Does Not
 resolve the dispute between the County and PG&E 

over whether PG&E is subject to local tree removal 
ordinances

 If tree removal unresolved, County and PG&E can 
use legal or regulatory remedies 

7



 Approve Framework Agreement
 commitments made by PG&E in the Agreement are 

appropriate
 additional information to be developed by PG&E as 

it pursues PPP allows County to make tree removal 
decisions with better information

 Agreement does not prevent the County from 
enforcing its rights at some point in the future

 PG&E to work with County staff to review each area 
of work and communicate with District Supervisors 
and the public before pursuing work

 PG&E to provide Countywide information in Spring 
2015 before work begins in communities

8



Approve and authorize the Chair of the Board of 
Supervisors to execute the Framework Agreement 

with PG&E to establish a framework for 
evaluating the removal of trees as part of the 

PG&E Pipeline Pathway Project.

9



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/38 approving an additional extension of the current Memorandum of Understanding

between the In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) Public Authority and SEIU United Healthcare Workers West

(UHW) extending negotiated wage agreements and other economic terms and conditions of employment. The new

term of the MOU will be March 31, 2012 - April 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The extension is for time and has no fiscal impact on its own. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the In-Home Supportive Services Authority (Public Authority)

and the SEIU United Healthcare Workers West (Union) was effective from October 1, 2009 through March 31, 2012.

The Union and the Public Authority met on December 18, 2014 to discuss the possibility of extending the current

extension through April 30, 2015. Due to turnover for both negotiating teams, the parties have been unable to

schedule meetings, thereby, reducing the Union dues paid to SEIU United Healthcare Workers West. The parties

agreed to this extension and will continue to meet during the extension of the MOU. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Alvan Mangalindan, (925)
335-1786

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Haj Nahal,   Lisa Driscoll,   Jan Watson,   Alvan Mangalindan,   Glynis Hughes,   James Hicks,   Kathy Ito,   Keith Fleming,   Christine Penkala   

D.6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution No. 2015/38 Extending the Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU United Healthcare Workers West

(UHW)



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to approve this limited MOU extension will result in the providers working out of contract.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/38 

Extension of MOU 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 02/03/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

John Gioia

Candace Andersen

Mary N. Piepho

Karen Mitchoff

Federal D. Glover

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/38

In the Matter of Approving the extension of the Memorandum of Understanding between In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS)

Public Authority and SEIU United Health Care Workers West (UHW). 

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors acting solely in its capacity as governing Board of the County of Contra Costa

RESOLVES THAT:

WHEREAS this extension of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into pursuant to the authority contained in

the Division 34 of Board of Supervisors' Resolution 81/1165 and Contra Costa County Ordinance No. 98-14 and has been jointly

prepared by the parties; and WHEREAS this extension will expire April 30, 2015.

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County APPROVE the extension of the

Memorandum of Understanding between In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) Public Authority and SEIU United Healthcare

Workers West (UHW) through April 30, 2015.

Contact:  Alvan Mangalindan, (925)

335-1786

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown.

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Haj Nahal,   Lisa Driscoll,   Jan Watson,   Alvan Mangalindan,   Glynis Hughes,   James Hicks,   Kathy Ito,   Keith Fleming,   Christine Penkala   

5







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPOINT John Kopchik to the position of Director of Conservation and Development-Exempt (4AA1) at Step 3 of

the salary range, effective February 4, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The estimated annual County cost for the Conservation and Development Director position at Step 3 of the salary

range is $237,150, of which $43,420 is pension cost. The annual position cost at Step 3 is approximately $58,500 less

than the position cost at Step 5, at which the former Director retired in July 2014. The estimated cost of filling the

position for the five months remainder of fiscal year 2014/15 is $98,800, of which $28,480 is pension cost. All costs

are budgeted in the Land Development Fund. 

BACKGROUND: 

On July 10, 2014, Conservation and Development Director Catherine Kutsuris retired from her position. On June 26,

2014, the County commenced recruitment for a new Conservation and Development Director and on July 11, the

County Administrator appointed John Kopchik to serve as the Interim Conservation and Development Director

pending selection of a new Director.

The County contracted with Alliance Resource Consulting to conduct the recruitment to fill the vacancy. Alliance

advertised the position nationwide but with particular emphasis on the west coast region. Ads were placed with with

the American Planning Association, California Counties, Careers in Government, Western City and LinkedIn.

Invitations and recruitment profiles were sent to 115 potential candidates targeted by Alliance. The eight-week 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  David Twa 925-335-1080

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

D.7

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPOINTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

recruitment garnered 37 applications.

Alliance screened the applications and forwarded seven finalist candidates for interview by a County Selection

Committee on December 8. The County Selection Committee was composed of myself, Chief Assistant County

Administrator Theresa Speiker, Senior Deputy County Administrator Julie DiMaggio Enea, and Moraga Town

Manager Jill Keimach. Following a series of interviews and reference checks, I selected John Kopchik for the

position. 

Mr. Kopchik holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Environmental Science from the University of California,

Berkeley. John started with Contra Costa County 20 years ago as a Planning Intern and has held progressively

responsible positions of Assistant Planner, Associate Planner, Senior Planner, Principal Planner and Deputy

Director. 

It is recommended that Mr. Kopchik be appointed to Step 3 of the salary range to address compaction with the

salaries of the deputy directors.

ATTACHMENTS



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/32 approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to partially close

a portion of Parker Avenue between 1st Street and 6th Street, on March 14, 2015 from 9:00 a.m. through 9:30 a.m.,

for the purpose of the Annual Little League Opening Day Parade, Rodeo area. (District V) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Applicant shall follow guidelines set forth by the Public Works Department. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Applicant will be unable to close the road for planned activities. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Bob Hendry,
925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: Permit Center - B. Hendry,   Sheriff -Patrol Div. Commander   

C. 1

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Partially close a portion of Parker Avenue on March 14, 2015 for the Annual Little League Opening Day Parade,

Rodeo area. (District V)



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/32 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 02/03/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

John Gioia

Candace Andersen

Mary N. Piepho

Karen Mitchoff

Federal D. Glover

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/32

IN THE MATTER OF approving and authorizing the Public Works Director, or designee, to partially close a portion of Parker

Avenue between 1st Street and 6th Street, on March 14, 2015 from 9:00 a.m. through 9:30 a.m., for the purpose of the Annual

Little League Opening Day Parade, Rodeo area. (District V)

RC15-1

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that permission is granted to Rodeo Baseball to partially close Parker Avenue between

1st Street and 6th Street, except for emergency traffic, on March 14, 2015 for the period of 9:00 a.m. through 9:30 a.m., subject

to the following conditions:

1. Traffic will be detoured via neighboring streets per traffic control plan reviewed by Public Works.

2. All signing to be in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

3. Rodeo Baseball shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance Code of Contra Costa County.

4. Provide the County with a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.00 for Comprehensive General Public Liability

which names the County as an additional insured prior to permit issuance.

5. Obtain approval for the closure from the Sheriff’s Department, the California Highway Patrol and the Fire District. 

Contact:  Bob Hendry, 925-674-7744

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: Permit Center - B. Hendry,   Sheriff -Patrol Div. Commander   

5



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute Contract Amendment No. 1 to the

Consulting Services Agreement (CSA) with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc., effective January 6, 2015, to increase

the payment limit by $51,000 to a new payment limit of $337,000, for additional professional engineering services

for the Marsh Creek Road Bridge (Br. No. 28C-0141) Replacement Project, Clayton area. Project No.

0662-6R4079/Federal Project No. BRLS-5928(107)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This project, including the CSA, is funded by 88.53% Federal Highway Safety Improvement Program Funds and

11.47% Local Road Funds.

BACKGROUND: 

This project consists of preparing plans, specifications, and estimates, including geological and hydraulic studies for

the replacement of the Marsh Creek Road Bridge (Br. No. 28C-0141) over Marsh Creek in eastern Contra Costa

County.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Kevin Emigh,
925-313-2233

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 2

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract Amendment with Mark Thomas & Company, Inc., Clayton area.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Mark Thomas & Company, Inc., was selected to provide these services. Proposed Amendment No. 1 will amend the

payment limit of the agreement in order for the consultant to provide additional professional engineering services that

are needed for retaining wall design, additional geotechnical analysis, additional bridge type selection analysis, and a

basis of design report not included in the original scope of work.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The project would be delayed and Federal funds would be in jeopardy.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/39 accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09303, for a project

developed by Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the

Public Works Director, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact to County Funds. The funds to be released are developer fees that have been held on deposit. 

BACKGROUND: 

The developer has completed the improvements per the Subdivision Agreement, and in accordance with Title 9 of the

County Ordinance Code. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The completion of improvements will not be accepted and the warranty period will not begin. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Jocelyn A. B. LaRocque,

925-313-2315

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: Records,   Design/Construction,   Maintenance Division,   Mapping,   Engineering Services, Originator, J. A.B. LaRocque,   Public Works, Finance Division,  

City of San Ramon, C. Low,   Shapell Homes, 6800 Koll Ctr. Pkwy. Ste 320, Pton, 94588,   T - 12-10-2015,   Continental Insur. Co. 4150 N. Drinkwater Bl, Ste
410 85251-L. Stritt   

C. 3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09303, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District

II)



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/39 

Bond Rider 



Recorded at the request of: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Return To: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, ENGINEERING SERVICES

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 02/03/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:
John Gioia, District I SupervisorCandace Andersen, District II SupervisorMary N. Piepho, District III SupervisorKaren Mitchoff,

District IV SupervisorFederal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/39 

IN THE MATTER OF accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09303, for a project developed by Shapell

Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the Public Works Director, San

Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)

WHEREAS, these improvements are approximately located near Ivyleaf Springs Road.

The Public Works Director has notified this Board that the improvements in subdivision SD13-09303 have been completed as

provided in the Subdivision Agreement with Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation,

heretofore approved by this Board in conjunction with the filing of the Subdivision Map.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the improvements have been COMPLETED as of February 10, 2015, thereby,

establishing the six-month terminal period for the filing of liens in case of action under said Subdivision Agreement:

DATE OF AGREEMENT: May 6, 2014

NAME OF SURETY: The Continental Insurance Company

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the payment (labor and materials) surety for $312,500.00, Bond No. 929 582 282 issued by the

above surety be RETAINED for the six-month lien guarantee period until August 10, 2015, at which time the Board

AUTHORIZES the release of said surety less the amount of any claims on file.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Rowan Drive from Gatekeeper Road to Poinsettia Street for the hereinafter described public

improvements, as shown and dedicated for public use on the Final Map of Subdivision SD13-09303 filed May 12, 2014, in Book

520 of maps at Page 26, Official Records of Contra Costa County, State of California, are ACCEPTED AS COMPLETE.

Road Name: Rowan Drive Length (miles): 0.05 

Road/ROW Width: 36’/46’ 

Road Number: N/A 

System: MU

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon acceptance by the Board of Supervisors, the San Ramon City Council shall accept the

improvements for maintenance and ownership in accordance with the Dougherty Valley Memorandum of Understanding.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the beginning of the warranty period is hereby established, and the $7,000.00 cash deposit

(Auditor's Deposit Permit No. 647438, dated December 12, 2013) made by Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc.,

a Delaware Corporation, and the performance/maintenance surety bond rider for $92,700.00, Bond No. 929 582 282 issued by

The Continental Insurance Company be RETAINED pursuant to the requirements of Section 94 4.406 of the Ordinance Code

until release by this Board.

Contact:  Jocelyn A. B. LaRocque, 925-313-2315

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and
entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: Records,   Design/Construction,   Maintenance Division,   Mapping,   Engineering Services, Originator, J. A.B. LaRocque,   Public Works, Finance Division,  

City of San Ramon, C. Low,   Shapell Homes, 6800 Koll Ctr. Pkwy. Ste 320, Pton, 94588,   T - 12-10-2015,   Continental Insur. Co. 4150 N. Drinkwater Bl, Ste
410 85251-L. Stritt   













RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/40 accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09325, for a project

developed by Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the

Public Works Director, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact to County Funds. The funds to be released are developer fees that have been held on deposit. 

BACKGROUND: 

The developer has completed the improvements per the Subdivision Agreement, and in accordance with Title 9 of the

County Ordinance Code. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The completion of improvements will not be accepted and the warranty period will not begin. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Jocelyn A. B. LaRocque,

925-313-2315

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: Design/Construction,   Records,   Maintenance Division,   Mapping,   Engineering Services, Originator, J. A.B. LaRocque,   Public Works, Finance Division,  

City of San Ramon, C. Low,   T - 12-10-2015,   Shapell Homes, 6800 Koll Ctr. Pkwy. Ste 320, Pton, 94588,   Philadelphia Indemnity One Bala Plaza Ste 100
Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004   

C. 4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09325, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District

II)



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/40 

Bond Rider 



Recorded at the request of: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Return To: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, ENGINEERING SERVICES

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 02/03/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:
John Gioia, District I SupervisorCandace Andersen, District II SupervisorMary N. Piepho, District III SupervisorKaren Mitchoff,

District IV SupervisorFederal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/40 

IN THE MATTER OF accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09325, for a project developed by Shapell

Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, as recommended by the Public Works Director, San

Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)

WHEREAS, these improvements are approximately located near Old Dougherty Road.

The Public Works Director has notified this Board that the improvements in subdivision SD13-09325 have been completed as

provided in the Subdivision Agreement with Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation,

heretofore approved by this Board in conjunction with the filing of the Subdivision Map.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the improvements have been COMPLETED as of February 10, 2015, thereby,

establishing the six-month terminal period for the filing of liens in case of action under said Subdivision Agreement:

DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 29, 2014

NAME OF SURETY: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the payment (labor and materials) surety for $864,500.00, Bond No. PB00579800022 issued by

the above surety be RETAINED for the six-month lien guarantee period until August 10, 2015, at which time the Board

AUTHORIZES the release of said surety less the amount of any claims on file.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Poinsettia Street from Rowan Drive to Alpine Blue Drive; Sonsilla Lane from Poinsettia

Street to Parcel J; and Alpine Blue Drive from Poinsettia Street to Parcel I for the hereinafter described public improvements, as

shown and dedicated for public use on the Final Map of Subdivision SD13-09325 filed May 12, 2014, in Book 520 of maps at

Page 26, Official Records of Contra Costa County, State of California, are ACCEPTED AS COMPLETE.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Parcels A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, M, N, O and P for the hereinafter described private

roads, as shown and dedicated for private use on the Final Map of Subdivision SD13-09325 filed August 6, 2014, in Book 521 of

maps at Page 9, Official Records of Contra Costa County, State of California, have been COMPLETED and are NOT

ACCEPTED, at this time.

Road Name: Poinsettia Street from Rowan Drive to Alpine Blue Drive Length (miles): 0.19 



Road/ROW Width: 36’/46’

Road Name: Sonsilla Lane from Poinsettia Street to Parcel J Length (miles): 0.04 

Road/ROW Width: 36’/46’

Road Name: Alpine Blue Drive from Poinsettia Street to Parcel I Length (miles): 0.05 

Road/ROW Width: 36’/46’

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon acceptance by the Board of Supervisors, the San Ramon City Council shall accept the

improvements for maintenance and ownership in accordance with the Dougherty Valley Memorandum of Understanding.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the beginning of the warranty period is hereby established, and the $18,000.00 cash deposit

(Auditor's Deposit Permit No. 654114, dated March 13, 2014) made by Shapell Homes, a Division of Shapell Industries, Inc., a

Delaware Corporation, and the performance/maintenance surety bond rider for $256,650.00, Bond No. PB00579800022 issued

by Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company be RETAINED pursuant to the requirements of Section 94 4.406 of the

Ordinance Code until release by this Board.

Contact:  Jocelyn A. B. LaRocque, 925-313-2315

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and
entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: Design/Construction,   Records,   Maintenance Division,   Mapping,   Engineering Services, Originator, J. A.B. LaRocque,   Public Works, Finance Division,  

City of San Ramon, C. Low,   T - 12-10-2015,   Shapell Homes, 6800 Koll Ctr. Pkwy. Ste 320, Pton, 94588,   Philadelphia Indemnity One Bala Plaza Ste 100
Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004   













RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RECEIVE this report concerning the final settlement of Kathryn Alexander vs. County of Contra Costa; and

AUTHORIZE payment from the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund in an amount not to exceed $125,000,

less permanent disability payments. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund payment of $125,000. 

BACKGROUND: 

Attorney W. R. Thomas, defense counsel for the County, has advised the County Administrator that within

authorization an agreement has been reached settling the workers' compensation claim of Kathryn Alexander vs.

County of Contra Costa. The Board's January 19, 2015 closed session vote was: Supervisors Gioia, Andersen,

Piepho, Mitchoff and Glover - Yes. This action is taken so that the terms of this final settlement and the earlier

January 19, 2015 closed session vote of this Board authorizing its negotiated settlement are known publicly.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Case will not be settled. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Sharon Hymes-Offord
925.335.1450

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Sharon Offord Hymes, Risk Manager

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Final Settlement of Claim, Kathryn Alexander v. County of Contra Costa



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

DENY claims filed by Enterprise Rent-A-Car Claim No. 05824904, Allstate Insurance as Subrogate of Tammy

Sizemore, Roque Gonzalez and Livier Garcia, Michael Walling, Bobbi Crew, CSAA NCNU LB, and Luis Duenas.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact.

BACKGROUND: 

*

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Joellen Balbas
925.335.1906

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: claims



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Lauri, 925 957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 7

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution recognizing Dianne Wilson as the 2015 Moraga Business Person of the Year 



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/30 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/30

recognizing Dianne Wilson as the 2015 Moraga Business Person of the Year.

 

Whereas, Dianne Wilson began her career as the marketing director 14 years ago at Moraga Royale, a lovely

assisted senior living facility in the Town of Moraga; and 

  

Whereas, when Dianne started working there the occupancy rate was 78% and she built the census to 100%

occupancy almost single handedly, and was  thereafter asked to become the Executive Director; and 

  

Whereas, through Dianne’s leadership the Moraga Royale continues to have a wait list with an average wait

time of about eight months; and 

  

Whereas, Dianne is in charge of a staff of 45 and a resident population of 90 people between the ages of 68 –

102, 92% who came from the three Lamorinda towns. Dianne created the Memory Unit known as Royal

Care, and applied for a Hospice Program, assuring that residents can pass on with dignity, knowing they are

loved and never alone; and 

  

Whereas, Dianne actively supports the Moraga business community and local events through her direction

and insight for senior citizens in the area; her work shows exemplary leadership, compassion, and a high

moral standard.

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County does hereby thank Dianne Wilson for her

dedication and compassion she shows to Moraga and the surrounding communities. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Adopt Resolution No. 2015/ recognizing February as American Heart Month. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

February is American Heart Month. This resolution will encourage all residents of Contra Costa County to learn the

risks of cardiovascular disease, to stay fit through exercise and good nutrition, to know the signs of Stroke, Heart

Attack and Sudden Cardiac Arrest, to learn critical lifesaving skills such as CPR and AED use, to call 9-1-1, to Act in

Time when a cardiovascular emergency occurs and encourage all communities to become HeartSafe Communities. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

None. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Sudden cardiac arrest strikes persons of all ages. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost, 646-4690

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Leticia Andreas   

C. 8

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Recognizing February as American Heart Month



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/42 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/42

Recognizing February as American Heart Month

 

WHEREAS, the month of February has been proclaimed by the President as “American Heart Month.” 

WHEREAS, over 400,000 Americans die from heart disease each year, more than breast cancer, lung

cancer, prostate cancer and AIDS combined; and 

WHEREAS, over 92% of those suffering sudden cardiac arrest die before reaching the hospital; and 

WHEREAS, chances of survival are increased dramatically if cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) and

automated external defibrillator (AED) resources are available and utilized within the first three to seven

minutes after sudden cardiac arrest; and 

WHEREAS, the goal of American Heart Month is to raise awareness of heart disease, prevention and

treatment; and 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to increase awareness of how to prevent cardiovascular disease and the

appropriate intervention should an individual suffer from cardiovascular disease; and 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to increase awareness of the value of CPR training and encourage placement

of AEDs in public places; and 

WHEREAS, the American Heart Association and the Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Services

Agency advocate the “Chain of Survival,” which represents the five crucial links of the emergency

treatment of sudden cardiac arrest.  The links are: 

Early Access to Care  *  Early CPR  *  Early Defibrillation  * 

Effective Advanced Life Support * Integrated Post Cardiac Arrest Care 

WHEREAS, Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Services is committed to strengthening the links in

the chain of survival in the County; and supports widespread CPR training, and public access defibrillation

(PAD) and HeartSafe Community programs; and 

WHEREAS, Contra Costa County communities are working to make where their citizens live, work, shop

and play HeartSafe:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors designates February as American Heart Month,

encouraging all residents of Contra Costa County to learn the risks of cardiovascular disease, to stay fit through exercise and

good nutrition, to know the signs of Stroke, Heart Attack and Sudden Cardiac Arrest, to learn critical lifesaving skills such as

CPR and AED use, to call 9-1-1, to Act in Time when a cardiovascular emergency occurs and encouraging each community to

become a HeartSafe Community. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Laur, 925 957-8860

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 9

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution recognizing Dick Burkhalter as the 2014 Orinda Volunteer of the year



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/43 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/43

honoring Dick Burkhalter as the 2014 Orinda Volunteer of the Year.

 

Dick Burkhalter has selflessly volunteered to help the community on many fronts, from his numerous

Rotary Club activities to Orinda Community Foundation work, to driving seniors in the Orinda

Association’s Seniors Around Town program; and 

  

Whereas, Dick has always been “hands on,” generously taking the initiative, and always ready to pitch in and

help where needed; and 

  

Whereas, Dick has been active with the Orinda Rotary since 1990, he has also served with the Orinda

Community Foundation, Grandfather’s Club of America, Lamorinda Village Formation Committee, Orinda

Association Seniors Around Town, Soccer 4 All, Orinda Chamber of Commerce, Orinda Public Works

Aesthetic Review Committee and Shingletown Lions Club; and 

  

Whereas, Dick has traveled extensively on behalf of Orinda Rotary supporting various international projects

including Polio Plus and Project Smile, raising funds to repair cleft palates in children; and 

  

Whereas, Dick and his family moved to Orinda in 1970 to enjoy the great public schools, and since then  he

has been giving back to the community in so many different ways.

that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County does hereby thank  Dick Burkhalter for his dedication and commitment to

the community of Orinda and for helping improve lives all over the world. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



Resolution No. 

AIR-20571     Consent    

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Appointments & Resignations             

Meeting Date: 02/03/2015

Time (Duration):  
APPOINTMENT TO THE DIABLO MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL

Submitted For: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor 

Department: Board of Supervisors District III

Noticed Public Hearing: No  Official Body: Board of

Supervisors

Presenter/Phone, if applicable: Audio-Visual Needs: 

Handling Instructions: District: District III

Contact, Phone: LEA

CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

Information

Recommendation(s):

APPOINT the following individuals to the Diablo Municipal Advisory Council as recommended

by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho:

Kathy Torru

P.O. Box 911

Diablo, CA 94528

Term Expiration: December 31, 2018

Jeff Mini

P.O. Box 598

Diablo, CA 94528

Term Expiration: December 31, 2018

Don Hoffman

P.O. Box 745

Diablo, CA 94528

Term Expiration: December 31, 2018

Ray Brant

P.O. Box 728



Diablo, CA 94528

Term Expiration: December 31, 2016

Vince Chow

P.O. Box 395

Diablo, CA 94528

Term Expiration: December 31, 2016

Fiscal Impact:

None.

Background:

Established on December 19, 2006 via Resolution No. 2006/791, the purpose of the Council is to

advise the Board of Supervisors on discretionary land use matters affecting the Diablo

community, such as land use designations, general plan amendments, environmental impact

reports, negative declarations, zoning-variance applications and building permit applications for

additions or remodeling projects which would affect the exterior dimensions of the residence and

for which noticed public hearings are required or could be required by the County's Planning

Agency.

The Council shall also represent the community before the County Planning Commission, the

Zoning Administrator and the County Board of Supervisors on such land use, planning and

zoning matters. The Council will advise in accordance with the policies and of the General Plan,

including sections 3-129 and 3-138. It is understood that the Board of Supervisors is the final

decision making authority and that the Council shall serve solely in an advisory capacity. In

addition, the Council may: Advise the Board of Supervisors on local government services as

requested by the Board; provide input and reports to the Board, county staff, or any other county

hearing body on issues of concern to the community; server as liason between the community and

the County Supervisor representing Diablo. Except as specified above, the Council may not

represent the Diablo community to any state, county, city, special district, or school district,

agency or commission, or any other organization on any matter concerning the community.

The Council consists of 5 members, each of whom shall be a current elected member of the

Diablo Community Services District Board of Directors.

Pursuant Resolution 2007/166, this board order appoints the elected Diablo CSD members as the

Diablo MAC members.

Budget Information

Information about available funds

Budgeted: Funds Available: Adjustment: Amount Available:

Unbudgeted: Funds NOT Available: Amendment:

Account Code(s) for Available Funds

1:

Fund Transfers



Fund Transfers

Attachments

No file(s) attached.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT resignation of Nell Ryan, DECLARE a vacancy in Local Committee, Danville-Alamo Seat on the

Advisory Council on Aging, and DIRECT the Clerk of the Board to post the vacancy, as recommended by the

Employment and Human Services Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

Nell Ryan was appointed to the Advisory Council on Aging for the term April 9, 2013 through September
30, 2016. The Advisory Council on Aging provides a means for county-wide planning, cooperation and
coordination for individuals and groups interested in improving and developing services and opportunities
for the older residents of this county. The Council provides leadership and advocacy on behalf of older
persons and serves as a channel of communication and information on aging. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Advisory Council on Aging will be unable to fill this position. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 11

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accept Resignation from Advisory Council on Aging



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

REAPPOINT the following individuals to County Service Area P-2A Citizen Advisory Committee with a term

expiring December 31, 2016, as recommended by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho.

Appointee 1

Janet Smith

51 Live Oak Lane

Danville, CA 94506

Appointee 4

Ron Banducci

5251 Blackhawk Drive

Danville, CA 94506

Appointee 7

Richard Rezek

3750 Deer Trail Drive

Danville, CA 94506

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  LEA CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 12

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPOINTMENT TO THE COUNTY SERVICE AREA P-2A CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE



FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

BACKGROUND:

The advisory committee functions to advise the Board of Supervisors and the Sheriff's Department on the needs of

the Blackhawk community for extended police services which shall include, but not limited to, enforcement of the

State Vehicle Code, crime prevention, and litter control.

The terms for the appointees expired December 31, 2014. Applications were accepted and the recommendation to

reappoint the above individuals was then determined.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

REAPPOINT Sharon Marsh to the Trustee 1 seat on the Byron-Brentwood-Knightsen Union Cemetery District to a

term expiring December 31, 2018, as recommended by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho.

Trustee 1

Sharon Marsh

2615 Taylor Lane

Byron, CA 94514 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

The term for this appointment expired December 31, 2014. Applications were accepted and the recommendation

reappoint the above individual was then determined.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  LEA CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 13

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: REAPPOINTMENT TO THE BYRON-BRENTWOOD-KNIGHTSEN UNION CEMETERY DISTRICT



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

REAPPOINT the following individuals to the Discovery Bay P-6 Citizen Advisory Committee to a term expiring

December 31, 2016, as recommended by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho.

Appointee 2

Bob Mankin

3554 Keystone Loop

Discovery Bay, CA 94505

Appointee 4

Gaylin Zeigler

507 Half Moon Court

Discovery Bay, CA 94505 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  LEA CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 14

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: REAPPOINTMENT TO DISCOVERY BAY P-6 CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE



BACKGROUND:

Established on June 23, 2009, the purpose of the DIscovery Bay P-6 Citizen Advisory Committee is to make reports

and recommendation to the Board of Supervisors on extended police services which include, but not limited to,

enforcement of the State Vehicle Code where authorized by law, crime, prevention, and litter control.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

REAPPOINT Kathleen Gage to the Member-at-Large Seat 3 for a term expiring on August 31, 2017 and APPOINT

Toya Thomas-Cruz to the Member-at-Large Seat 2 for a term expiring on August 31, 2015 on the Managed Care

Commission as recommended by the Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

At Large seat vacancies on the Managed Care Commission have been assigned for Family & Human Services

Committee (F&HS) review since 2011. As a result of the transition of the Board of Supervisor's committees from

2014 to 2015, the Family and Human Services Committee will not be able to meet until March 2015. The Managed

Care Commission has a meeting on February 4, 2015 and, if these appointments are not approved, the Commission

will be unable to achieve a quorum and convene in February. 

In recognition of the need to fill the pending vacancies expeditiously, I am forwarding nominations for reappointment

to four seats directly to the Board of Supervisors for consideration, which deviates from the standard practice. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Dorothy Sansoe,
925-335-1009

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 15

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appointments to the Managed Care Commission



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the appointments are not approved, the Commission will be unable to achieve a quorum and convene a meeting.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Request Memo and Application - Gage 

Request Memo and Application - Thomas-Cruz 



































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve Appropriation Adjustment No. 5031 transferring $1,002,805 in appropriations to Conservation and

Development (0280), District Attorney (0242), Health Services (0853), Human Resources (0035), Public Defender

(0243), Probation (0308), Employment & Human Services (0501) for fiscal year 2014-15 Venture Capital Projects. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Project funds are budgeted in the General Fund Contingency for FY 2014-15 (100% General Fund) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board of Supervisors adopted a Budget Policy in 2006, which included a resource intended to improve

departmental operations. Per this policy, in FY 2014-15 funding was made available for technology projects to be

used to increase efficiencies and economies in departments that did not have resources available within their normal

operating budgets for such expense. Requests for these funds were submitted with the Departments' baseline budgets.

Departments included requests of $1,368,577 and the County Administrator was able to approve $1,002,805.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Laura Strobel (925)
335-1091

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 16

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appropriation Transfer for Approved FY 14-15 Venture Capital Projects



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

width="612" />

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Departments will not receive the resources needed to fund the aforementioned projects.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

AP# 5031 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE Appropriation and Revenue Adjustment No. 5034 authorizing revenue and expenses in the net amount of $2,114,080 

$2,114,080 for the California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs) Expanded Subsidized

Employment Program (County Fiscal Letter, CFL 14/15-18). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State in the amount of $2,114,080. No net County cost increase. 

BACKGROUND: 

The previously authorized Expanded Subsidized Employment Program provides subsidized employment of 20 to 40

hours per week for a maximum of six months. Employment &Human Services will work with county, public,

non-profit and private-sector employers to make employment slots available to eligible Welfare-to-Work participants,

focusing specifically on participants who are limited English proficient, challenged by domestic violence, veterans,

have a criminal or arrest history, disabled, pregnant and parenting youth, and those participants completing the family

stabilization component of the Welfare-to-Work program. Employers are reimbursed no less than $9 but not to

exceed $20 per hour, with a bonus opportunity if the employer continues to employment the participant following the

subsidy period. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Candace Flint, 313-1753

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 17

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: EHSD, Workforce Services Bureau, CalWORKs Subsidized Expanded Employment Program



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Appropriation will not be properly allocated.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Does not apply.

ATTACHMENTS

Appropriation Adjustment #5034 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE Appropriation and Revenue Adjustment No. 5035 in the amount of $1,085,850 to

accept new funding from the California Department of Social Services for the California Work Opportunity and

Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs) Housing Support Program as authorized per Senate Bill 855 (Chapter 29,

Statutes of 2014). The allocation for FY 14/15 is $1,085,850. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State Funding totalling $1,085,850. No County Share. 

BACKGROUND: 

The California Legislature and the Governor appropriated $20 million from the General Fund to address homeless

and housing instability in the CalWORKs program as part of the 2014-15 State budget. Contra Costa was awarded

$1,085,850 in Housing Support Program (HSP) funds to serve families receiving CalWORKs who are homeless or at

imminent risk of homelessness. The program offers housing search and placement assistance, linkage to services, and

1 to 6 months of rental assistance to qualifying households. The Housing Support Program will be overseen by

Employment & Human Services in partnership with the Contra Costa Health Program and community partners. This

money will be used to support projects that use evidence-based models. The objective is to promote housing stability

for families in the CalWORKs program. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Candace Flint, 313-1753

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 18

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appropriation Adjustment - Housing Support Program (HSP) - EHSD, Workforce Services Bureau



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Services not provided.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Does not apply.

ATTACHMENTS

Allocation Letter 

Appropriation Adjustment #5035 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
   

October 10, 2014 
 
 
Ms. Kathy Gallagher, Director 
Contra Costa County Employment & Human Services Department 
40 Douglas Drive 
Martinez, CA 94553 
 
Dear Ms. Kathy Gallagher:  
 
We are pleased to inform you of your county's final allocation for the California Work 
Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs) Housing Support Program (HSP) 
authorized per Senate Bill 855 (Chapter 29, Statutes of 2014) for Fiscal Year             
(FY) 2014-15 is $1,085,850. 
 
Due to the limited funding available in FY 2014-15, the California Department of Social 
Services is requiring counties to expend HSP funds on only those CalWORKs families 
who are homeless, as defined in the certification letter, as opposed to those clients who 
are not homeless but experiencing housing instability.   
 
As with all allocations, counties that receive HSP awards will be required to claim all 
costs on a quarterly basis by performing time studies and utilizing HSP identified 
Program Codes: 
 

 895 – CalWORKs Housing Support Federal 

 894 – CalWORKs Housing Support Non-Federal 

 893 – CalWORKs Housing Support Safety Net 
 

If you have any questions regarding claiming instructions, please contact the Fiscal 
Systems Bureau at fiscal.systems@dss.ca.gov.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this HSP, please contact Kären Dickerson, Chief, 
CalWORKs Employment and Eligibility Branch, at (916) 651-6562. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Original Document Signed By: 
 
BRIAN DOUGHERTY, Chief 
Financial Management and Contracts Branch 
 
Attachment 
 

mailto:FISCAL.SYSTEMS@dss.ca.gov?subject=County-%20CalWORKs%20Housing%20Support%20Award%20Letter%20Question






RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Employment and Human Services (0504) : APPROVE and AUTHORIZE Appropriation and Revenue Adjustment

No. 5038 to decrease expenditures and revenues by $256,207 in the CalWORKs Mental Health and Substance Abuse

Program based on current State allocations. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State: Decrease in total expenditures and in total revenues of $256,207. No impact to County cost. 

BACKGROUND: 

The annual allocation for FY 14/15 (County Fiscal Letter 14/15-2) requires a decrease in budgeted expenditures and

revenue. This program provides funding for Mental Health and Substance Abuse services, including case

management and treatment, to CalWORKs program participants in need of these services to obtain or retain

employment. The Department was aware of this decrease in allocations far enough in advance to make necessary

budget adjustments without significant impact. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Appropriations will not be properly allocated. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Does not apply. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Candace Flint, 313-1763

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 19

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Appropriation Adjustment, CalWORKs MH and SA Program



ATTACHMENTS

Appropriation Adjustment #5038 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21555 to add three (3) Social Services Program Assistant (X0SA)

(represented) positions, and allocate 255 1384 ($4,254 - $5,171) in the Children and Families Services Bureau of the

Employment and Human Services Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval of these positions will result increase Annual Salary by $287,050. This will also result in additional

retirement cost by $102,850. These positions will be funded 45% Federal, 55% State Realignment Revenue. Approval

of these positions will not increase NCC. 

BACKGROUND: 

Employment and Human Services Department/Children & Family Services has determined the need to add additional

staff, in order to ensure the Department meets it’s legal obligation to assist and provide services to children, and their

families, including foster care families. From 2009-2014 the case loads for Social Services Program Assistants,

assigned to Children and Family Services has increased by 24%. The number of cases was a result of an increase 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Michelle Fregoso
925-313-1568

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: EHSD,   Human Resources,   Otilia Parra   

C. 20

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add Positions: Three (3) Social Service Program Assistant positions in Employment & Human Services Department



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

in children entering foster care, and children remaining in foster care placements past their 18th birthday (AB12

laws). Probation cases in the last year increased by 51%, from 79 in 2013 to 120 in 2014. In addition, foster youth

are now eligible for Medi-Cal up to the age 26. Social Services Program Assistants perform services such as

determining eligibility and grant benefits for Foster Care and related benefits programs including KinGap,

Adoption Assistance and ongoing MediCal for children transitioning home; all of which are Child Welfare

mandated services required to meet the "reasonable efforts" findings in court hearings. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Not hiring these positions will continue to result increased work for the SSPA’s who are responsible for the initial

determination and on-going management of cases. When the SSPA’s have high caseloads the department is at risk

of not providing mandated services.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

These positions impact a child’s ability to receive services in a timely matter through foster care payments issued

to the providers. The staff in these positions also manage the child’s Medi-Cal needs for therapeutic and medical

interventions which affects the ability to maintain stable placements for our dependent children.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21555 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21555 

DATE  11/12/2014 
Department No./ 

Department  Employment and Human Services Dept.  Budget Unit No. 0502  Org No. 5216  Agency No. A19 

Action Requested:  Add Three (3) Social Service Program Assistant (X0SA) (represented) positions in the Children and 
Families Services Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department. [ASSIST 31403] 

Proposed Effective Date:  12/3/2014 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $287,050.00 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $143,525.00 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  45% Federal, 55% State Realignment Revenue 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Michelle Fregoso 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Kevin J. Corrigan 11/13/2014 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  12/5/2014 
ADD three (3) Social Services Program Assistant (X0SA) (represented) positions, and allocate 255 1384 ($4,254 - $5,171)  in 
the Children and Families Services Bureau of the Employment and Human Services Department. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Otilla Parra 12/5/2014 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   12/18/2014 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 12/18/2014    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21576 to reclassify one (1) Information System Administrator III

(LFTA) position #12278 at salary plan and grade ZB5 1644 ($5,503 - $6,689) (represented) and its incumbent to

Information Systems Programmer Analyst III (LPTB) (represented) at salary plan and grade ZA5 1694 ($5,782 -

$7028) (represented) in the Department of Conservation and Development (DCD). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No impact to the General Fund. Upon approval, this action has an annual net cost of $8,500, which will be funded

100% by Land Development Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Conservation and Development (DCD) is requesting the reclassification of position # 12278 and

its incumbent from Information System Administrator III (ISA III) to Information Systems Programmer Analyst III

(ISPA III) (represented). The incumbent is the sole person in the County holding the ISA III class. Furthermore,

incumbent's duties have evolved over the last few years and now include a more prominent role in the Department's

Accela operations and programming functions. Accela is the core building and planning database that the Department

uses for its daily operations. The Human Resources Department has determined that the incumbent's class of ISA III

is no longer the correct class and the ISPA III class is the more appropriate class given incumbent's current duties. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Victoria Mejia (925)
674-7726

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: James Hicks,   Victoria Mejia,   Marta Goc   

C. 21

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Interim Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Reclassify One Information System Administrator III to Information System Program Analyst III 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Should the Board of Supervisors elect not to approve the request for reclassification, the incumbent will not be

classified or compensated appropriately.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 21576_Reclass ISA III to ISPA III in DCD 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21576 

DATE  12/1/2014 
Department No./ 

Department  Conservation & Development Budget Unit No. 0280  Org No. 2653  Agency No. 38 

Action Requested:  Reclassify one (1) Information System Administrator III (LFTA)(represented) at salary level ZB5 1644 
($5,503 - $6,689) position #12278 and incumbent, Ms. Eileen Koo, to full time Information Systems Programmer Analyst III 
(LPTB) (represented)  at salary level  ZA5 1694 ($5,782 - $7028) 

Proposed Effective Date:  12/1/2014 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $0.00 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $0.00 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  costs offset by  land development fees 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  VM for JK 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 BR for JE 12/5/2014 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Reclassify one (1) Information System Administrator III (LFTA) position #12278 at salary plan and grade ZB5 1644 ($5,503 - 
$6,689) (represented) and its incumbent to Information Systems Programmer Analyst III (LPTB) (represented) at salary plan 
and grade ZA5 1694 ($5,782 - $7028) (represented)  in the Department of Conservation and Development (DCD). 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
  12/1/2014(Date) Marta Goc 1/22/2015 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   1/27/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources /s/  Julie DiMaggio Enea 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 1/27/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Resolution No. 21605 to add one (1) permanent full-time Pharmacist I (VYWA) position

($7,813-$9,045) in the Contra Costa Health Plan division of the Health Services Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The additional costs associated with this action will be $172,690 annually with benefits. The costs will be offset by

CCHP Enterprise Fund III (100%). 

BACKGROUND: 

The Health Services Department is requesting the additional Pharmacist I in its Health Plan division due to increased

mandated requirements. The California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) is implementing a new

requirement that all Health plans meet a 24-hour turn around time for all prior authorizations for medication. We are

currently only meeting this requirement 60 percent of the time. The risk to CCHP is that if we fail to meet the

deadline, prior authorization requests can be deemed approved whether or not we agree. If we deny all requests not

reached within this 24-hour period, our denial rate will significantly increase, rework by our staff and providers is

necessary, and members are upset. This could be avoided in cases where reaching the physician for more information

might result in an approval. With an additional Pharmacist on staff the Department could be in compliance with this

new DHCS requirement. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Kristen Cunningham,
957-5267

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 22

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Pharmacist I position in the Health Services Department



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved and without additional staff, Contra Costa Health Plan's Pharmacy unit will not be

able to meet the mandated requirements of the Plan.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21605 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21605 

DATE  1/20/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  HEALTH SERVICES-CCHP Budget Unit No. 0860  Org No. 6105  Agency No. A18 

Action Requested:  Add one permanent full-time (40/40) Pharmacist I position in the Contra Costa Health Plan division of the 
Health Services Department 

Proposed Effective Date:  2/4/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $172,690.00 Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  $71,954.00 N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT Annual cost of $172,690.09  CCHP Enterprise Fund III(100%) 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Kristen Cunningham 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Dorothy Sansoe 1/26/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Exempt from Human Resources review under delegated authorityl. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   1/26/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  _Approve as requested by Department____________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 1/26/2015    No.        
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
   

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21603 to add two (2) permanent full-time Mental Health Community

Support Worker II positions (VQVB) at salary level QT5-0968 ($2,817 - $3,425) and cancel vacant permanent

full-time Community Health Worker II positions #15709 and #15811 (VKVB) at salary level QT5-1043 ($3,035 -

$3,689) in the Health Services Department. (Represented) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this action has an annual cost savings of approximately $39,563.00. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Health Services Department is requesting to add two Mental Health Community Support Worker II positions

assigned to the new George and Cynthia Miller Wellness Center in Martinez. Incumbents in these positions function

as members of a team providing peer support to families of seriously emotionally disturbed children and adolescents,

seriously mentally ill young adults, adults and older adults and/or their families, individually, in groups and in crisis

situations. The Department has determined that these positions are more appropriate to better serve the needs of the

patients in the Wellness Center than the vacant Community Health Worker II positions. Upon approval, this action

has an annual cost savings of approximately $39,563.00. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Jo-Anne Linares, (925)
957-5240

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: ,     

C. 23

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add and cancel positions in the Health Services Department



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved, the George and Cynthia Miller Wellness Center will not have adequate peer support

staff to serve their mental health clients, parents, children, and families, which may directly impact patient care.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

N/A

ATTACHMENTS

P-300 #21603 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21603 

DATE  1/9/2015 
Department No./ 

Department  Health Services Budget Unit No. 0540  Org No. 6417  Agency No. A18 

Action Requested:  Add two permanent full-time Mental Health Community Support Worker II positions and cancel vacant 
Community Health Worker II positions #15709 and #15811 in the Health Services Department. 

Proposed Effective Date:        

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:  $0.00 

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  ($39,563.00) Net County Cost  $0.00 

Total this FY  ($16,485.00) N.C.C. this FY  $0.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  Cost Savings 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Jo-Anne Linares 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Dorothy Sansoe 1/13/2015 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE        
Exempt from Human Resources review under authority delegated by the Board of Supervisors 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date)             
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   1/13/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Dorothy Sansoe 
  Other:  _Approve as requested by Department____________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a lease agreement with Balco

Properties, LTD, LLC, for a term of 12 years for approximately 16,709 square feet of office space located at 2600

Stanwell Drive, Concord, at an initial monthly rent of $22,975 for occupancy by the Employment and Human

Services Department, under the terms and conditions set forth in the lease agreement. (WLP859)

FISCAL IMPACT: 

80% Federal/State Funds, 20% General Fund. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Employment and Human Services Department (EHSD) has maximized the utilization of all the buildings and

spaces it currently occupies. EHSD needs additional office and training space for its Staff Development Division and

Work Force Development Bureau in Central County. The new lease on Stanwell Drive will provide adequate space

for future growth of these functions. This lease will also consolidate Staff Development from Hercules and Pleasant

Hill into an adequately-sized central training facility, and will consolidate work that processes mail and electronic

benefits applications into a single location, while eliminating the need for modular buildings in Pittsburg.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Dave Silva (925)
313-2132

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc: Auditor   

C. 24

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2600 Stanwell Drive, Concord – Lease for Employment and Human Services.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this lease is not approved, EHSD will not be able to consolidate Staff Development and Work Force

Development functions into one facility and forgo its consolidation, thereby aggravating operational impacts of

having these functions split while increasing costs by having these functions in multiple locations in the County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Lease 

Work Letter 



















































































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Probation Officer, or designee, to apply for, accept and execute a grant

contract with the California Board of State and Community Corrections in an amount not to exceed $119,285 to

continue facilitation of Proud Parenting Programs for young fathers and mothers involved in the criminal justice

system for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$119,285 with a possible additional two year non-competitive application. (10% Match required, to be funded by

STAND! for Families Free of Violence) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Proud Fathers Program provides parent education, parent-child activities, and case management for young

fathers and fathers-to-be who are at risk of committing child abuse due to their histories of domestic violence or child

abuse, involvement in the criminal justice system, or other risk factors. The program relies on three strategies for

improving parent skills and parent-child relationships: 1. Parenting education through an evidence-based parent

education curriculum. 2. Referrals to case management to guide parents toward self-sufficiency and stability. 3. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Danielle Fokkema,
925-313-4195

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 25

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Philip F. Kader, County Probation Officer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015/2016 Proud Parenting Program Grant



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Supervised parent-child activities and excursions, where parents can practice the skills they may have learned. The

Probation Department has received this grant for the last three years. The program served youth in the Orin Allen

Youth Rehabilitation Facility, Youthful Offender Treatment Program as well as youth on Probation in the community.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the application is not submitted, parenting services will not be provided by STAND! For Families Free of Violence

for youth under Probation Supervision.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Services provided as funded by this application will improve the quality of life for youth in the juvenile justice system

and their children and provide a service to which they might not otherwise have access.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Probation Officer, or designee, to apply for and accept funding under

Evidence-Based Practices (EBP) Training Project from the Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) in an

amount not to exceed $20,000 to enhance evidence-based practices at John A. Davis Juvenile Hall for the period May

1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$20,000 for fourteen months; 10% County match requirement. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) is the Designated State Administrative Agency for the

Juvenile Accountability Block Grant Program (JABG). To support California’s Title II Three-Year plan, the State

Advisory Committee on Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (SACJJDP) approved $250,000 in

discretionary JABG funding to further develop evidenced based practices (EBP) statewide. Categorized as a

large-sized county, Contra Costa County may apply for a maximum of $20,000. The goal of this application is to receive

funds to enhance evidence-based Probation programs at the Juvenile Hall. Funds received will increase capacity

within the Probation Department to implement evidence-based practices that target youth detained in Juvenile Hall. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Todd Billeci,
925-313-4149

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 26

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Philip F. Kader, County Probation Officer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: FY 2015/2016 Evidence-Based Practices Training Project



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Probation Department will have less resources available to enhance evidence-based practices at Juvenile Hall.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This funding will positively impact youth in Juvenile Hall by enhancing evidence-based programming.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Grant

Agreement #28-360 from the State of California, Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMS), to pay the County

in an amount not to exceed $47,883, for County’s EMS Federal Block Grant Support Quality Improvement Project

from January 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this agreement will result in an amount not to exceed $47,883 for the County’s EMS Federal Block

Grant Support Quality Improvement Project through September 30, 2015. No County match required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Authority provides statewide coordination and leadership for the planning,

development, and implementation of the local EMS systems throughout California and sets standards for the training

and scope of practice of various levels of EMS personnel. The EMS Authority will provide funding to the County’s

EMS Division through the federal Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant (PHHSBG), to support

special project capabilities 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost (925)
313-9554

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 27

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Grant Agreement #28-360 with State of California, Emergency Medical Services Authority 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

related to the Health Information Exchange (HIE), Quality Improvement, and transformation to the National

Information System (NEMSIS) Version 3. Currently County’s EMS uses approximately thirteen different data

systems, each consisting of multiple databases, to provide information about EMS system activities. The goal of the

County is to improve the quality of patient care through development of system improvement and data collection,

thereby continuing to build on HIE infrastructure capabilities through September 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, the County will not receive funding to support the County’s EMS Federal Block

Grant Support Quality Improvement Project.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

NOT APPLICABLE



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract with

California Department of Community Services and Development, including a modified indemnification language, to

pay County an amount not to exceed $40,000 for Low Income Home Weatherization Program for a term January 1,

2015 through January 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State funds

California Department of Community Services and Development

Pension costs: $1,019

County match: $0

State: 15K-6003 / CCC: 39-805-8 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa County has received funding from the State Department of Community Services and Development for

20 years wherein the county provides energy bill assistance payments 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  CSB, 925-681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Sam Mendoza,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 28

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015 - 2017 Low Income Weatherization Program services funding 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and weatherization services to county residents who are income-eligible to receive said services. The funding sources

include Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), the Energy Crisis Intervention Program (ECIP),

and the Department of Energy (DOE).

The county receives the money via the Employment & Human Services Department (EHSD). EHSD, in turn, partners

with the county Department of Conservation and Development to provide energy saving home improvements to

low-income families throughout unincorporated Contra Costa County, as well as the County’s nineteen cities. 

The energy savings measures may provide homes with hot water heaters, furnaces, refrigerators, microwaves, doors,

windows, fluorescent light bulbs, weather stripping, ceiling fans, and attic insulation. Homes receive a blower door

test (a diagnostic tool to locate and correct air infiltration), and homes with gas appliances receive a combustion

appliance safety test that checks for carbon monoxide gas leakage. Homes with gas appliances are provided with a

carbon monoxide alarm.

The program uses income based eligibility. The income levels are based on the Federal Fiscal Year 2014 Poverty

Guidelines. Once eligibility is determined, clients with no hot water, no heat, or are in danger of having their power

shut off are served as emergencies. Service is then based on clients with the lowest income, highest energy burden

and families with at least one resident who is considered vulnerable population.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County may not receive funding to operate the weatherization program.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau energy program supports one Contra

Costa County community outcome - Outcome #4: "Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing." This outcome is

supported by the provision of home energy assistance to keep households warm in winter and to increase household

energy efficiency.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to apply for and accept

grant funding from the Contra Costa County Healthy and Active Before 5 Collaborative, in an amount not to exceed

$500, to support the purchase of non-disposable dishes for use in Contra Costa County Head Start Centers thereby

reducing the environmental impact of paper products, for the period January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

County to receive an amount not to exceed $500 from the Healthy and Active Before 5 Collaborative grant. (No

County match) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Healthy and Active Before 5 Collaborative provides mini-grants to organizations that lie within the boundaries

of Contra Costa County. The proposed program must serve children ages 0-5 years. The grant proposal most address

one or more of the following: 1) Healthy Beverages for Children, 2) Breastfeeding Accommodation, 3) Healthy Food

and Beverage, 4) Movement and Play Policy, 5) Reducing Unhealthy Marketing to Children, or, 6) Tap Water

Promotion. 

The Employment and Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau, will use funds to purchase

non-disposable dishes for use at Head Start Centers to reduce the environmental impact of paper products. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  CSB, 925-681-6347

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Joanne Sanchez-Rosa,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 29

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Healthy and Active Before 5 Collaborative Grant



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without funding, the EHSD Community Services Bureau would not be able to provide the proposed grant service.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The grant funding will support one of the community outcomes established in the Children's Report Card, 5)

"Communities that are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families" by reducing the

environmental impact of paper products.

ATTACHMENTS

HAB45 grant application 



 

 

For HAB45 use:  Award # 

Check # Date 

Mini-grant Application 

We understand that organizational policy change isn’t always easy. That’s why Healthy and Active Before 5 will 
provide a $500 check to the first 15 Leadership Council agencies which pass new healthy policies and provide 
HAB45 with the documentation outlined below. 

The mini-grant money may be spent on items which either support the implementation of your new healthy 
organizational policy/policies, or support the goals of the HAB45 Action Plan in other ways. For instance, you might 

want to buy reusable water pitchers for your meetings, a comfortable chair for a new breastfeeding space, or perhaps 
indoor play props appropriate for children age 0-5. You choose what would be most helpful to your agency.  

To qualify your agency must pass one or more of our HAB45 policies: 1) Healthy Beverages for Children; 2) 
Breastfeeding Accommodation; 3) Healthy Food and Beverage; 4) Movement and Play Policy; 5) Reducing 
Unhealthy Marketing to Children; or 6) Tap Water Promotion. Only one mini-grant prize will be awarded per policy, 
while supplies last. Agencies that have previously been awarded a mini-grant are encouraged to re-apply, if they 
update and old or adopt a new and different policy.  

Your application will be reviewed by the HAB45 Executive Committee. We will contact you if we have any questions. 

Questions? Please contact Tonya Love at (925) 265-6507 or healthyandactiveb45@gmail.com.  

To submit, email your application to mail to healthyandactiveb45@gmail.com or mail a hard copy to Healthy & Active 
Before 5 at 1035 Detroit Ave - Ste 200, Concord CA 94518.  

Your Name: Joanne Sanchez-Rosa Phone: 925-681-6347 

Email: Joanne.Sanchez-Rosa@ehsd.cccounty.us 
 

1. Please attach a copy of each new Healthy & Active Before 5 policy approved by your agency. 
(Required!)   Date(s) approved:  November 1, 2014 

2. Please describe how you will spend your mini-grant funds (250 words max.) 

 
Community Services Bureau is committed to promoting healthy habits and a healthy environment and 

seeks to model the behavior we wish to encourage to the children and families we serve in our Head 

Start, Early Head Start and Child Development programs.   If awarded the $500 mini-grant, CSB will use 

funds towards purchasing non-disposable dishes for use in our program to teach our children about 

respecting the environment. The reduction of paper and plastic ware can greatly lower our carbon 

footprint on the environment and reduce high costs associated with using paper products as we serve 

approximately 3,000 meals per day. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agency: Employment and Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau                                                                

Taxpayer ID#: 94-6000509 

mailto:healthyandactiveb45@gmail.com
mailto:healthyandactiveb45@gmail.com


 

 

 
3. What will be the impact of your policy? (Please, fill in your estimate or best guess.) 

We believe this policy will impact 1,245 children and 175 adults per year. 

4. Any additional comments? (Use other side if necessary.) 

Mailing Address: 
1470 Civic Court, Suite 200 
Concord, CA 94520 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract with

the Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton to pay the county an amount not to exceed

$28,000, to provide food services to the childcare program at El Concilio Preschool for the period February 1, 2015

through October 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No net County costs.

El Concilio Preschool has agreed to reimburse the County, up to the limits of the California Child and Adult Food

Program, for all food service expenses related to this contract. The County will provide breakfast and lunch to 20

children at the rate of $7.25 per day per child. 

BACKGROUND: 

El Concilio is a Migrant Head Start program operating through San Joaquin County’s program. The preschool

provides services to migrant children for only a limited number 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  CSB (925) 681-6344

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Ingrid Persson,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 30

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015 Food Services Agreement with the Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

of months each year. The Community Services Bureau would provide meals that meet the HS performance

Standards and USDA meal guidelines. At some point in the future the Community Services Bureau may operate

the program in the months the school is closed to ensure continuity of care for those families.

The Center, located adjacent to Community Services Bureau's (CSB) Los Nogales Center serves the migrant

farm-worker families of Contra Costa County. Both Head Start programs have similar missions and similar client

needs. The San Joaquin agency has just taken over the E Concilio program and is unable to provide services to the

families due to a lack of facility space to provide nutritious meals to the children. CSB has offered to assist with

this unmet need for the following reasons:

• The same community is served;

• The continuity of services – the migrant program operates a limited amount per year. CSB would like to

continue serving those families since they qualify for our program;

• Besides our program, El Concilio is the only publicly funded program to provide these services to families. It is a

great need.

• Assisting with the nutrition program is one way that the two programs can partner.

Additional collaboration discussions are underway.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County will be unable to provide food services to its childcare partner.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3:

“Families that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.”

These outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood

education, nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.

ATTACHMENTS

Food Service Agreement 



  Number:  39-926-1 

1 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR  
FOOD SERVICE / VENDING 

 
This Agreement is entered into on this first day of February 2015 by and between The 
Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton dba. El 
Concilio Preschool, hereinafter referred to as the Agency and Contra Costa County 
through and by its Employment & Human Services Department, Community 
Services Bureau hereinafter referred to as the Vendor.  
 
THE VENDOR AGREES TO: 
 

1. Prepare and supply the meals, inclusive of milk, to El Concilio Pre-School at 
their Nogales site at 321 Orchard Drive #B, Brentwood, CA 94513, by 
8:00 a.m. each day of Vendor operation, Monday through Friday in 
accordance with the number of meals requested and at the cost(s) per meal 
listed below.  FY 2014-2015 rates noted below. 

 
For preschool children ages 18 to 36 months: 

 
Breakfast   $3.00 each  Lunch  $4.25 each 
 
Supplement/Snack $n/a each  Supper $_n/a_each 

 
2. Provide the Agency the menu for each month at least five days prior to the 

beginning of the month to which the menu applies.   
 
3. Assure that each meal provided to the Agency under this contract meets the 

minimum nutritional requirements as defined by the California Child and Adult 
Care Food Program. 

 
4. Maintain on a daily basis an accurate count of the number of meals by meal 

type, prepared for the Agency.  Meal count documentation must include the 
number of meals requested by the Agency. 

 
5. Allow the Agency to increase or decrease the number of meal orders, as 

needed when the request is made within three business days of the 
scheduled delivery time. 

 
6. Present to the Agency an invoice accompanied by reports no later than the 

20th day of each month that itemizes the previous month’s delivery.  The 
Vendor agrees to forfeit payment for meals that are not ready within one (1) 
hour of the agreed upon delivery time, are spoiled or unwholesome at the 
time of delivery, are short of components, or do not otherwise meet the meal 
requirements contained in this agreement. 

 



  Number:  39-926-1 

2 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

7. Provide the Agency with a copy of current health certifications for the food 
service facility in which it prepares meals.  The Vendor shall ensure that all 
health and sanitation requirement of the California Retail Food Facilities Law, 
and chapter 4 of the California Health and Safety Code, are met all times. 

 
8. Not subcontract for the total meal, with or without milk, or for the assembly of 

the meal.  
 

9. As required by the State Drug-Free workplace Act of 1990 (Government Code 
§ 8350 et. seq.) and the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and 
implementing regulations, Vendor certifies that it will continue to provide a 
drug-free workplace.   

 
 
THE AGENCY AGREES TO: 
 
1.  Notify Vendor of necessary increases or decreases in number of meal orders 

within three business days of the scheduled delivery time.  Errors in meal order 
counts made by the Agency shall be the responsibility of the Agency, and 
Agency shall pay Vendor for all meals ordered even if Agency erroneously 
ordered an excess number of meals. 

 
2. Ensure that an Agency representative is available at each delivery site, at the 

specified time on each specified delivery day to receive, inspect and sign for the 
requested number of meals.  This individual will verify the temperature, quality, 
and quantity of each meal service delivery.  The Agency assures the Vendor that 
this individual will be trained in health and sanitation practices.  

 
3. Provide personnel to serve meals, clean the serving and eating areas, and 

assemble transport carts and auxiliary items for pick-up/delivery by the Vendor 
no later than twenty-four hours following the delivery of such carts.   

 
4. Notify the Vendor within ten days of receipt of the next month’s proposed menu 

of any changes, additions, or deletions that will be required in the menu request. 
 

5. As required by the State Drug-Free workplace Act of 1990 (Government Code § 
8350 et. seq.) and the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and 
implementing regulations, Agency certifies that it will continue to provide a drug-
free workplace.   

 
6. Pay the Vendor by the thirtieth day of each month the full amount as presented 

in the monthly itemized invoice.  The Agency agrees to notify the Vendor within 
48 hours of receipt of any discrepancy in the invoice. 

 
7. Agency shall defend, indemnify, save and hold harmless Vendor and it’s officers 

and employees from any and all claims, costs and liability for any damages, 



  Number:  39-926-1 

3 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

sickness, death or injury to person(s) or property, including without limitation all 
consequential damages, from any cause whatsoever arising directly or indirectly 
from or connected with the operations or services of Agency or its agents, 
servants, employees or subcontractors hereunder, save and except claims or 
litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of Vendor 
or its officers or employees.  Agency will reimburse Vendor for any expenditures, 
including reasonable attorney fees, Vendor may make by reason of the matters 
that are the subject of this indemnification, and if requested by Vendor, will 
defend any claims or litigation to which this indemnification provision applies at 
the sole cost and expense of Agency. 

 
 
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
The effective date of this Contract amendment is February 1, 2015.  It terminates on 
October 31, 2015. This contract may be terminated by either party, in its sole 
discretion, upon thirty-day advance written notice thereof to the other, and may be 
cancelled immediately by written mutual consent.  
 



  Number:  39-926-1 

4 
  ______      ______ 

                                                                                  Agency               County 

IN WITINESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS 
AGREEMENT AS OF THE DATES INDICATED BELOW: 
 
 

 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
          Designee 

 

 
COUNTY COUNSEL 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
          Deputy 
 

 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

EMPLOYMENT & HUMAN SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

 
 

 
By:  _____________________________ 
         Director / Designee 

 
 
       ___________________________ 
          Title 
 
 

       (925)______________________  
          Telephone 
 
 

        _____________________________ 
          Date 

 
 
 

 
THE CATHOLIC COUNCIL FOR THE 

SPANISH SPEAKING OF THE 
DIOCESE OF STOCKTON DBA. EL 

CONCILIO PRESCHOOL 
 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
         Official Signature 

 
 
       _____________________________ 
          Title 
 
 

       _______________________ 
          Telephone 
 
 

        _____________________________ 
          Date 

 

 
       Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors Approval via Board Order      
       (attached) 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a Grant Agreement with the California

Department of Water Resources for a Flood Emergency Project Grant in the amount of $570,000 for flood readiness

planning for a period of three years from the date of execution of the Grant Agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$570,000 will be received through a grant from the Department of Water Resources to implement new flood safety

plans. The grant agreement term is for three (3) years from the date of execution. 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Cost County Public Works applied to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for a grant for the planning

and implementations of the Contra Costa County Flood Emergency Response Program. DWR funded $570,000 for

Contra Costa County’s Delta Flood Readiness activities. The Office of Emergency Services is a sub grantee of this

DWR grant.

Flood is ranked number 4 in the county’s natural hazards local mitigation plan and therefore will greatly benefit from

the grant projects as follows:

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Sandra Brown,
925-335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 31

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Department of Water Resources Flood Emergency Response Project Grant, West and Central County areas (100%

State) 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

• Develop new or update existing local maintaining agency flood safety plans.

• Develop an emergency operations plan flood safety annex for the Emergency Operations Center.

• All plans will contain flood contingency maps to include evacuation routes and rally points.

• Develop and distribute Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District public outreach campaign materials regarding

flood safety.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Office of the Sheriff would not have the funds to develop or revise new flood safety plans.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with Child Abuse Prevention Council to decrease the payment limit by $40.00 to a new payment limit of

$1,358,786 for continued child abuse prevention services, for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$1,358,786.00: 2% State Family Preservation (70% State, 30% County), 4% Child Welfare Redesign (100% State),

6.5% Keller Landfill Grant, 4.5% Promoting Safe and Stable Families (100% Federal, CFDA #93.556), 52% CWS

Basic (70% State, 30% County), and 31% Substance Abuse/HIV Allocation (CFDA #93.658), 18% Fed, 56% State,

26% County). 

BACKGROUND: 

An additional Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Caretaker Liaison has been added to the contract. However, since

Contractor has been understaffed in the early stages of this contract, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 32

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amend Contract with Child Abuse Prevention Council



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

the net budget impact of this additional FTE is a $40 reduction in the contract payment limit. 

Contractor will direct and coordinate ongoing activities aimed at mobilizing community resources and educating

professionals and citizens to reduce the incidents of child abuse. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Contractor will be paid more than value of services. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This contract supports all of the community outcomes established in the Children’s Report Card: 1) “Children Ready

for and Succeeding in School”; 2) “Children and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood”; 3)

“Families that are Economically Self Sufficient”; 4) “Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing”; and 5)

“Communities that are Safe and Provide a High Quality of Life for Children and Families,” by providing services to

prevent child abuse and thus maintain the family. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the Public Works Director,

a purchase order amendment with Walnut Creek Ford to increase the payment limit by $175,000 to a new payment

limit of $600,000 and extend the termination date from January 31, 2015 to January 31, 2016, for vehicle parts and

accessories, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This cost is to be funded through the Public Works Fleet ISF budget. (100% Fleet Internal Service Fund) 

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works Fleet Services is responsible for maintaining County vehicles. To do so, Fleet Services buys parts,

accessories and warranty service from local automotive dealers. Because the County's fleet is comprised of mostly

Ford vehicles, Fleet purchases a substantial amount of items from Ford dealers. As bid on BidSync No. 1112-004,

four local Ford dealers were awarded this commodity, with Walnut Creek Ford being the primary vendor and Future

Ford the secondary one. The original bid was for a period of one year with four possible one-year extensions. This

request is for the third of the four possible one-year extensions with Walnut Creek Ford. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Stan Burton,
925-313-7077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 33

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE a purchase order amendment with Walnut Creek Ford



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, the purchase of Ford parts and accessories through Walnut Creek Ford will

discontinue.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the Public Works Director,

a purchase order amendment with Future Ford to increase the payment limit by $40,000 to a new payment limit of

$120,000 and extend the termination date from January 31, 2015 to January 31, 2016, for vehicle parts and

accessories, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This cost is to be funded through the Public Works Fleet ISF budget. (100% Internal Service Fund - Fleet) 

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works Fleet Services is responsible for maintaining County vehicles. To do so, Fleet Services buys parts,

accessories and warranty service from local automotive dealers. Because the County's fleet is comprised of mostly

Ford vehicles, Fleet purchases a substantial amount of items from Ford dealers. As bid on BidSync No. 1112-004,

four local Ford dealers were awarded this commodity, with Walnut Creek Ford being the primary vendor and Future

Ford the secondary one. The original bid was for a period of one year with four possible one-year extensions. This

request is for the third of the four possible one-year extensions with Future Ford. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Stan Burton,
925-313-7077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 34

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE a purchase order amendment with Future Ford



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this agreement is not approved, the purchase of Ford parts and accessories through Future Ford will discontinue.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a contract with Prime Mechanical

Service, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $500,000 to provide heating, air conditioning and ventilation services for the

period December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2017, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This cost is to be funded through the Facilities Services 14/15, 15/16 and 16/17 maintenance budget. (100% General

Fund) 

BACKGROUND: 

Public Works Facilities Services is responsible for maintaining the heating, air conditioning and ventilation systems

at all County facilities. The County does not currently have enough staff to complete the amount of maintenance

required. As bid on BidSync No. 1409-104, Prime Mechanical Service, Inc., was one of the lowest responsible and

responsive vendors and will become a secondary vendor for scheduled heating, air conditioning and ventilation

maintenance and emergency repairs. This request is for a three-year contract. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, heating, air conditioning and ventilation services with Prime Mechanical Service, Inc.

will discontinue. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Stan Burton,
925-313-7077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 35

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE a contract with Prime Mechanical Service, Inc.



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-323-24 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited), a corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$220,000, to provide temporary occupational, physical and speech therapists, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians,

medical social workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications at Contra Costa Regional Medical

Center (CCRMC) for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

In February 2013, the County Administrator approved and the Purchasing Services Manager executed Contract

#26-323-21 (as amended by Amendment Agreements #26-323-22 and #26-323-23) with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc.

(dba Therapists Unlimited) for the provision of temporary occupational, physical and speech therapists, pharmacists

and pharmacy technicians, medical social workers, ultrasound technologists and other ancillary classifications for the

period from January 1, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   C Rucker   

C. 36

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-323-24 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

2014 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #26-323-24 will allow Contractor to continue providing occupational, physical and speech

therapists, pharmacists and pharmacy technicians, medical social workers, ultrasound technologists and other

ancillary classifications through December 31, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients at CCRMC will not have access to Contractor’s services, which may result in

a reduction in the overall levels of service to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with Aspiranet, a Non-Profit Corporation, to increase the payment limit by $28,084.00 to a new payment

limit of $228,084.00 for continued receiving center services, with no change in the contract term of July 1, 2014

through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$228,084: 70% State 30% County 

BACKGROUND: 

This amendment will add $28,084 to the contract for unanticipated expenses. Contractor was selected through

competitive bid process, Request for Proposal 1136. The Receiving Center serves as the hub of the Employment and

Human Services Department (EHSD) emergency shelter system. It provides temporary care to children who have

been taken into protective custody and children and youth who are transitioning into foster placements. The

Receiving Center offers a homelike setting and is designed to promote stability in placement, focus on the needs of

the individual child, minimize move, and supports permanency at the early stages of EHSD intervention. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 37

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amend Contract with Aspiranet



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Contractor will not be fairly compensated for services provided.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This contract supports all five community outcomes: 1) "Children Ready for and Succeeding in School"; 2)"Children

and Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood"; 3)"Families that are Economically Self-Sufficient";

4)"Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing"; and 5) "Communities that are Safe and Provide a High Quality of

Life for Children and Families” by providing a homelike environment for children entering the Child Welfare system.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract with

STAND! For Families Free of Violence, in an amount not to exceed $108,072 to provide services for the Encourage

Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protection Orders Project for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31,

2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$108,072: 100% Federal Department of Justice grant (CFDA 16.590), no County costs. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Zero Tolerance for Domestic Violence Initiative (ZTDVI) received funds from the Department of Justice, Office

on Violence against Women, Community-Defined Solutions to Violence Against Women Project. The ZTDVI is

engaging the Contractor to assist in carrying out activities consistent with the funding application. 

The primary purpose of the Zero Tolerance for Domestic Violence, Community-Defined Solutions to Violence

Against Women Project is to develop and strengthen effective responses to violence against women. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 38

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with STAND! For Families Free of Violence 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Valuable services to assist in the prevention of violence against women will not be offered to citizens of Contra Costa

County. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract with

STAND! For Families Free of Violence, a Non-Profit Corporation, in an amount not to exceed $507,529.00 to

provide Phase II Lethality Assessment Program Implementation for Domestic Violence Homicide Prevention for the

period December 5, 2014  through September 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$507,529: 100% Federal Department of Justice Grant (CFDA #16.590). No County costs. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Zero Tolerance for Domestic Violence Initiative (ZTDVI) applied for and received funds from the US

Department of Justice, Office on Violence against Women (OVW), Domestic Violence Homicide Prevention

Demonstration (“Project”) in 2013. The Project will be implemented in two phases – an assessment phase (“Phase I”)

and an implementation phase (“Phase II”). OVW completed Phase I in September, 2014 and selected ZTDVI as one

of four sites to participate in Phase II of the Project and implement the Lethality Assessment Program (LAP), a

recognized promising practice. ZTDVI is engaging the Contractor to assist in carrying out activities consistent with

the funding application. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 39

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with STAND! For Families Free of Violence



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Valuable services will not be provided.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract Amendment

Agreement #26-744-1 with the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of its University of California, San Francisco

School of Medicine, effective November 15, 2014, amending Contract #26-744, to increase the payment limit by $70,000, from

$35,000 to $105,000 with no change in the original term of May 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment is funded 100% Enterprise I Funds. (No Rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

On August 6, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-744 with the Regents of the University of

California, on behalf of its University of California, San Francisco 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, MD,
370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   C Rucker   

C. 40

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment #26-744-1 with the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of its University of California,

San Francisco School of Medicine



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

School of Medicine, for the period from May 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016, for the provision of a residency training

program in family medicine at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #26-744-1 will allow the Contractor to provide additional residency

training programs in family medicine at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers,

through June 30, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, County residents will not receive the services of this residency training program at Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Risk Manager to execute a contract with Contra Costa County Schools Insurance

Group (CCCSIG) in an amount not to exceed $198,500 to perform medical billing reviews for the period effective

January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funded by the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund 

BACKGROUND: 

The Contra Costa County Schools Insurance Group (CCCSIG) and the Contra Costa County Risk Management

Division created a joint partnership public entities in 2003. This was so that CCCSIG could provide workers'

compensation medical bill review services for Risk Management at lower annual review costs than the County's

previous private provider. This contract allows the County to continue to receive the same services. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The County would not be able to maintain compliance of the California Department of Industrial Relations. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Sharon Hymes-Offord
925.335.1450

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 41

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Sharon Offord Hymes, Risk Manager

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with Contra Costa County Schools Insurance Group (CCCSIG) 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a contract with Michael Baker

International in an amount not to exceed $570,000 for flood safety services for the period February 1, 2015 through

January 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$570,000 will be received through a grant from the Department of Water Resources to implement new flood safety

plans. 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Cost County Public Works applied to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for a grant for the planning

and implementations of the Contra Costa County Flood Emergency Response Program. DWR funded $570,000 for

Contra Costa County’s Delta Flood Readiness activities. The Office of Emergency Services is a sub grantee of this

DWR grant. Flood is ranked number 4 in the county’s natural hazards local mitigation plan and therefore will greatly

benefit from the grant projects as follows:

• Develop new or update existing local maintaining agency flood safety plans.

• Develop an emergency operations plan flood 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Sandra Brown,
925-335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 42

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Flood Safety Services



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

safety annex for the Emergency Operations Center.

• All plans will contain flood contingency maps to include evacuation routes and rally points.

• Develop and distribute Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District public outreach campaign materials regarding

flood safety.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Office of the Sheriff would not have the funds to develop or revise new flood safety plans.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

N/A



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute an Amended

and Restated Software License and Support Agreement with Northwoods Consulting Partners, Inc. in an amount not

to exceed $1,089,814 for the continued license and support of the document management software, and for software

customization services for the period February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$1,089,814: 100% Administrative Overhead (10% County; 45% State; 45% Federal)

BACKGROUND: 

The Employment and Human Services Department (EHSD) entered into three contracts with Northwoods

Counsulting Partners, Inc. in December 2012 for the license, implementation, and support of Northwoods’ document

management system, Compass Pilot. The document management system provides functionality for on-line storage,

retrieval, and transfer of critical documents required to determine and verify eligibility to all benefit programs

administered by EHSD and meet 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 43

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amend Contract with Northwoods Consulting Partners



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

State-mandated case management requirements. The three original agreements (implementation, software support,

and software licensing) have been amended several times and the implementation agreement is expired. A separate

support contract was entered into in 2014 to acquire additional help-desk services for the weekend to support staff’s

processing of a significant increase in applications resulting from implementation of the Affordable Care Act. The

Amended and Restated Software License and Support Agreement consolidates the terms and conditions of the

license and support agreements as amended, incorporates the terms of Contract #19-893 for extended help desk

services, and makes changes to license acquisitions, discount rates, and invoicing methodology. The Amended and

Restated Software License and Support Agreement provides for support of the software for the annual support period

of February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2016, and is necessary to meet contractual obligations for EHSD staff’s

continued access to the system to perform critical and daily tasks and to receive basic software support for business

continuity. In addition, the Amended and Restated Software License and Support Agreement provides for extended

help desk services, licenses for new employees, system enhancements, and consultation services, including services

necessary to support other technical initiatives for which Compass Pilot document images, data, and functionality are

key components.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to approve the Amended and Restated Software License and Support Agreement will preclude systems

access and support, and will disrupt daily operations, processing and review of eligibility, clients’ receipt of benefits,

and overall customer service. Not only would document management be negatively impacted but business processes

and tasks that are largely driven by the use of Compass Pilot and CalWIN, the system used for the administration of

benefits, would be disrupted. System enhancements and services that would improve efficiency and experience in

using the system and initiatives dependent upon Compass Pilot data, images, and functionality would be delayed.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to execute on behalf of the Animal Services

Department, a purchase order with Tri Star Vet in an amount not to exceed $139,928.08 to procure specialized

stainless steel stackable rolling cat cages. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The purchase is 100% funded by donations to the Animal Services Department. No additional County costs are

anticipated. 

BACKGROUND: 

The standards of care for animal housing within the Animal Shelter industry have dramatically increased and have

been redefined over the last 10 years. One standard that was changed was the required space necessary for feline

housing to prevent stress related diseases. The need for improved housing was also due to the animals’ length of stay

in a Shelter which has tripled over time. Severe confinement over an extended period of time has been shown to be

the main cause of diseases in a shelter environment. The old feline housing at the Animal Services Department was

outdated and considered, by current standards, to be inhumane. Presently we have a portion of the feline housing that

has been here since the 1960s. It must be changed. In addition, the new, larger cages are mobile and easier to handle

making the care of the animals more easily facilitated by Shelter staff. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Kathy O'Connell
925-335-8370

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 44

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Glenn E. Howell, Animal Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Animal Services Rolling Cat Cages



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Contra Costa County Animal Services Department will be operating the shelter with below-standard feline

cages, causing stress related diseases within the Shelter.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, on behalf of the Animal Services Department, to

execute a purchase order with La Boit Specialty Vehicles in an amount not to exceed $170,000.00, to procure a

mobile adoption vehicle, per Bid No. 1411-110. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Cost is to be charged directly to the Animal Services Department and will be 100% funded by donations to the

Animal Services Department. No additional County costs are anticipated under this Resolution. 

BACKGROUND: 

A modern mobile adoption vehicle is long overdue. It will enhance our exposure at our weekly mobile adoption

events, make for a great marketing tool, and most importantly improve our efforts to place animals into loving

homes. The old adoption van is noisy and uncomfortable for animals and very unsettling for many dogs during

transport. A new adoption van will be quiet and comfortable for the animals during transport. It will afford us the

opportunity for the first time to bring cats to mobile adoption events. It has viewing areas that are comfortable not just

for the animals, but for the public as well. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Kathy O'Connell
925-335-8370

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 45

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Glenn E. Howell, Animal Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Mobile Adoption Vehicle Resolution



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to allow procurement of the Mobile Adoption Van impedes Animal Services’ ability to increase and expand

our mobile adoption events and increase public access to adoptable animals.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-788 with Peyman Keyashian, M.D., a sole proprietor, in an amount not to exceed $400,000, to provide

anesthesiology services at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC) for the

period from January 19, 2015 through January 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Enterprise Fund I. 

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years, the County has contracted with Medical, Dental, and Mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized professional services that are not otherwise available in its Hospital and Health Centers. Under Contract

#26-788, the Contractor will provide anesthesiology services at CCRMC, including but not limited to, consultation,

training, medical procedures, and on-call coverage for the General and Obstetric Units, for the period from January

19, 2015 through January 31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, M.D.,
925-370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   C Rucker   

C. 46

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-788 with Peyman Keyashian, M.D.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring anesthesiology services at CCRMC will not have access to

Contractor’s services, which may result in a reduction in the overall levels of service to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-756-1, with Cypress Meadows Antioch, LLC, a Limited Liability Corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$153,096, to provide residential board and care services for post medical, surgical, and/or custodial care patients who

have been discharged from Contra Costa Regional Medical Center from November 1, 2014, through October 31,

2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by County General Fund. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

In March 2014, the County Administrator approved and the Purchasing Services Manager executed Contract #26-756

with Cypress Meadows of Antioch, LLC for the provision of residential board and care services for post medical,

surgical, and/or custodial care patients who have been discharged from Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and

would otherwise not have appropriate follow up care from November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #26-756-1 will allow Contractor to continue providing services at an increased level of care

through October 31, 2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 925-370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   C Rucker   

C. 47

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-756-1 with Cypress Meadows Antioch, LLC



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients will not have access to Contractor’s services, which may result in a reduction

in the levels of service to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Clerk-Recorder, or designee, to execute a contract amendment with AtPac, Inc.,

effective February 3, 2015, to increase the payment limit by $17,644 to a new payment limit of $1,672,852 to provide

32 CQCS RT and 32 CQCS-W Cyberscience software licenses, with no change to the original term. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no impact on the County General Fund. The original contract and this amendment are funded by dedicated

Modernization Trust Fund monies (Budgetary Org. 2451). The cost of this contract amendment will increase the

contract payment limit by $17,644, from $1,655,208 to $1,672,852. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Clerk-Recorder contracts with AtPac, Inc. for a custom software system that provides the core functions of

recording documents, providing certified copies of records, issuing marriage licenses, imaging and indexing records

for permanent preservation/archive, maintaining multiple database systems for redundancy and back-up and several

other vital functions the division provides to the public. County departments are granted access to the Recorder's

system data when the required software license is obtained for each user. This amendment will allow the Assessor's

Office to increase the number of users accessing the Recorder's system data to facilitate business processes. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Barbara Dunmore
335-7919

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 48

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Joseph E. Canciamilla, Clerk-Recorder

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Clerk-Recorder Imaging and Information Systems



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Should the Board of Supervisors elect not to approve the recommendation, the Assessor's access to the Recorder's

system data will be limited to its existing users.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.

ATTACHMENTS



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74–190–15 with Mental Health Management I, Inc. (dba Canyon Manor), a non-profit corporation, in an

amount not to exceed $217,095, to provide mental health subacute care and treatment services, for the period from

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. This Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31,

2015, in an amount not to exceed $108,548.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Mental Health Realignment. (Rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population in that it provides long-term care for adults with serious mental

illness who require skilled nursing inpatient psychiatric care.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   C Rucker   

C. 49

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74–190–15 with Mental Health Management I, Inc. (dba Canyon Manor)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

In January 14, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #74–190–14 with Mental Health Management I, Inc.

(dba Canyon Manor), for the period from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, which included a six-month automatic extension

through December 31, 2014, for the provision of mental health subacute care and treatment services. 
Approval of Novation Contract #74–190–15 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County will not receive any mental health subacute care and treatment services provided by

this Contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent or designee to execute, on behalf of the Probation Department, a

purchase order with Bay Cities Produce Co., Inc. in an amount not to exceed $150,000, for purchase of whole and

processed fresh fruits and vegetables at Juvenile Hall and Orin Allen Youth Rehabilitation Facility, for the period

January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The annual cost of $150,000 is included in the Probation Department's annual budget and costs are partially offset by

the National School Lunch Program. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Probation Department is required to provide residents detained at the Juvenile Hall and Orin Allen Youth

Rehabilitation Facility with three meals and a snack each day. These meals must conform to the guidelines of Title 15

article 9 section 1461 CCR. In addition to the state mandated guidelines, breakfast and lunch must meet the

requirements of the Hunger Free Kids Act of 2010 to qualify for reimbursement through the National School Lunch

Program. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Danielle Fokkema,
925-313-4195

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 50

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Philip F. Kader, County Probation Officer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order with Bay Cities Produce Co. Inc.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Department will be unable to supply fresh fruits and vegetables to the two juvenile facilities and will not be in

compliance with California Code of Regulations Title 15 Minimum Standards for Juvenile Facilities.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This action supports one of the community outcomes established in the Children's Report Card: 1) "Children and

Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood".



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent on behalf of the Health Services Department to execute an amendment

to Purchase Order #F51317 with Fisher Scientific, Inc., to add $150,000 for a new total of $450,000, for various

clinical and pathology laboratory reagents, small equipment, supplies and test kits for Contra Costa Regional

Medical Center (CCRMC) and the Contra Costa Health Centers, with no change in the original term of May 2, 2014

through April 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

These reagents, small equipment, supplies, test kits, controls, etc. are used for patient’s specimen testing and are

specific to the analyzer used for testing. Among the tests conducted are those for diabetes, kidney function, liver,

hepatitis, iron deficiency, cardiovascular disease, cancer, and many others. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this Purchase Order is not approved the lab will not be able to perform patient testing. This will impact patient

safety and care. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 51

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Thermo Fisher Scientific, Inc. Purchase Order Amendment 



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health Services Department, to execute an amendment

to Purchase Order #F43992 with Abbott Laboratories, Inc., to add $40,000 for a new total of $120,000 for reagents

and supplies needed for the IStat Handheld Analyzer for Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (CCRMC) and the

Contra Costa Health Centers, with no change in the original term from September 1, 2012 through August 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Abbott Laboratories Inc., has been CCRMC’s primary supplier of single use cartridges for the lactic acid test. The

Integrated Nurses Leadership Program Cohort on Sepsis Mortality Reduction Project has requested a 10 minute

turnaround time for lactic acid results ordered on patients with possible sepsis. The IStat Analyzer with the single use

cartridge can perform testing in 3 minutes. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this Purchase Order is not approved then CCRMC Clinical Laboratory will not be able to result the lactic acid test

ordered by our medical staff in a timely manner thus affecting patient care. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 52

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Abbott Laboratories, Inc. Purchase Order Amendment 



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approval and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of Health Services Department, to execute an amendment to

Purchase Order #F46963 with Zebra Technologies to add $140,000 to a new total of $540,000, to provide patient

wrist bands and labeling at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center, with no change in the original term of June 5,

2013 through June 4, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Funding is included in the Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Zebra Technologies provides the labels and wrist bands used to identify patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical

Center and Contra Costa Health Centers. This is essential to patient identification and safety. Zebra Technologies is a

Novation Group Purchasing vendor, thereby ensuring that the County has secured the best prices for these products. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this Purchase Order is not approved, the risk of misidentifying patients would increase, which could result in harm

to patients. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 53

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: ZEBRA TECHNOLOGIES PURCHASE ORDER AMENDMENT 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health Services Department, to execute purchase order

with Biomerieux Inc., in the amount of $135,000 for reagents and supplies for the Pathology and Clinical Laboratory

at the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center, for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in the Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Biomerieux, Inc. sells reagents and supplies that are specific for use with the Mini Vidas and Vitek II equipment.

These reagents and supplies are needed for various blood and body fluid culture sensitivity tests done at the

Pathology and Clinical Laboratory at the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

N/A 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

The CCRMC Clinical Laboratory will not be able to perform patient testing without the requested supplies and

reagents. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 54

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: BIOMERIEUX INC. BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health Services Department, to execute a Purchase

Order with Beckman Coulter, Inc. in the amount of $280,000 for reagents and supplies needed to conduct urinalysis

testing on patients seen at the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (CCRMC) and the Contra Costa Health Centers

for the period February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in the Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Beckman Coulter is the laboratory’s prime source of reagents and supplies used for urinalysis testing done on the

Uricell 2000 Urinalysis Analyzer. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this Purchase Order is not approved, the laboratory will not have the reagents and supplies needed to properly care

for patients seen at the CCRMC and the Contra Costa Health Centers. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 55

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: BECKMAN COULTER, INC BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of Health Services Department, to execute a purchase order

with American Medical Systems, Inc. in the amount of $250,000 for supplies and implants for the gynecological and

urological surgery units at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center, for the period January 1, 2015 through December

31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

American Medical System‘s mini-arc is a single incision sling used for stress incontinence and mid-urethral support

for incontinence. Anterior elevate and vault suspension biologic dermis is used for rectocele and vaginal apex

support. American Medical Systems is the only vendor that sells these specialty women’s health products. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this Purchase Order is not approved, the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center's Gynecology and Urology Units

would not have needed surgical supplies. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 56

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: American Medical Systems, Inc. Purchase Order 



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health Services Department, to execute a Purchase

Order with Sanofi Pasteur, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $150,000, for vaccines and injectable medications at

Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers, for the period January 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2015.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% funding is included in the Enterprise Fund I budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. furnishes pharmaceuticals for patient care provided in the hospital and the clinics.

These vaccines and other injectable medications are essential in patient care. We have been purchasing vaccines and

other injectable medications from Sanofi Pasteur since 2007. This is a renewal of blanket purchase order #48783,

which expired on December 31, 2014.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Anna Roth, 370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Crystal Grayson   

C. 57

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Renewal of Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. Blanket Purchase Order



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this purchase order is not approved, we will not be able to provide needed vaccines and other pharmaceutical

products to our patient population at CCRMC and Health Centers. As part of our responsibility as a health care

organization, we must provide needed vaccinations to our patient population in order to prevent disease, as well as

prevent the spread of disease.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RATIFY the County Clerk-Recorder’s, or designee’s, execution of a contract amendment with Election Systems &

Software, LLC, which increased the payment limit by $532,964 to a new payment limit of $1,583,223 and extended

the contract termination date from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2016, for continued hardware and software

maintenance services and support. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board approved this contract amendment on January 6, 2015 and the contract was executed. The Board Order,

however, inadvertently misstated the new contract payment limit that was accurately reflected in the contract

amendment. Today's recommendation would rectify the error and provide the necessary authorization for the

contract. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Should the Board of Supervisors elect not to approve the recommendation, proper authority will not have been

granted for the contract amendment. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF

SUPERVISORS

Contact: 

925-335-7808

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 58

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Joseph E. Canciamilla, Clerk-Recorder

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Correct the January 6, 2015 Board Order Item C. 42, with Election Systems & Software LLC



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment Agreement #22-852-14 with Greater Richmond Inter-Faith Program, a non-profit corporation, effective

January 1, 2015, to amend Contract #22-852-13, to increase the payment limit by $36,477, from $337,388 to a new

payment limit of $373,865, with no change in the original term of September 1, 2014 through August 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment is funded 51% by Federally Qualified Health Centers, 13% Targeted Case Management; 13% Public

Health Administration funds; and 23% from County of Alameda, as grantee of Federal Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing direct consultation, technical assistance

and implementation of health education activities at various high schools.

On September 9, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #22-852-13 with Greater Richmond Inter-Faith

Program for the period from September 1, 2014 through August 31, 2015, for the provision of consultation 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Wendel Brunner, MD,
313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker   

C. 59

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment #22-852-14 with Greater Richmond Inter-Faith Program



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and technical assistance to Health Services Department’s Clinic Service to School-based Health Centers program.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #22-852-14 will allow the Contractor to provide additional infectious

disease consulting services to the School-based Health Centers Program, through August 31, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, additional infectious disease consultation to school-based health center programs

will not be provided to coordinate health education activities at various high schools throughout Contra Costa County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County Contract

#26-938-22 with David H.C. Raphael, M.D., a self-employed individual, in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000, for

the provision of general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa

Health Centers, for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Enterprise I Budget. Cost to the County depends upon utilization. As appropriate,

patients and/or third party payors will be billed for services. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On February 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-938-21 with David H.C. Raphael, M.D., to

provide general surgery services including consultation, training, on-call, medical and/or surgical procedures, for

patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC), for the period from

January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #26-938-22 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, MD,
370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker   

C. 60

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-938-22 with David H.C. Raphael, M.D.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

will allow the Contractor to continue to provide professional general surgery services, including, clinic coverage,

consultation, training and medical and/or surgical procedures, through December 31, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring professional general surgery services at CCRMC will not have

access to Contractor’s professional services, which may result in a reduction in the overall levels of service to the

community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74-468-1 with Rainbow Community Center of Contra Costa County, a non-profit corporation, in an

amount not to exceed $486,496, to provide specialized behavioral health treatment services to members of the

lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer and questioning (LGBTQ-2S) community and their families, for the period

from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. This Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December

31, 2015, in an amount not to exceed $243,248.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 16% by Federal Financial Participation; 84% Mental Health Service Act (MHSA). 

BACKGROUND: 

On February 25, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #74-468 with Rainbow Community Center of

Contra Costa County to provide specialized behavioral health treatment services to members of the lesbian, gay,

bisexual, transgender, queer and questioning (LGBTQ-2S) community and their families for the period from 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: E Suisala ,   C Rucker   

C. 61

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74-468-1 with Rainbow Community Center of Contra Costa County



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, which include a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2014. 

Approval of Novation Contract #74-468-1, replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing specialized behavioral services through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, clients will not receive specialized behavioral health services provided by Rainbow

Community Center of Contra Costa County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74-058-20 with Seneca Family of Agencies, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$7,661,820, to provide mobile crisis response and school- and community-based children’s specialty mental health

services for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. This Contract includes a six-month automatic

extension through December 31, 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,830,910.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 42% by Federal Financial Participation, 41% Mental Health Realignment, 13% Mt. Diablo

Unified School District, 4% Mental Health Services Act. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 10, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #74-058-19 with Seneca Family of

Agencies for the provision of mobile crisis response and children’s specialty mental health services, for the period

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, which included a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2014.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon, 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: E Suisala ,   C Rucker   

C. 62

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74-058-20 with Seneca Family of Agencies



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Approval of Novation Contract #74-058-20 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing mobile crisis response and school- and community-based children’s specialty

mental health services through June 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, SED children throughout the County will not have access to Contractor’s mobile

crisis, and school- and community-based mental health services possibly resulting in the need for higher levels of care.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24–429–57 with Ujima Family Recovery Services, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$1,692,084, to provide residential and outpatient treatment for pregnant and parenting women and their small

children, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 84% by Federal Perinatal Set-Aside and 16% by Drug Medi-Cal funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing family-centered alcohol and drug treatment

services to pregnant and parenting women and their children, in order to prevent perinatal substance abuse and

improve birth outcomes. 

On January 14, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24–429–56 with Ujima Family Recovery

Services for the period from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, which included a six-month automatic extension

through December 31, 2014, to provide residential and outpatient treatment for pregnant and parenting women and

their small children

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: E Suisala ,   C Rucker   

C. 63

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24–429–57 with Ujima Family Recovery Services



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Approval of Contract #24–429–57 will replace the automatic extension under the prior contract and allow the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this Contract is not approved, pregnant and parenting women will not receive the alcohol and drug treatment

services they need which may result in perinatal substance abuse and additional risk to their babies.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This Alcohol and Drug Abuse program supports the Board of Supervisors’ “Families that are Safe, Stable, and

Nurturing” community outcome by providing parenting education, stability, and safety for mothers (and their

children) and pregnant women who are alcohol and drug dependent, while they are in substance abuse treatment.

Expected outcomes include delivery of drug-free babies, decreased use of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs, reduction

in the number of relapses, and creation of a sober social network.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74–106–17 with Adolescent Treatment Centers, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$358,838, to provide mental health services for Seriously Emotionally Disturbed (SED) dually-diagnosed adolescents

at its Thunder Road Facility, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. This Contract includes a

six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015, in an amount not to exceed $179,419.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 50% by Federal Financial Participation and 50% by Realignment. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing mental health services to adolescents with

emotional and behavioral problems to improve school performance, reduce unsafe behavioral practices, and reduce

the need for out-of-home placements. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: E Suisala ,   C Rucker   

C. 64

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74–106–17 with Adolescent Treatment Centers, Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

On September 24, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Novation Contract #74–106–16 with Adolescent

Treatment Centers, Inc, for the period from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, which included a six-month

automatic extension through December 31, 2014, for the provision of day rehabilitation and mental health services

for SED Dually-Diagnosed adolescents at its Thunder Road Facility. 

Approval of Novation Contract #74–106–17 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, SED dually-diagnosed adolescents’ access reduced to mental health services that are

provided at Contractor’s Thunder Road Facility and may require higher and more costly levels of treatment.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

This program supports the following Board of Supervisors’ community outcomes: “Children Ready For and

Succeeding in School”; “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing”; and “Communities that are Safe and Provide

a High Quality of Life for Children and Families”. Expected program outcomes include an increase in positive social

and emotional development as measured by the Child and Adolescent Functional Assessment Scale (CAFAS).



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE THE Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute a Software and Services Agreement

with 3M Cogent, Inc., in an amount not to exceed, $657,000 for the purchase of mobile identification devices,

software, implementation services, and support of the software, for the period from January 1, 2015 through

December 31, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No County Cost. $657,000 from CAL ID Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The California Identification System (Cal-ID) is the automated system maintained by the California Department of

Justice (DOJ) for retaining fingerprint files and identifying latent fingerprints. Cal-ID funds are collected from the

fees from each vehicle registered - two dollars for non-commercial vehicles and four dollars from commercial

vehicles - and are used to fund programs that enhance the capacity of the state and local law enforcement to provide

mobile Automated Fingerprint Identification Systems (AFIS) that allow identification of individuals involved in

motor vehicle crimes.

The California Department of Justice has established the Remote Access Network (RAN), which is a uniform

statewide 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Sandra Brown, 335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 65

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 3M Gogent, Inc., Modbile Indentification Software Contract



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

network of equipment and procedures allowing local law enforcement agencies direct access to the Cal-ID System.

The Contra Costa County local RAN board determines the placement of RAN equipment within the County, and

coordinates the acceptance, delivery, and installation of RAN equipment. Acting as the local RAN board, mobile

fingerprint identification hardware has been distributed to local law enforcement agencies within the County pursuant

to the criteria specified in the Penal Code.

Under the proposed contract, additional mobile fingerprint devices, software, implementation services, and software

support will be purchased so that local law enforcement agencies can connect to the Cal-ID system while in the field.

The 3M Cogent Mobile Identification (Mobile ID) solution provides a system that manages the transactions of mobile

fingerprint captures from the field. The system will manage searches of the local Automated Fingerprint

Identification System (AFIS) as well as the California Department of Justices’ (Cal-DOJ) AFIS and Federal Bureau

of Investigations’ (FBI) Repository for Individuals of Special Concern (RISC) databases. The mobile identification

devices and software bring the power of a full-scale AFIS to officers’ hands while in the field for all agencies within

Contra Costa, to provide fast, accurate identity verification, arrest records, and warrant information on subjects

contacted in the field.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Office of the Sheriff is not allowed to contract with 3M Cogent for the Mobile ID hardware and software,

officers will not have access to quick, accurate and up to date information on subjects while out in the field. This may

lead to the release of subjects in the field that should be put into custody.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-789 with Hugo E. Altamirano, Inc. a professional corporation, in an amount not to exceed $400,000, to provide

anesthesiology services at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC) for the

period from January 19, 2015 through January 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Enterprise Fund I. 

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years, the County has contracted with Dental, Medical and Mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized services that are not otherwise available in its Hospital and Health Centers. Under Contract #26-789 the

Contractor will provide anesthesiology services at CCRMC, including but not limited to; consultation, training,

administrative services, medical procedures, on-call, and coverage for the General and Obstetrics Units for the period

from January 19, 2015 through January 31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, M.D.,
925-370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   C Rucker   

C. 66

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-789 with Hugo E. Altamirano, Inc.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring anesthesiology services at CCRMC will not have access to

Contractor’s services, which may result in a reduction in the overall level of services to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-971-21 with Ramon Berguer, M.D., a self-employed individual, in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000, for the

provision of general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health

Centers, for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded by Enterprise Fund I. Cost to the County depends upon utilization. As appropriate, patients

and/or third party payors will be billed for services. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years the County has contracted with Medical, Dental, and Mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized professional services. 

On January 14, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-971-20 with Ramon Berguer, M.D., to

provide general surgery services including consultation, training, on-call, medical and/or surgical procedures, for

patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, M.D.,
370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker   

C. 67

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-971-21 with Ramon Berguer, M.D.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC), for the period from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #26-971-21 will allow the Contractor to continue to provide general surgery services, through

December 31, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring professional general surgery services at CCRMC will not have

access to Contractor’s services, which may result in a reduction in the overall level of services to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24–213–51 with Desarrollo Familiar, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $263,380,

to provide mental health services in West County for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. This

Contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015, in an amount not to exceed $131,690.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 18% by Federal Medi-Cal, 40% by Substance Abuse/Mental Health Services Administration

(SAMHSA) Grant and 42% by Mental Health Realignment. (No rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing information and referrals, consultation

and education, and outpatient mental health services for Spanish-speaking, mentally ill clients in West Contra Costa

County at Familias Unidas Counseling Center.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon, 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   C Rucker   

C. 68

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24-213-51 with Desarollo Familiar, Inc. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

On December 17, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #24–213–50 with Desarrollo Familiar, Inc., for

the period from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, which included a six-month automatic extension through

December 31, 2014, for the provision of mental health services in West County. 

Approval of Novation Contract #24-213-51 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows

the Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, a significant number of County’s mentally ill, Spanish-speaking adult clients in

West County will experience reduced access to the information, referrals, consultation, education, and outpatient

mental health services that they need.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-904-28 with Stephen D. Weiss, M.D., a self-employed individual, in an amount not to exceed $1,640,000, for the

provision of general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health

Centers, for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded by Enterprise Fund I. Cost to the County depends upon utilization. As appropriate, patients

and/or third party payors will be billed for services. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years the County has contracted with Medical, Dental and Mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized professional services, which are not otherwise available.

On January 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-904-27 with Stephen D. Weiss, M.D., to

provide general surgery services including consultation, training, on-call, medical and/or surgical procedures, for

patients 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, MD,
370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker   

C. 69

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-904-28 with Stephen D. Weiss, M.D.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC), for the period from January 1,

2014 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #26-904-28, will allow the Contractor to continue to provide general surgery services, through

December 31, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County’s clients will not have access to Contractor’s professional services, which

may result in a reduction in overall levels of service to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #74-463-2 with Bi-Bett Corporation, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed $129,590, to

provide transitional housing services for homeless adult males who have recently completed substance use treatment,

including referrals from County’s Assembly Bill (AB) 109 program, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June

30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by AB 109. (No rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing specialized transitional housing services

for homeless adult males referred from County’s AB 109 Program and from substance use disorder treatment

programs. Contractor’s program is designed to help residents maintain sobriety and other gains achieved in treatment

while they participate 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon, 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   C Rucker   

C. 70

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #74-463-2 with Bi-Bett Corporation 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

in employment and self-sufficiency services designed to support their transition to permanent housing and productive

community engagement.

In February 11, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract approved Novation Contract #74-463-1 with

Bi-Bett Corporation for the provision of transitional housing services for homeless adult males who have recently

completed substance use treatment, including referrals from County’s AB 109 program, for the period January 1,

2014 through June 30, 2014. This Contract included a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Novation Contract #74-463-2 replaces the automatic extension under the prior Contract and allows the

Contractor to continue providing services through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County clients who are in need of transitional housing services will not have access

to Contractor’s services possibly resulting in substance use relapse or recidivism. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-715-3 with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $1,350,000, for the

provision of general surgery services for patients at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health

Centers, for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Enterprise Fund I. Cost to the County depends upon utilization. As appropriate,

patients and/or third party payors will be billed for services. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

For a number of years the County has contracted with Medical, Dental and Mental Health Specialists to provide

specialized services that are not otherwise available.

On January 7, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-715-2 with Walnut Creek Surgical Association,

to provide general surgery services including consultation, training, on-call, medical and/or surgical procedures, for

patients 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, MD,
370-5101

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker   

C. 71

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-715-3 with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC), for the period from January 1,

2014 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #26-715-3 will allow the Contractor to continue to provide professional general surgery

services through December 31, 2017.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring professional general surgery services at CCRMC will not have

access to Contractor’s services, which may result in a reduction in the overall level of services to the community.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#26-847-21 with Michael S. Baker, M.D., a self-employed individual, in an amount not to exceed $345,000, to

provide general surgery services at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers, for the

period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Enterprise Fund I. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On February 11, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #26-847-20 with Michael Baker, M.D., for the

period from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, for the provision of general surgery services for Contra

Costa Regional Medical Center and Contra Costa Health Centers (CCRMC).

Approval of Contract #26-847-21 will allow Contractor to continue providing general surgery services, including

acting as the medical director of General Surgery at CCRMC, through December 31, 2017.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  David Goldstein, MD,
370-5525

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker   

C. 72

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #26-847-21 with Michael S. Baker, M.D.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, patients requiring professional general surgery services at CCRMC will not have

access to Contractor’s services, which may result in a reduction in the overall levels of service to the community.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment Agreement #23-299-12 with the City of El Cerrito, for its Fire Department, a public agency, effective

July 1, 2014, to amend Contract #23-299-10 (as amended by Amendment Agreement #23-299-11), to increase the

Contract Payment Limit by $23,843 from $328,630 to a new total payment limit of $352,473, with no change in the

original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no County General Fund impact. All payments are funded under CSA EM-1 (Measure H). (No rate increase).

BACKGROUND: 

County Service Area EM-1 was established in 1989 to provide enhanced emergency medical services, including rapid

paramedic-staffed ambulance response, to the residents of Contra Costa County. 

On July 10, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #23-299-10 (as amended by Contract Amendment

Agreement #23-299-11), with the City of El Cerrito to provide first responder fire paramedic services by 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost (313-9554)

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 73

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment Agreement #23-299-12 with the City of El Cerrito for its Fire Department



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

the El Cerrito Fire Department, within the City of El Cerrito and the Kensington Fire Protection District, for the

period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015, which included mutual indemnification to hold both parties harmless

for any claims arising out of the performance of the contract.

On May 14, 2013, the Board of Supervisors authorized the County’s Health Services Emergency Medical Services

Division approval of CSA EM-1 fire agency funding, based on a population-based funding formula, to partially offset

cost to the to fire agencies providing first responder Paramedic services in Zone B. The transition to the

population-based funding formula requires adjustment of the total payment limit of the current Contract.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #23-299-12 will allow the Contractor to provide additional First

Responder Paramedic Program services, through June 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, the County will not be able to reimburse Contractor for the cost of additional

prehospital emergency medical first responder services within the City of El Cerrito for its Fire Department, until

patient care is assumed by County’s emergency ambulance contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Acting as the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors and the Governing Board of the Contra Costa County Fire

Protection District, APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director and the Contra Costa County Fire

Protection District Chief, or designees, to execute Contract Amendment Agreement #23-367-10, effective July 1,

2014 to amend Contract #23-367-8 (as amended by Contract Amendment Agreement #23-367-9), to increase the

Contract Payment Limit by $315,553 from $3,796,736 to a new total payment limit of $4,112,290, with no change in

the original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no County General Fund impact. All payments are funded under County Service Area (CSA) EM-1 (Measure

H). (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

County Service Area EM-1 was established in 1989 to provide enhanced emergency medical services, including rapid

paramedic-staffed ambulance response, to the residents of Contra Costa County. 

On July 10, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #23-367-8 (as amended by Contract Amendment

Agreement 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost, 313-9554

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 74

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment Agreement #23-367-10 with Contra Costa County Fire Protection District



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

#23-367-9), with Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, to provide prehospital emergency medical first

responder services of its First Responder Paramedic Program, for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30,

2015, which included mutual indemnification to hold both parties harmless for any claims arising out of the

performance of the contract.

On May 14, 2013, the Board of Supervisors authorized the County’s Health Services Emergency Medical Services

Division approval of CSA EM-1 fire agency funding, based on a population-based funding formula, to partially offset

cost to the to fire agencies providing first responder Paramedic services in Zone B. The transition to the

population-based funding formula requires adjustment of the total payment limit of the current Contract.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #23-367-10 will allow the Contractor to provide additional First

Responder Paramedic Program, through June 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, County will not be able to reimburse Contractor for the cost of additional

prehospital emergency medical first responder services within Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, until

patient care is assumed by County’s emergency ambulance contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment Agreement #23-389-9 with the City of Pinole for its Fire Department, a public Agency, effective July 1,

2014 to amend Contract #23-389-7 (as amended by Contract Amendment Agreement #23-389-8), to increase the

Contract Payment Limit by $15,439 from $219,086 to a new total payment limit of $234,525, with no change in the

original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no County General Fund impact. All payments are funded under CSA EM 1 (Measure H). (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

County Service Area EM-1 was established in 1989 to provide enhanced emergency medical services, including rapid

paramedic-staffed ambulance response, to the residents of Contra Costa County. 

On July 10, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #23-389-7 (as amended by Contract Amendment

Agreement #23-389-8), with the City of Pinole for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015, for 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost (313-9554)

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 75

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment Agreement #23-389-9 with the City of Pinole for its Fire Department



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

the provision of first responder fire paramedic services by the Pinole Fire Department within the City of Pinole which

included mutual indemnification to hold both parties harmless for any claims arising out of the performance of the

contract.

On May 14, 2013, the Board of Supervisors authorized the County’s Health Services Emergency Medical Services

Division approval of CSA EM-1 fire agency funding, based on a population-based funding formula, to partially offset

cost to the to fire agencies providing first responder Paramedic services in Zone B. The transition to the

population-based funding formula requires adjustment of the total payment limit of the current Contract.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #23-389-9 will allow the Contractor to provide additional First

Responder Paramedic Program services, through June 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, County will not be able to reimburse Contractor for the cost of additional

prehospital emergency medical first responder services within the City of Pinole, until patient care is assumed by

County’s emergency ambulance contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment Agreement #23-392-7 with the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District, a public Agency, effective July

1, 2014 to amend Contract #23-392-5 (as amended by Contract Amendment Agreement #23-692-6), to increase the

Contract Payment Limit by $15,439 from $219,086 to a new total payment limit of $234,525, with no change in the

original term of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no County General Fund impact. All payments are funded under CSA EM?1 (Measure H). (No rate increase).

BACKGROUND: 

County Service Area EM-1 was established in 1989 to provide enhanced emergency medical services, including rapid

paramedic-staffed ambulance response, to the residents of Contra Costa County. 

On July 10, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #23-392-5 (as amended by Contract Amendment

Agreement #23-392-6) with Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost (313-9554)

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 76

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment Agreement #23-392-7 with the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

District for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2015, for the provision of first responder fire paramedic

services, for the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District, which included mutual indemnification to hold harmless

both parties for any claims arising out of the performance of the contract.

On May 14, 2013, the Board of Supervisors authorized the County’s Health Services Emergency Medical Services

Division approval of CSA EM-1 fire agency funding, based on a population-based funding formula, to partially offset

cost to the to fire agencies providing first responder Paramedic services in Zone B. The transition to the

population-based funding formula requires adjustment of the total payment limit of the current Contract.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #23-392-7 will allow the Contractor to provide additional First

Responder Paramedic Program services, through June 30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, County will not be able to reimburse Contractor for the cost of additional

prehospital emergency medical first responder services within the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District, until

patient care is assumed by County’s emergency ambulance contractor. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order

with Producers Dairy Products Inc., in an amount not to exceed $175,000 for the purchase of dairy products as

needed for the Martinez and Marsh Creek detention facilities for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31,

2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$175,000. 100% County General Fund; Budgeted in fiscal year 2014/15. 

BACKGROUND: 

The vendor is a General Services Department-selected vendor providing the dairy products and other related products

needed by Martinez Detention Facility and Marsh Creek Detention Facility to support the feeding program

requirements of the inmate population. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Sheriff's Office would be unable to acquire dairy products from Producer's Dairy Products for the Martinez and

Marsh Creek Detention facilities. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

No impact. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Liz Arbuckle, 335-1529

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Liz Arbuckle,   Heike Anderson,   Tim Ewell   

C. 77

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Office of the Sheriff

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order - Producers Dairy Products, Inc.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order

with Producers Dairy Products Inc., in an amount not to exceed $200,000 for the purchase of dairy products as

needed for the West County Detention Facility for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$200,000. 100% County General Fund; Budgeted in fiscal year 2014/15. 

BACKGROUND: 

The vendor is a General Services Department-selected vendor providing the dairy products and other related products

needed by West County Detention Facility to support the feeding program requirements of the inmate population. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Sheriff's Office would be unable to acquire dairy products from Producers Dairy Products for the West County

Detention Facility. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

No impact. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Liz Arbuckle, 335-1529

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Heike Anderson,   Liz Arbuckle,   Tim Ewell   

C. 78

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Office of the Sheriff

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order - Producers Dairy Products, Inc.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE the County Counsel, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, a contract

with Baker & O'Brien, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $700,000 to provide refining industry analyses in connection

with refinery property tax appeals, for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cost of this contract is paid through property tax administration fees, approximately half of which come from the

general fund. 

BACKGROUND: 

Baker and O'Brien, Inc. is a consultant for refinery industry analyses, and provides the County with specialized

consulting services with respect to the refining industry and refineries in defending actual and anticipated assessment

appeals, which challenge the valuations of the taxable property of refineries in Contra Costa County. These appeals

typically place several billion dollars of valuation in issue. Assistance is required because valuations of refineries are

highly technical, requiring specialized knowledge that only industry experts have. The Assessor concurs with and

supports this recommendation. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Rebecca J. Hooley, Deputy County

Counsel, 925 335-1854

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, Auditor-Controller,   Gus Kramer, Assessor,   Baker & O'Brian, via County Counsel   

C. 79

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Sharon L. Anderson, County Counsel

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the contract is not approved, there is a greatly increased possibility of very significant but presently unquantifiable

impacts due to adverse decisions by the Assessment Appeals Board on large refinery valuation disputes.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Information Officer, or designee, to execute a contract with CSI

Telecommunications, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $200,000 to provide Federal Communications Commission

radio licensing and microwave frequency coordination as needed; for the period February 1, 2015 through January

31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$200,000 maximum (100% User Fees). The entire cost is budgeted under Org. 4295 and recovered through DoIT's

billing process. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Information Technology Microwave Division is responsible for maintaining the County's

Microwave System, including frequency coordination and licensing.

In accordance with Administrative Bullentin No 611.0, County Departments are required to obtain Board approval for

single item purchases over $100,000. The County Administrator's Office has reviewed this request and recommends

approval. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Ed Woo 925-383-2688

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 80

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Ed Woo, Chief Information Officer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract with CSI Telecommunications, Inc., for Telecommunications Engineering Services



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Should the Board elect to not approve the contract, DoIT will be unable to ensure the integrity of the County's

Microwave System. Proper maintenance of the system is essential for many reasons including homeland security and

public safety.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with First Baptist Church of Pittsburg, California, including modified indemnification language, to

increase the payment limit by $105,170 to a new limit of $1,237,440 to provide childcare services at Fairgrounds

Children’s Center with no change to the term July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$316,918 Federal funds / CFDA # 93.600

Administration for Children and Families

$815,352 State funds

California Department of Education / Child Development

BACKGROUND: 

On September 25, 2007 the Board approved the award of the operation of childcare services at the County-owned

facility, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  CSB (925) 681-6347

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Joanne Sanchez-Rosa,   Ressie Dayco,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 81

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014-15 Fairgrounds Center Childcare Services Operation, Amendment #2



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Fairgrounds Children’s Center, as a result of a Request for Proposal (RFP). First Baptist Church of Pittsburg was the

successful respondent to the RFP. The first nine (9) months of the contract was approved by the Board on the above

date, and the contract has been renewed annually since. The Board approved the contract for the 2014-15 program

year on June 24, 2014. 

Contra Costa County receives funds from the Administration for Children and Families (ACF) to provide Head Start

program services to program eligible County residents. County also receives funds from the California Department of

Education (CDE) Child Development program for State Preschool and General Childcare and Development program

services. The State requires an indemnification clause with County subcontractors wherein the subcontractor holds

harmless the State and its officers for any losses. 

The board approved a contract amendment to add 5 childcare slots to the Head Start Enhancement program on

September 9, 2014. This board order seeks approval to amend the contract to pass through the increased daily rate

provided by the State Department of Education to the County via the State Preschool contracts. The daily rate has

been increased from $19.53 to $20.50 per Child Day of Enrollment for State Preschool and from $29.41 to $30.88 for

General Childcare and Development. The number of slots per program remain unchanged. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County will not be able to more widely distribute childcare availability through partnership with

community based agencies.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3: “Families

that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.” These

outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood education,

nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Department Director, or designee, to execute a

contract amendment with Kids' Clubs Inc., including a modified indemnification language, to decrease the payment

limit by $253,369 to a new amount not to exceed $1,137,857 to provide State Preschool, Pre-kindergarten Family

Literacy, and Head Start services with no change to term July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

88.6% State funds California Department of Education

11.4 % Federal Administration for Children and Families

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa County receives funds California Department of Education (CDE) to provide State Preschool and

Pre-kindergarten Family Literacy services to program-eligible County residents. The County also receives funds from

Administration for Children and Families for Head Start services. In order to provide a wider distribution of services

to County residents, the 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  CSB (925) 681-6347

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Joanne Sanchez-Rosa,   Ressie Dayco,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 82

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014-15 Antioch Kids' Clubs Inc. childcare services contract amendment #1



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Department contracts with a number of community-based organizations. The board approved the 2014-15 contract on

June 24, 2014. 

This board order seeks approval to amend the contract in two ways. The first action is to pass through the increased

daily rate provided by the State Department of Education to the County via the State Preschool contracts. The daily

rate has been increased from $19.53 to $20.50 per Child Day of Enrollment for State Preschool and from $29.41 to

$30.88 for General Childcare and Development. The second action is to decrease the number of slots for the State

Preschool Part-Day program effective December 1, 2014. The Contractor had its direct contract with the California

Department of Education increased; due to limited capacity, the Contractor elected to reduce the number of slots

allocated to County-funded childcare programs from 192 to 48 slots, effective December 1, 2014.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County will be unable to meet childcare needs in this geographic area and fulfill State Preschool

program goals.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3: “Families

that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.” These

outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood education,

nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent to execute, on behalf of the Sheriff-Coroner, a purchase order

with Waxie Sanitary Supply, in an amount not to exceed $180,000 for the purchase of miscellaneous janitorial

supplies as needed within the County's detention facilities for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31,

2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$180,000. 100% General Fund; Budgeted in fiscal year 2014/15. 

BACKGROUND: 

Detention purchases janitorial supplies for over 2000 inmates. Items include over 100 cases a week of toilet paper,

paper towels, hand soap, gloves & other cleaning chemicals and supplies. Waxie Sanitary Supply serves as a

secondary supplier to Clean Source and is a GSD-select vendor. Pricing as per national IPA Janitorial and Sanitation

Supplies Agreement #1004849. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Sheriff's Office would be unable to acquire janitorial supplies on an as needed basis through Waxie Sanitary. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

No impact. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Liz Arbuckle,
925-335-1529

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Liz Arbuckle,   Heike Anderson,   Tim Ewell   

C. 83

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Purchase Order - Waxie Sanitary Supply



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Department Director, or designee, to execute a

contract amendment with Richmond Elementary School, Inc. including modified indemnification language, to

increase the payment limit by $9,498 to new amount not to exceed $200,736 to provide State Preschool services with

no change to term July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State funds

California Department of Education 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa County receives funds from California Department of Education to provide State Preschool services to

program eligible County residents. In order to provide a wider distribution of services to County residents, the

Department contracts with a number of community-based organizations. Approval of this contract will allow the

provision of childcare services for 48 children enrolled in Richmond College Prep 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  CSB (925) 681-6347

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Joanne Sanchez-Rosa,   Ressie Dayco,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 84

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014-15 Richmond Elementary School, Inc. childcare services contract amendment



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

preschool programs.

This amendment is to pass through the increased daily rate provided by the State Department of Education to the

County via the State Preschool contracts. The daily rate has been increased from $19.53 to $20.50 per Child Day of

Enrollment. The total number of 48 childcare slots remains unchanged.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County will not be able to more widely distribute childcare availability through partnership with

community based agencies.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3: “Families

that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.” These

outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood education,

nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

DECLARE as surplus and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, or designee, to dispose of fully depreciated vehicles

and equipment no longer needed for public use, as recommended by the Public Works Director, Countywide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND: 

Section 1108-2.212 of the County Ordinance Code authorizes the Purchasing Agent to dispose of any personal

property belonging to Contra Costa County and found by the Board of Supervisors not to be required for public use.

The property for disposal is either obsolete, worn out, beyond economical repair, or damaged beyond repair. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Public Works would not be able to dispose of surplus vehicles and equipment. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Daniel Lesnick,
(925)313-2376

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 85

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Disposal of Surplus Property



ATTACHMENTS

Surplus Vehicles and

Equip 



 ATTACHMENT TO BOARD ORDER February 3, 2015 

Department Description/Unit/Make/Model Serial No. Condition 
A. Obsolete  B. Worn Out 
C. Beyond economical repair 
D.  Damaged beyond repair 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 1999 FORD E-250 CARGO VAN  #4522 (72240 
Miles) 

1FTVE24M4XHC12525 
C. BEYOND ECONOMICAL 
REPAIR 

CONSERVATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

2005 HONDA CIVIC HYBRID #0263 (105152 Miles) JHMES96645S021539 
C. BEYOND ECONOMICAL 
REPAIR 

EHS/COMM. 
SERVICES 

2002 FORD TAURUS SEDAN. #0332 (134488  
Miles) 

1FAFP52U92A150081 B. WORNOUT 

ANIMAL SERVICES 2005 FORD F-250 ANIMAL TRUCK #5461 (108718 
Miles) 

1FDNF20585EC20665 B. WORN OUT 

SHERIFF 
2002 FORD TAURUS SEDAN #0389 (101421 Miles) 1FAFP52U43G190406 B. WORN OUT 

SHERIFF 
2002 FORD TAURUS SEDAN #0367 (92224 Miles) 1FAFP52U22G268325 B. WORN OUT 

SHERIFF 
2008 FORD TAURUS SEDAN #1000  (103168 Miles) 1FAHP24WX8G120471 B. WORN OUT 

SHERIFF 
2009 FORD CROWN VICTORIA #2940 (98513 Miles) 2FAHP71V69X120518 

D. DAMAGED BEYOND 
REPAIR 

SHERIFF 2006 FORD CROWN VICTORIA  #2632 (87999 
Miles) 

2FAFP71W36X107528 
D. DAMAGED BEYOND 
REPAIR 

SHERIFF 
2009 FORD CROWN VICTORIA #2957 (85204 Miles) 2FAHP71V49X137576 

D. DAMAGED BEYOND 
REPAIR 

SHERIFF 
2009 FORD CROWN VICTORIA #2948 (93385 Miles)  2FAHP71V79X138169 

C. BEYOND ECONOMICAL 
REPAIR 

 

SHERIFF 
2009 FORD CROWN VICTORIA #2943 (84537 Miles) 2FAHP71V99X120515 

C. BEYOND ECONOMICAL 
REPAIR 

 
   

 
   

 
   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the refund of overpayment of documentary transfer tax totaling $15,323; and AUTHORIZE the County

Auditor-Controller to issue refunds to specified parties, as recommended by the Clerk-Recorder. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$15,323.00 reduction to the County General Fund. $14,509 is from the 2012-2013 fiscal year and $814 is from the

2013-2014 fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND: 

One overpayment was due to a miscalculation regarding the value of the property in question and the other

overpayment was due to the County Clerk-Recorder receiving duplicate payment for documentary transfer tax. The

following parties overpaid documentary transfer tax in the amounts listed below:

Placer Title Company

1333 N. California Blvd., Suite 100

Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Series #2013-0191611

$ 814

Loja Pleasant Hill, LLC.

351 California St. #900

San Francisco, CA 94104

Series #2013-0060986
$14,509

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  925-335-7917

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 86

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Joseph E. Canciamilla, Clerk-Recorder

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Refund Overpayment of Transfer Tax



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

> 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to reimburse the parties would cause them to pay more than legally required for documentary transfer tax.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. APPROVE the design and bid documents, including the plans and specifications, for the Roof Replacement at

2099 Arnold Industrial Way, Concord project.

2. DETERMINE that the project is a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Class 1a Categorical Exemption;

DIRECT the Director of Conservation and Development, or designee, to promptly file a Notice of Exemption with the

County Clerk; and DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to arrange for payment of the $25 handling fee to

the County Clerk for filing the Notice of Exemption and the $25 handling fee to the Department of Conservation and

Development for processing costs.

3. AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to solicit bids to be received on or about March 12, 2015

and issue bid addenda, as needed, for clarification of the bid documents, provided the involved changes do not

significantly increase the construction cost estimate.

4. DIRECT the Clerk of the Board to publish, at least 14 calendar days before the bid opening date, the Notice to

Contractors in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22037, inviting bids for this project.

5. DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Ramesh Kanzaria, (925)
313-2000

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: PW Accounting,   PW CPM Interim Division Manager,   PW CPM Project Manager,   PW CPM Clerical,   Auditor's Office,   County Counsel's Office,   County Administrator's

Office,   County Administrator's Office   

C. 87

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE and AUTHORIZE Advertisement of Roof Replacement at 2099 Arnold Industrial Way, Concord

(WH286B)



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

send notices by email or fax and by U.S. Mail to the construction trade journals specified in Public Contract Code

Section 22036 at least 15 calendar days before the bid opening.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for this project is provided by the General Fund.

BACKGROUND:

Plans and specifications for the project have been prepared for the Public Works Department by LCA Architects and

filed with the Clerk of the Board by the Public Works Director. The construction cost estimate is $300,000 and the

general prevailing wage rates are on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and will be the minimum rates

paid on this project.

The roof at the facility was identified in the Facilities Life-Cycle Investment Program report as being in poor

condition and in need of replacement. The roof has begun leaking in a few spots. The project scope includes the

removal and replacement of existing roofing, flashing, drains and skylights. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the project is not approved, the roof will continue to deteriorate and develop more leaks, causing damage to the

building interior, resulting in costly repairs in the future.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT revised bylaws form the Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa County, as recommended by the

Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact from this change. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa County (AC5) current has a total of eight members, one member

from each supervisorial district and three at-large members. Do to an on-going issue with AC5's ability meeting the

quorum requirements, the Commission looked for ways to improve the ability to meet regularly. Due to the recent

resignation of an At-Large member, a seat on the commission has become vacant and available for conversion. On

November 19, 2014, AC5 voted unanimously to convert this newly vacant position from At-Large to Alternate.

Under the new membership, with five district representatives and two alternates, AC5 will now how a quorum of

four instead of five. The Alternate will attend meetings and participate in all discussions, but will only be allowed to

cast a vote in the absence of another appointed member. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Dorothy Sansoe,
925-335-1009

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 88

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment to the Bylaws of the Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa County



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

AC5 will continue to have problems meeting regularly due to the lack of a quorum.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Revised Bylaws - Clean Verison 

Revised Bylaws - Marked Up Version 



BY-LAWS OF THE  

ARTS AND CULTURE COMMISSION  

OF  

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

 

 
1. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE  
 
The function of the Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa County (AC5) is to advise the Board 
of Supervisors on matters and issues relevant to Arts and Culture, to advance the arts in a way that 
promotes communication, education, appreciation and collaboration throughout Contra Costa County; 
to preserve, celebrate, and share the arts and culture of the many diverse ethnic groups who live in 
Contra Costa County; to create partnerships with business and government; to increase 
communications and understanding between all citizens through art; and to create District Alliances in 
each Supervisorial District.  Most importantly, the Commission will promote arts and culture as a vital 
element in the quality of life for all of the citizens of Contra Costa County. 
 

2. LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

 
Regularly scheduled meetings of the AC5 will be held at any location designated by a majority of the 
Commission. 
 

3. MEMBERSHIP ON THE AC5 
 
The AC5 will have eight members.  Each Supervisor will appoint one member to represent his or her 
district. Two members will serve at-large and will be appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  One 
member will be an Alternate and will sit and vote for any absent member.  
 

4.  TERM OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Staggered terms are four years in length, ending June 30.  Upon expiration of their term, 
Commissioners may continue to serve until a successor is appointed.  There are no term limits. 

 

5.  OFFICERS 
 
The officers are Chair, Vice-chair, and immediate past Chair. 

 

6. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
A three-member nominating committee, appointed by the Chair, will develop a slate of officers to be 
presented and elected by the Commission at the June meeting.  If an office becomes vacant at any 
time, a new officer is elected in the same way. The Vice-Chair assumes the role of chair for the 
remainder of the term if the chair is unable to continue. 
 

7. DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

 

 Chairperson 
 1.  The Chair calls and presides over meetings of the AC5. 
 2.  The Chair and the Executive Director, with input from the Commissioners, prepare 

the meeting agenda. 
 3.   The Chair may delegate his/her duties to the Vice-Chair. 

 Vice-Chair 
 1. The Vice-Chair assumes the duties of the Chair in his/her absence. 



  2. The Vice-Chair assumes the duties of the Chair for the remainder of the term if the 
Chair is unable to continue. 

  

8. TERMS OF OFFICE 
Each officer serves a term of one year, beginning in July and ending the following June. 
 

9. THE STANDING COMMITTEES 

 

 Communications Committee 
 The Communications Committee will develop plans to increase public visibility of both AC5 and 

the arts in Contra Costa County. Functions include public relations, marketing and media 
relations. 

 

 Public Art Committee 
 The public Art committee will oversee the Art Passages program and other public art projects 

as directed by the Commission. 

 

 Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee is comprised of the Commission Chair, Vice Chair, and immediate 
past Chair.  The committee will review and make recommendations concerning Commission 
staff, personnel matters, finance and budget, and Commission governance issues. 

 

 

10. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS 
All meetings of the AC5 and its committees shall be held in accordance with The Ralph M. Brown Act 
and The Better Government Ordinance. 

 

12.  QUORUM 
A majority of the total number of authorized seats on the AC5 or on a committee must be present to 
constitute a quorum for meetings.  If all authorized seats are not filled, this does not change the 
quorum requirement.  With eight authorized seats, a quorum for AC5 is 5 commissioners.  

 

13.   AMENDING THE BY-LAWS 
Any proposed changes to these By-laws shall be presented in writing at a regularly scheduled AC5 
meeting. The proposed changes to these By-laws will be referred to the Executive Committee for 
review and recommendation to the AC5.  The proposed changes to these By-laws shall be presented 
in writing at the next regularly scheduled meeting of AC5. The proposed changes may be adopted at 
the next regularly scheduled meeting by a two-thirds vote of the members present. 

 

 
  

 
Adopted: 5/8/96  
Amended: 8/14/96, 9/23/02, 10/09/02, 02/08/06, 10/2/07, 4/23/13, 2/3/15 



BY-LAWS OF THE  

ARTS AND CULTURE COMMISSION  

OF  

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

 

 
1. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE  
 
The function of the Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa County (AC5) is to advise the Board 
of Supervisors on matters and issues relevant to Arts and Culture, to advance the arts in a way that 
promotes communication, education, appreciation and collaboration throughout Contra Costa County; 
to preserve, celebrate, and share the arts and culture of the many diverse ethnic groups who live in 
Contra Costa County; to create partnerships with business and government; to increase 
communications and understanding between all citizens through art; and to create District Alliances in 
each Supervisorial District.  Most importantly, the Commission will promote arts and culture as a vital 
element in the quality of life for all of the citizens of Contra Costa County. 
 

2. LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

 
Regularly scheduled meetings of the AC5 will be held at any location designated by a majority of the 
Commission. 
 

3. MEMBERSHIP ON THE AC5 
 
The AC5 will have eight members.  Each Supervisor will appoint one member to represent his or her 
district. Two members will serve at-large and will be appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  One 
member will be an Alternate and will sit and vote for any absent member.  
 

4.  TERM OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Staggered terms are four years in length, ending June 30.  Upon expiration of their term, 
Commissioners may continue to serve until a successor is appointed.  There are no term limits. 

 

5.  OFFICERS 
 
The officers are Chair, Vice-chair, and immediate past Chair. 

 

6. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
A three-member nominating committee, appointed by the Chair, will develop a slate of officers to be 
presented and elected by the Commission at the June meeting.  If an office becomes vacant at any 
time, a new officer is elected in the same way. The Vice-Chair assumes the role of chair for the 
remainder of the term if the chair is unable to continue. 
 

7. DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

 

 Chairperson 
 1.  The Chair calls and presides over meetings of the AC5. 
 2.  The Chair and the Executive Director, with input from the Commissioners, prepare 

the meeting agenda. 
 3.   The Chair may delegate his/her duties to the Vice-Chair. 

 Vice-Chair 
 1. The Vice-Chair assumes the duties of the Chair in his/her absence. 



  2. The Vice-Chair assumes the duties of the Chair for the remainder of the term if the 
Chair is unable to continue. 

  

8. TERMS OF OFFICE 
Each officer serves a term of one year, beginning in July and ending the following June. 
 

9. THE STANDING COMMITTEES 

 

 Communications Committee 
 The Communications Committee will develop plans to increase public visibility of both AC5 and 

the arts in Contra Costa County. Functions include public relations, marketing and media 
relations. 

 

 Public Art Committee 
 The public Art committee will oversee the Art Passages program and other public art projects 

as directed by the Commission. 

 

 Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee is comprised of the Commission Chair, Vice Chair, and immediate 
past Chair.  The committee will review and make recommendations concerning Commission 
staff, personnel matters, finance and budget, and Commission governance issues. 

 

 

10. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS 
All meetings of the AC5 and its committees shall be held in accordance with The Ralph M. Brown Act 
and The Better Government Ordinance. 

 

12.  QUORUM 
A majority of the total number of authorized seats on the AC5 or on a committee must be present to 
constitute a quorum for meetings.  If all authorized seats are not filled, this does not change the 
quorum requirement.  With eight authorized seats, a quorum for AC5 is 5 commissioners.  

 

13.   AMENDING THE BY-LAWS 
Any proposed changes to these By-laws shall be presented in writing at a regularly scheduled AC5 
meeting. The proposed changes to these By-laws will be referred to the Executive Committee for 
review and recommendation to the AC5.  The proposed changes to these By-laws shall be presented 
in writing at the next regularly scheduled meeting of AC5. The proposed changes may be adopted at 
the next regularly scheduled meeting by a two-thirds vote of the members present. 

 

 
  

 
Adopted: 5/8/96  
Amended: 8/14/96, 9/23/02, 10/09/02, 02/08/06, 10/2/07, 4/23/13, 2/3/15 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the attached Notice of Intention to Purchase Real Property (“NOI”) in San Pablo known as Lot 1 of

Subdivision 9331 recorded October 30, 2014 in Book 521 of Maps at Page 41, Contra Costa County Clerk-Recorder's

office, for the sum of $850,000, pursuant to Government Code Section 25350. Project No.: WLP 847

SET Tuesday, March 3rd at 9:00 a.m. or thereafter, in the Board’s Chambers, County Administration Building, 651

Pine Street, Martinez, California, as the date and time for the Board to meet to consummate the purchase.

DIRECT the Real Estate Division of the Public Works Department to publish the attached NOI in the Contra Costa

Times pursuant to Government Code Section 6063.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Hospital Enterprise Fund. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Carmen Piña-Sandoval

(925) 313-2012

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

C. 89

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE Notice of Intention to Purchase Real Property from Palm Plaza Development. 



BACKGROUND:

In 2010, Contra Costa County (County) purchased a portion of property from the former City of San Pablo

Redevelopment Agency, and then built the West County Health Center (WCHC) and a parking garage. In 2011,

the City of San Pablo adopted a plan to develop the remainder of the properties. The plan divided the site into

several Lots. Lot 1 is adjacent to the WCHC and fronts San Pablo Avenue. Lot 1 is approximately 40,783 square

feet (.93-acres) in size.

Health Services Department staff has determined that Lot 1 is a suitable site for future Health Services

Department facilities.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County would not be able to move forward with the acquisition.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Notice of Intention 



 PUBLICATION REQUEST 

 
TO:  Real Estate Division 

Attn:  Real Estate Clerk 
   

 
FROM: Carmen Piña-Sandoval____   
  Name 
 

Real Estate       
  Division 
 

(925) 313-2012 
 
PROJECT NAME:  San Pablo Lot 1 Property Acquisition  
 
PROJECT NO.    WLP 847         
 
BOS MTG. DATE:  February 3, 2015     
 
REQUESTED PUBLICATION DATE(S):   February 12, 19 & 26, 2015  

 
REQUESTED PUBLISHING PAPER(S): 
 
Contra Costa Times           
 

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Board Order 
 Documents to be published 

 
Do not type below this line – Publication language on following page 

 
RP TECHNICAL ASST.           
 
BOS APPROVED ON     
 
SUBMITTED FOR PUBLICATION ON      
 
PUBLICATION CONFIRMATION SENT TO: 

 Finance   
 Requesting Division  
 Chief Clerk BOS   

 
 
 



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY  
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

255 Glacier Drive 
Martinez, CA  94553 

 
 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY 
 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County declares its intention to purchase from Palm Plaza 
Development at a price of $850,000.00, the real property site containing approximately 40,783 square 
feet of land known as Lot 1 of Subdivision 9331, San Pablo, CA, recorded October 30, 2014 in Book 521 
of Maps at Page 41, Contra Costa County Clerk-Recorder’s office.  The Board Order dated February 3, 
2015 declares that the Board will meet on March 3, 2015 at 9:00 or thereafter, in its Chambers, County 
Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez, California, to consummate the purchase. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Publication Dates: 
 
        
 
        
 
        
 
 
 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action 

taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors on the date shown. 

 

 

ATTESTED:       

David Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and County 

Administrator 

 

By       , Deputy 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the Clerk-Recorder’s certificate of signature verification results for referendum petition on Ordinance No.

2014-10, which would have adjusted the salaries of the Board of Supervisors members, as recommended by the

County Administrator. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The estimated cost associated with the 2014 salary ordinance was $235,000, $66,876 of which was pension cost. 

BACKGROUND: 

On November 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance No. 2014-10, which amended the County

Ordinance Code to adjust salary of members of the Board of Supervisors to an annual amount equivalent to seventy

percent of Superior Court judges’ salaries and provided that, prospectively, Supervisors’ salaries would be adjusted

as necessary to maintain a base salary equivalent to seventy percent of judges’ salaries. Judge’s salaries are linked to

the salary increases of State employees. The Supervisors' salaries had not been raised since 2007 and were the lowest

in the State for urban counties, and the second lowest for counties in the Bay Area. 

On January 2, 2015, a coalition of labor organizations filed a referendum petition, calling on the Supervisors to

rescind the salary increase and, effectively, suspending the ordinance that was to have taken effect on January 3,

2015. The County Registrar of Voters advised that the petition must contain 25,407 valid signatures in order to be

deemed sufficient. The petition filed on January 2 is estimated to contain approximately 39,000 signatures but the

number of valid signatures would be determined by the Elections office.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  JULIE DiMAGGIO ENEA

925.335.1077

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 90

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO INITIATIVE PETITION OF REFERENDUM OF ORDINANCE NO. 2014-10



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The County Clerk has examined the petition and verified the signatures by examining the records of registration in

this county, and has determined that the required number of qualified electors have signed the petition. The

County Clerk certifies that the attached report regarding the signatures is true and correct.

During the interval in which signatures were being verified, the Board of Supervisors, on January 20, 2015, took

action to repeal the salary ordinance (No. 2014-10) in recognition of the public expression through the petition

process and to minimize the expenditure of time and resources to verify the petition signatures or hold an election

on the matter.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Not applicable.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Clerk-Recorder Certification of Referendum to Overturn County Ordinance No. 2014-10 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RECEIVE and ACCEPT the 2014 Annual Report submitted by the Knightsen Town Advisory Council, as

recommended by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 18, 2002, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2002/377, which requires that each regular and

ongoing board, commission, or committee shall annually report to the Board of Supervisors on its activities,

accomplishments, membership attendance, required training/certification (if any), and proposed work plan or

objectives for the following year, on the second Tuesday of December.

The attached reports fulfill this requirement for the Knightsen Town Advisory Council. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Knightsen Town Advisory Council will not be in compliance with the requirement set forth in Resolution No.

2002/377. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  LEA CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 91

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014 ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE KNIGHTSEN TOWN ADVISORY COUNCIL



ATTACHMENTS

2014 Knightsen TAC Overview 

2015 Knightsen TAC

Objectives 



 

 

Knightsen TAC 
Submitted by: 

Linda Weekes, Chair 
 

Activities and Accomplishments 
The primary goal of the Knightsen TAC in 2014 was to continue to be 
the connection between the residents of Knightsen with the County. 
 
We successfully scheduled several guest speakers who brought timely 
and pertinent information to the folk of our community. Presentation 
included the following topics: 
 

July: John Wiggins, CCC Environmental Health regarding an 
update on Alternative Septic Systems 
August: Cece Sellgren, CCC Public Works regarding the 
County’s Long Term Trash Reduction Plan 

 
During 2014 the Knightsen TAC activities and efforts included: 
 

 A successful Community Clean-Up Day held on June 14, 2014. The 
Brentwood Disposal Company brought multiple dumpsters and 
the event was free of charge to Knightsen residents.   It was a 
wonderful opportunity for a community clean up and the 
Knightsen TAC members and community volunteers assisted 
residents. 

 Knightsen TAC continued to send a representative to the monthly 
Code Enforcement meetings held at the Supervisor’s office to 
discuss and set code enforcement priorities for the Knightsen 
community. 

 Continued discussion regarding the reflective address signs 
throughout the community 

 Began discussion set-up of a Neighborhood Watch Program in the 
Knightsen community 

 Continued to promote and expand the Knightsen Heart Safe 
Communities Program 

 Participated in the Second Annual Knightsen Holiday Parade 

 
 



 

 

 
Members in 2014 

 Chair Linda Weekes 
 Vice Chair Al Simas 
 Councilmember Juliana Wyman 
 Councilmember Angie Stoken (resigned in June) 
 Councilmember Greg Williams 

 

Attendance in 2014 
January- All present 
February- All present 
March- Councilmember Stoken absent 
April- All present 
May- Councilmember Williams absent 
June- Meeting Cancelled 
July-Meeting Cancelled 
August- All present 
September- All present 
October- All present 
November- No meeting – combined w/December meeting 
December- All present 
 
 
 



 

 

Knightsen TAC 
Objectives for 2015 

 
The Knightsen TAC’s priorities for 2015 will be to 
continue to be to provide the Knightsen community 
with the opportunity to communicate with the various 
County Departments.  
 
We will work to schedule pertinent and informative 
speaker presentations at the monthly meetings. 
 
We will continue to work on: 
 

1.) Reflective Address Signs 
2.) Neighborhood Watch Program 
3.) Code Enforcement Priorities 
4.) Traffic Concerns 
5.) Heart Safe Communities Program 

 
The Knightsen TAC is scheduled to meet on the 4th 
Tuesday of the month at 7:00p.m. at the Knightsen 
Garden Club. 
 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RECEIVE and ACCEPT the 2014 Annual Report submitted by the Byron Municipal Advisory Council, as

recommended by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 18, 2002, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2002/377, which requires that each regular and

ongoing board, commission, or committee shall annually report to the Board of Supervisors on its activities,

accomplishments, membership attendance, required training/certification (if any), and proposed work plan or

objectives for the following year, on the second Tuesday of December. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Byron Municipal Advisory Council will not be in compliance with the requirement set forth in Resolution No.

2002/377. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Not applicable. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  LEA CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 92

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014 ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE BYRON MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL



ATTACHMENTS

2014 Byron MAC

Overview 

2015 Byron MAC

Objective 



 

 

Byron MAC 
Submitted by: 

Linnea Juarez, Chair 
 

Activities and Accomplishments 
The primary goal of the Byron MAC in 2014 was to continue to be the 
connection between the residents of Byron with the County. 
 
During the 2014 Byron MAC meetings the following presentations were 
made to the community. 
 

 Public Works staff regarding traffic items 
 Public Works staff regarding the Camino Diablo/Byron Highway 

intersection project. 
 
During 2014 the Byron MAC activities and efforts included: 
 

 A successful Community Clean-Up Day held on July 12, 2013. The 
Brentwood Disposal company brought multiple dumpsters and 
the event was free of charge to Byron residents.   It was a 
wonderful opportunity for a community clean up and the Byron 
MAC members and community volunteers, lead by Council 
member Lopez, assisted several elderly property owners clean up 
their residences. 

 Byron MAC continued to send a representative to the monthly 
Code Enforcement meetings held at the Supervisor’s office to 
discuss and set code enforcement priorities for the Byron 
community. Significant improvement in enforcement and 
compliance was completed throughout the year.  

 The Byron MAC discussed concerns with the Public Works 
Department regarding the Camino Diablo and J-4 intersection and 
submitted comments regarding future projects in this area. 

 Continued to cleanup weeds around the Byron Community Sign 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Members in 2014 
 Chair Linnea Juarez 
 Vice Chair Steve Larsen  
 Council member Dennis Lopez 
 Council member Al Beltran (resigned in July) 
 Councilmember Father Ron Schmit 
  

Attendance in 2014 
January- Councilmember Beltran and Schmit Absent  
February- All present 
March- Chair Juarez and Councilmember Beltran Absent 
April- Meeting Cancelled 
May- Councilmembers Schmit and Beltran Absent 
June- Councilmember Beltran Absent 
July-All present (Councilmember Beltran resigned) 
August- Councilmember Schmit resigned 
September- All present 
October- All present 
November- All present 
December- No meeting – combined with November meeting 
 



 

 

Byron MAC 
Work Plan and Objectives for 2015 

 
The Byron MAC’s priorities for 2015 will continue to be 
to provide the Byron community with the opportunity 
to communicate with the various County Departments.  
 
We will work to schedule pertinent and informative 
speaker presentations at the monthly meetings. 
 
We will continue to work on: 
 

1.) Heart Safe Community Designation 
2.) Code Enforcement Priorities 
3.) Traffic/Pedestrian Concerns 
4.) Park Dedications Funds 
5.) Illegal Dumping 
6.) Promote Community Identity 
7.) Annual Clean-Up Day 

 
 

 
The Byron MAC is scheduled to meet on the 3rd 
Thursday of the month at 6:00p.m. at Excelsior Middle 
School. 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

RECEIVE and ACCEPT 2014 Annual Report submitted by the Bethel Island Municipal Advisory Council, as

recommended by Supervisor Mary Nejedly Piepho. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 18, 2002, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2002/377, which requires that each regular and

ongoing board, commission, or committee shall annually report to the Board of Supervisors on its activities,

accomplishments, membership attendance, required training/certification (if any), and proposed work plan or

objectives for the following year, on the second Tuesday of December. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Bethel Island Municipal Advisory Council will not be in compliance with the requirement set forth in Resolution

No. 2002/377. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  LEA CASTLEBERRY

(925) 252-4500

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 93

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014 ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE BETHEL ISLAND MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL



ATTACHMENTS

2014 Bethel Island MAC Overview 

2015 Bethel Island MAC

Objectives 



 

 

Bethel Island MAC 
Submitted by: 

Pam Allen, Chair 
Prepared by: 

 Field Representative Lea Castleberry 
 

Activities and Accomplishments 
 
The primary goal of the Bethel Island MAC was to continue to be the 
connection between the residents of Bethel Island with the County. 
 
We successfully scheduled several monthly guest speakers who brought 
timely and pertinent information to the folk of our community. 
Presentation included the following topics: 
 
  February: Ironhouse Sanitary District Update 

 September: Public Works Staff Update on CSA M-28 and an 
 Representative from SDC Delta Coves LLC provided an 
update on the Delta Coves project 
Communities 

  October: CCC Code Enforcement Update 
   
During 2014 the Bethel Island MAC activities and efforts included: 
 

 A successful Community Clean-Up Day held on September 27, 
2014. The Brentwood Disposal Company brought multiple 
dumpsters and the event was free of charge to Bethel Island 
residents. 

 Continued to work on installation of “Dry Hydrants”  
 Continued to meet with County Code Enforcement staff to 

establish a list of enforcement priorities for the community. 
 Contributed to the Community Park project for the installation of 

a Celebration archway 
 Worked on the renaming the middle section of Stone Road 
 Continued to promote and expand the Heart Safe Communities 

program 

 
 



 

 

Members in 2014 
 Chair Pam Allen 
 Vice Chair Jim Montgomery 
 Council member Ken Quick  
 Council member Belinda Bittner 
 Council member Bob Cameron 

 

Attendance in 2014 
 
January- Chair Allen and Councilmember Quick Absent 
February-Councilmember Quick Absent 
March- All Members Present 
April- All Members Present 
May-All Members Present 
June- All Members Present 
July-Meeting Cancelled 
August- All Members Present 
September- Vice Chair Montgomery and Councilmember Bittner Absent 
October- Chair Allen and Vice Chair Montgomery 
November- Meeting Cancelled 
December- Meeting Cancelled 
 
 
 



 

 

Bethel Island MAC 
Objectives for 2015 

 
The Bethel Island MAC priorities for 2015 will be to 
continue to be to provide the Bethel Island community 
with the opportunity to communicate with the various 
County Departments.  
 
We will work to schedule pertinent and informative 
speaker presentations at the monthly meetings. 
 
We will continue to work on items including: 
 

1.) Reflective Address Signs 
2.) Code Enforcement Priorities 
3.) Dry Hydrants 
4.) Outreach to the local mobile home parks 
5.) Heart Safe Communities Program 
6.) Renaming the Middle portion of Stone Road  

 
 
The Bethel Island MAC is scheduled to meet on the 2nd 
Tuesday of the month at 6:00p.m. at the Bethel Island 
Municipal Improvement District Office located at 3085 
Stone Road.  
 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Unpaid

Student Training Agreement #72-074 with Regents of the University of California, on behalf of University of

California San Francisco , an educational institution, to provide supervised field instruction in County’s Public

Health Division to physical therapy students,  from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide Regents of the University of California, on behalf of University of

California San Francisco, physical therapy students with the opportunity to integrate academic knowledge with

applied skills at progressively higher levels of performance and responsibility. Supervised fieldwork experience for

students is considered to be an 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Wendel Brunner, M.D.,
313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   C Rucker   

C. 94

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Unpaid Student Training Agreement #72-074 with Regents of the University of California, on behalf of University of

California San Francisco



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

integral part of both educational and professional preparation. The Health Services Department can provide the

requisite field education, while at the same time, benefitting from the students’ services to patients.

Approval of Unpaid Student Training Agreement #72-074 will allow Regents of the University of California, on

behalf of University of California San Francisco students to receive supervised fieldwork instruction experience, in

County’s Public Health Division, through December 31, 2020.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the students will not receive supervised fieldwork instruction experience in

County’s Public Health Division.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Receive the 2014 Annual Report by the Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Care Committee (EMCC). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No fiscal impact, information report only. 

BACKGROUND: 

On December 13, 2011, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2011/497, which requires that each

advisory body shall annually report to the Board of Supervisors on its activities, accomplishments, membership

attendance, required training/certification (if any), and proposed work plan or objectives for the following year, in

December.

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors established the Contra Costa County EMCC (Resolutions 68/404,

77/637, 79/640 and by Board Order on February 24, 1998) in accordance with the California Health and Safety Code

Division 2.5, Ch. 4, Article 3, to act in an advisory capacity to the Board and the County Health Services Director on

matters relating to emergency medical services in the County.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Frost, 646-4690

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: T Scott,   C Rucker,   Leticia Andreas   

C. 95

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014 Annual Report for the Emergency Medical Care Committee



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The 2014 Annual EMCC Report will not be approved.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Report 





 

 

 

 

 

 

Emergency Medical Care Committee 

2014 Annual Report 
 

 

 



Contra Costa County 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL CARE COMMITTEE 

Annual Report for 2014 
 

Advisory Body Name:  Emergency Medical Care Committee (EMCC) 
Advisory Body Meeting Time/Location:  4:00 p.m. - 5:30 p.m. on the second Wednesday of March, June, September, and 
December, unless otherwise noted. Meetings are held at the Contra Costa County Schools Insurance Group in Pleasant Hill. 
Chair:  Darrell Lee (11/2013-9/2014); John Speakman (9/2014-present) 
Staff person: Leticia Andreas (9/2013–present), Health Services, Emergency Medical Services 
Reporting Period:  January 1, 2014 – December 31, 2014 
 
I. Activities: 
The EMCC, over the four (4) regular meetings in the past year, plus two (2) special meetings, was involved in or kept its 
membership informed about the following: 

• Approval of Paramedics to use new pain medication Fentanyl as a safer and shorter acting drug. 
• Major revision on spinal immobilization to improve comfort and safety. 
• Notable modifications to protocols, training and quality reviews to improve effectiveness of cardiac arrest 

implemented countywide. 
• Annual Quality Improvement (QI) Report presented by EMS staff, outlining how the system is performing and 

evaluated. EMS is working with all its providers in two key areas: patient events and system wide data. The focus is on 
system performance and patient safety. 

• Involvement in drafting and finalizing contingency plans in case of a closure of Doctors Medical Center. Participation 
leader at Doctors Medical Center community public hearing in June. 

• Hospital Offload Times: 9 out of 10 times patients will only wait 15 minutes at Contra Costa Regional Medical Center for 
offloading; in general all hospitals are at 19 minutes or less. Over 70% of California’s population is affected by 
ambulance delays. 

• Laura’s Law Presentation by the Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) Workgroup: The purpose of Laura’s Law is a 
permanent care program for the severe mentally ill, and with it reductions to the amounts of hospitalization and EMS 
involvement. Laura’s Law passed California legislature in 2002, but also needs to be passed by each county supervisor 
in order to be funded.  

• Educational efforts are geared towards high quality Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) on an ongoing basis, focusing 
on the rate and speed of compressions. EMS staff provides education to fire and ambulance providers via a developed 
curriculum.  

• EMS provided seven (7) ambulances as mutual aid to the Napa earthquake. 
•  Approval of EMS’ hospital preparedness grant for $366,000 by the state. 
•  Submission of a grant by EMS to expand placement of AEDs in police vehicles and the community. 
• Coordination of medical health operational response to Ebola with County Public Health. 
• Presentation of EBOLA EMS System Preparedness, and informing members of CDC, State Department, and TSA 

programs and guidelines. 
 
II. Accomplishments 

• Approval of EMCC 2013 Annual Report 
• Active participation in finalization of Fitch EMS System Modernization Study 
• Active participation in EMS Ambulance Request for Proposal (RFP) 
• Cardiac Arrest Recognitions of Contra Costa Fire dispatcher and two (2) nurses from Juvenile Hall for providing CPR 

instructions and implementations resulting in saving two lives 
• Recognition of San Ramon Valley HeartSafe Community Committee for ten (10) years of service  
• Lifeline EMS Bronze Level Recognition Award presented by the American Heart and American Stroke Association to 

Contra Costa EMS 
• Active participation and involvement in drafting a contingency plan for the closure of Doctors Medical Center 
• Submittal and acceptance of the finalized EMS Modernization Study to the Board of Supervisors 
• Letter of Support from the EMCC Executive Committee to the Board of Supervisors, to endorse the work of the Assisted 

Outpatient Treatment (AOT) Workgroup to adopt Laura’s Law in Contra Costa County. 
• Successful completion of the Request for Proposal (RFP) Workshop 
• Successful statewide operational area tabletop and functional disaster exercise  

1 
 



• Successful training of all Contra Costa County EMS providers in the 9-1-1 system on high quality Cardiopulmonary 
Resuscitation (CPR) Quality Initiative. 

• Election of a new 2nd Vice Chair in December 2014. 
 
III. Attendance/Representation   
The EMCC is a multidisciplinary committee with membership consisting of representation of specific EMS stakeholder groups 
and organizations plus one consumer member and one alternate nominated by each Board of Supervisor member. There are 
40 filled member seats on the EMCC. 12 seats are unfilled. A quorum was achieved at each of the six EMCC meetings in the 
past year.  
 
IV. Training/Certification 
Each EMCC representative and alternate representative was given a copy of the Advisory Body Handbook and copies of the 
“The Brown Act and Better Government Ordinance - What you Need to Know as a Commission, Board or Committee 
Member” and “Ethics Orientation for County Officials” videotapes during their two-year term. Responsibilities of County 
Boards were discussed including the responsibility to view the videotapes and submit signed certifications. Certification forms 
have been received from 20 of 24 of the representatives and 9 of the 16 alternates. The one (1) certificate received in 2014 is 
attached. 
 
V. Proposed Work Plan/Objectives for Next Year 
Report to the local EMS Agency and to the Board of Supervisors as appropriate its observations and recommendations 
relative to its review of:  

• Emergency Ambulance Request for Proposal EOA I, II, and V 
• Medical Health Disaster Preparedness Coalition building  
• Medical Reserve Corp capability  
• Application of technology and opportunities for Health Information Exchange between EMS providers and EMS  

System stakeholders  
• Update of the county ambulance ordinance  
• The 2014 EMS System Plan, Trauma, Stroke, STEMI and EMS for Children Programs  
• EMS System impacts due to changing economics and health care reform  
• EMS System impacts of potential closure of Doctors Medical Center 
• EMS System performance  
• Innovative models of EMS service delivery  
• Non-emergency ambulance disaster response  
• EMS System patient safety and quality initiatives  
• Improvement in transparency of EMS System productivity and performance  
• Partnerships with cities, law enforcement and citizens supporting capabilities in disasters  
• Contra Costa’s high performance STEMI, Trauma, Cardiac Arrest and Stroke Systems  
• EMS System Performance Report  
• Community education and outreach, e.g., HeartSafe, Child Injury Prevention 
• Appropriate use of 9-1-1, CPR Anytime, and Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) programs through  

partnerships with Law Enforcement, CERT, Fire First Responders and Community Coalitions.  
• Review and update of EMCC Bylaws - last reviewed in 11/15/2006 

2 
 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. APPROVE the design and bid documents, including the plans and specifications, for the North Richmond Pump

Station Diversion Project.

2. On September 9, 2014, the Board of Supervisors determined that the project is a California Environmental Quality

Act (CEQA) Class 15301(b) Categorical Exemption and a Notice of Exemption has been filed. 

3. AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to solicit bids to be received on or about March 10, 2015

and issue bid addenda, as needed, for clarification of the bid documents, provided the involved changes do not

significantly increase the construction cost estimate.

4. DIRECT the Clerk of the Board to publish, at least 14 calendar days before the bid opening date, the Notice to

Contractors in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22037, inviting bids for this project.

5. DIRECT the Public Works Director, or designee, to send notices by email or fax and by U.S. Mail to the

construction trade journals specified in Public Contract Code Section 22036 at least 15 calendar days before the

bid opening.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Ramesh Kanzaria, (925)
313-2000

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: PW Accounting,   PW CPM Interim Division Manager,   PW CPM Clerical,   Auditor's Office,   County Counsel's Office,   County Administrator's Office,   County Administrator's

Office   

C. 96

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE and AUTHORIZE Advertisement of the North Richmond Pump Station Diversion Project (WJ7246)



FISCAL IMPACT:

63% Environmental Protection Agency grant funds and 37% Stormwater Utility Area 17 Assessments.

BACKGROUND:

The purpose of the project is to participate in a pilot project to divert storm water to a sanitary district treatment plant

to determine the feasibility of treating storm water at a wastewater treatment plant before it is discharged into a

receiving water body. The project will divert storm water from the existing North Richmond Pump Station to a West

County Wastewater District sewer main on Gertrude Avenue. The diversion will be conducted on a temporary basis.

Inside the existing pump station, two new pumps will be installed (currently estimated at 250 gallons/minute

capacity) into the wet well of the existing pump station, automated level sensors will be installed to operate the new

pumps, and a new circuit breaker and control panel will be installed. Installation of the new pumps will also help

rehabilitate the pump station which is in need of repair. 

Plans and specifications for the project have been prepared for the Public Works Department by LCA Architects and

filed with the Clerk of the Board by the Public Works Director. The construction cost estimate is $345,000 and the

general prevailing wage rates are on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and will be the minimum rates

paid on this project.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the project is not approved, the County and Cities in the County will not meet the requirements of their stormwater

permit issued by the Regional Water Quality Control Board. In addition, the existing pump station will continue to

deteriorate and will ultimately be unable to protect the community from flooding.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Accept the 2014 Annual Report from the Contra Costa Commission for Women. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 18, 2002, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2002/377, which requires that each regular and

ongoing board, commission, or committee shall annually report to the Board of Supervisors on its activities,

accomplishments, membership attendance, required training/certification (if any), and proposed work plan or

objectives for the following year, on the second Tuesday in December.

The annual report for the Contra Costa County Commission for Women covering the period of January 2013 through

December 2014, is attached, outlining accomplishments achieved and proposed actions and goals for 2014/15. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Board and the public will not have this information,. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Dorothy Sansoe,
925-335-1009

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 97

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Annual Report from the Contra Costa Commission on Women



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

2014 Annual Report 



 

 
P.O. Box 6695  Concord, CA 94520 

                  
 
 

 
 

The Contra Costa  
Commission for Women’s 
mission is to improve the 

economic status, social  
welfare and overall quality  

of life of women in 
 Contra Costa County. 

 

 

The activities for the Commission over the past year include: 

 

1. NACW – National Association of Commissions for Women 

The CCCW, as a member, co-sponsored a national conference. One 

Commissioner serves on the board of directors. The NACW is the only voice of 

advocacy on a national level for women’s commissions.  

 

2. ACCW – Association of California Commissions for Women 
The CCCW is a member of the ACCW and have attended the quarterly meetings 

at Mt. St. Mary’s in LA and in San Jose, CA (the two other meetings were by 

phone). The ACCW meetings are where California Women’s Commissions share 

their projects and ideas and report on the status of women across the state. The 

CCCW is also co-sponsoring the first-ever ACCW state conference which will be 

in the Fall of 2015 in Sacramento in celebration of the 50
th

 Anniversary of the 

State Commission. One Commissioner represents the CCCW as the Northern 

California rep.  

 

3. 2014 Women’s Policy Summit 

Cosponsored the 2014 Women’s Policy Summit with the California Center for 

Research on Women and Families, held from January 17
th

-19
th

 in Sacramento. We 

will also cosponsor the 2015 Women’s Policy Summit, held on January 14
th

, in 

Sacramento.  

 

4. Social Media/Public Relations Update 

The Commission continued working on updating and improving the website, and 

up until September 2014, had a dedicated subcommittee focused on maintaining, 

expanding, and improving our social media presence through newsletters, 

Facebook, and the newspapers and local news stations.  

 

5. Why Women in Leadership? Panel Discussion 

The Commission Planned and hosted two networking and panel events at JFK 

University discussing women in the workplace. The first, hosted in May, was 

focused on non-traditional careers and included the following panel members:  

Darlene Gayler – VP, Gayler Construction 

Rae Jones – Nautical Captain 

Utuma Belfrey – Founder and CEO, Sustainable Futures 

Chuck Carpenter – Safety Officer and Compliance, Richmond Build 

Camille Finan - Carpenter & Owner of Divine Kitchens 

Donna Rayon-Terrell – Retired Firefighter/Fire Inspector/Captain, Contra Costa 

County 

 

The second panel, hosted in September, was focused on professional presence 

and included the following panel members:  

 



 

D’Ann Hayes, Marketing & Promotional Specialist and Owner, Ink It Up Designs 

Carrie LaShell, AICI FLC, Certified Image Consultant and Owner, Such Savvy 

Style 

Maureen Viano, SVP, Professional Services and Career Coach, Lee Hecht 

Harrison 

 

Both panels were well attended and we received great feedback and interest for 

future panels.  

 

6. 12
th

 Women’s Hall of Fame Awards Dinner 

This established event recognizes women who have made a difference towards 

equality, innovation, service and achievement in commerce, the environment, 

health, and community outreach throughout Contra Costa County. Over 250 

attendees honored the following eight inductees at the dinner held on March 20, 

2014 at the Crowne Plaza, in Concord, CA: 

 Women Contributing to the Arts – Honorees,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Edy Schwartz, Moraga & Lauren Jonas, Walnut Creek 

 Women Creating Community – Honorees                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Rita Xavier, San Pablo & Sister Ann Weltz, Concord 

 Women Demonstrating Leadership – Honorees                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Linda Fodrini-Johnson, Walnut Creek & Betty Geishirt Cantrell, 

Richmond 

 Women Working for Justice – Honoree, Nati Flores, Antioch 

 Women Improving Health Care – Honoree, Janet Frazier, Oakley 

 

7. Grant Funding  
The Friends of the Commission gave a $500 grant toward a scholarship for young, 

at-risk girls to attend a weekend-long leadership seminar.  

 

8. Annual Retreat 

 

The Commission met on August 9, 2014 to discuss our Long- and Short-Term 

plans for the year.  We brainstormed the following topics of what we’d like to 

accomplish over the next three years (2015-2017) 

 

 Leadership/Professional Development 

 Girls 

 Collaborations 

 Disadvantaged Women 

 Trafficking 

 Domestic Violence (physical, mental, emotional) 

 Ecology: Water 

 Health & Safety, Wellness 

 Education 

 Economic 

 

After a vote was taken, it was decided that for our short term projects, the CCCW 

would focus on: 

 



 

 Leadership/Professional Development 

 Girls 

 Economic Development 

 

I. Leadership/Professional Development 

 

 Women in Leadership Panels (2x a year)-Round Table Conference 

 Form a Council of Women(?) Leaders (Private & Public) 

 

It was also decided that the Women in Leadership series would be 

renamed and going forward, will be known as Women in the Workforce 

Panels. 

 

They will continue to be offered 2x a year-Fall (September) & Spring 

(May) 

 

 Topics for fiscal year 2014-2015: 

1. Professional Presence – Thursday, September 25, 2014 

6:30pm – 9:00 pm @ JFKU 

- Already set and being marketed 

2. Women in Power – (Julianna’s proposed date: Thursday, May 

21 – need to decide am or pm) 

- Possible Panelists include:  

- Ann Notarangelo 

- Mary Jo Rossi 

- D.D. Felton 

 

 Topics for fiscal year 2015-2016: 

1. Reentering the Workforce (September 2015) 

2. Building Your Network (May 2016) 

 

Other Potential “Women in the Workforce” Topics: 

1. Entrepreneurship 

2. Finding Mentors and/or Sponsorships 

3. Career Development 

4. Generational Differences 

5. How to Develop your career 

6. Overcoming the Over qualification argument 

7. Healthy Retirement 

 

II. Girls 
 

 Life Management Skills Workshop 

 Support bullying legislation (Bonilla/Frazier) 

 Provide resources/support to teachers re: bullying 

 Workshop: Financial literacy for young women 

 Career women, STEM, STEAM (Talk with middle school and high 

school girls) 

 Cookie project in South County 



 

 

Since the CCWC has already begun work on the Cookie Project, it was 

decided that we would continue our focus on girls through the Cookie 

Project program. 

 

 

Cookie Project Details: 

 

The Cookie Project is a high school curriculum that teaches students about 

pay inequality. We delivered a presentation to 250 female high school 

seniors through Sorropitmists’ Get Real Academy.  

 

We had two school districts, Pittsburg and Liberty, committed to teach the 

curriculum and facilitate a discussion with high school girls around pay 

equity in 2015. We also have an instructor at Hillview JH interested in the 

curriculum.  

 

III. Economic 

 

o Women’s Equity Luncheon 

o Workshop: Financial Literacy 

o Cookie Project in South County (See above) 

 

*Knowing the outside commitments all of the commissioners have, it was decided 

that our final areas of focus for 2015-2017 would be the Cookie Project and 

continuing our Women in Leadership series covering all of our categories of 

interest. 

 

 

Other Goals for 2015-2017 

 

 Survey women in the county/community needs assessment 

 Working with each Supervisor & doing a “Meet & Greet” 

 Discuss our goals for the fiscal year 

 Ask them what they would like to see done, or what they see the needs of the 

women are? 

 Farmer’s Market/Festivals 

 Booths to recruit women to the commission 

 Interns 

 Project Management: Basecamp.com 

 

 

Collaboration Opportunities 2015-2017: 

 

1. Teen Basic (2 day training) (Oakland/EBMUD) (Joey) 

2. She’s All That (San Ramon) Feb/March(?) (Deborah) 

3. Sister to Sister AAUW-OML (Moraga) (Kirsten) 

4. Get Real Academy (Concord) March (Phyllis) 

5. WISE/ALAS (Argentina) 



 

6. Girls, Inc. (Richmond) (Joey) 

    
9. Attendance/Representation 
As of December 31, 2014, the Commission has 8 out of a potential twenty-five 

member board, with 15 at-large vacancies and 2 district representative vacancies.  

There is a quorum at each meeting. The Commission expects to continue strong 

recruiting efforts next year, and to add more members to reach the maximum of 

twenty-five commission members.  

 

The Contra Costa Commission for Women is committed to working with the 

Board of Supervisors in 2015 for the betterment of women and girls in Contra 

Costa County.     

  

10. Training/Certification 
We have not received any training or certification. We have been given a DVD for 

the commissioners to view to meet the required training, and also a copy of the 

County Advisory Board Handbook.  In the past, when we had a budget from the 

County, we attended Women’s conferences sponsored by other commissions and 

the State. New Commissioners have been strongly encouraged to attend the 

trainings offered by the County.  

 

All Commissioners have completed the Brown Act Training in 2014.  

 

11. Goals 2014/2015 

 

As noted above, below are our two flagship goals for 2014/2015: 

 

Cookie Project: 

Raising awareness of the pay gap between men and women in schools and the 

community through an interactive curriculum and program, with support and 

materials from the National Association of Commissions for Women.  

 

 

Women in the Workplace 

The Contra Costa Commission for Women has been inspired by the San Francisco 

Commission and its Gender Equality Principles Initiative to host a series of panel 

discussions. The Gender Equality Principles Initiative (GEP), a partnership 

between the San Francisco Department on the Status of Women, Calvert 

Investments, and Verité; it is a groundbreaking project undertaken to help 

businesses achieve greater gender equality and build more productive workplaces 

and it provides organizations with a self-assessment tool and a comprehensive 

resource library designed to improve gender equity from the factory floor to the 

boardroom. 

 

The Commission would like to support this effort by encouraging organizations in 

our county to adopt the principles. Our mission is to raise awareness in Contra 

Costa County of the gender inequalities experienced by women socially and in the 

workplace. Our plan to host regular roundtable and panel discussions is intended 

to encourage and empower women as well as provide a call to action to 



 

organizations to close the leadership and gender pay gap. With that in mind we 

plan to discuss issues such as  

 

 Employment and compensation 

 Work-life balance and career development 

 Health, safety, and freedom from violence 

 Management and governance 

 Business, supply chain, and marketing practices 

 Civic and community engagement 

 Leadership, transparency and accountability 

 Alternative careers 

 Professional Development 

 Financial Literacy 

 

On October 24, 2013 the Contra Costa Commission for Women hosted its first 

Women in Leadership Panel Discussion: Why Women in Leadership. It was a 

great success! Our panel of leaders from top employers in Contra Costa County 

discussed the importance of having women in leadership roles and what women 

and employers can do to help emerging leaders to get there.  

 

Continuing to monitor and support legislation that will improve the socio and 

economic status of women.   

 

Partnerships/Collaborations 

 

12. Challenges 2014 

 

No County support person - The Commission’s assigned support person, has 

provided the Commission with no support at all, including forcing us to find our 

own storage space for our awards, banners, etc. that belong to the Commission. In 

addition, we are still having issues with meeting locations.  

 

Communication from the BOS to the Commission - The Commission desires to 

have open dialogue through our district representatives to each member of the 

BOS to know when there are questions or issues.  Furthermore, when a member of 

the BOS makes an appointment or a change to the Commission, we would like to 

be notified prior to it being implemented. 

 

Note: Despite these challenges, the Women’s Commission continues to be a 

functioning and productive body. 
 

 

 

Sponsored by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors               
www.womenscommission.com 

 

http://www.womenscommission.com/


RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the allocation of $213,286 from the Crockett Co-Generation Property Tax Allocation

for four projects as recommended by the Crockett Community Foundation and Supervisor Glover.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% General Fund.

BACKGROUND: 

In September 1995, the Board of Supervisors appointed the Crockett Community Foundation as the advisory council

to the Board regarding expenditures from the Community Benefits Program funded from property tax assessments on

the Crockett Co-Generation Plant.

On December 4, 2014, by the attached Resolution 2014-2, the Crockett Community Foundation recommended that

$213,286 in property taxes obtained from the Crockett Co-Generation Plant be allocated to the Crockett Community

Foundation as follows:

$21,500 for the benefit of the Crockett Library to continue to provide six additional hours of operation and

special library programs;

1.

2.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Laura Strobel (925)
335-1091

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 98

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Transfer of Crockett Co-Generation Plant Property Taxes to Various Crockett Community Projects



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

$51,403 for the benefit of the Crockett Recreation Department for capital improvements and maintenance at the

Crockett Community Center, swimming pool, park facility, and utilities and landscaping at the Veteran's Hall; 

$65,240 for the benefit of the Crockett Carquinez Fire Department for capital equipment and facility projects;

$75,143 for the benefit of the Crockett Sanitary Department for capital improvements in wastewater collection

and treatment.

This request for the release of funds was forwarded to the County Administrator's Office for approval and

processing.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the action is not approved, the community benefit plan developed by the Crockett Community Foundation for

the allocation of return-to-source funds would be disrupted, resulting in a decreased amount of public services in

Crockett.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2014-2 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

CONTINUE the emergency action originally taken by the Board of Supervisors on November 16, 1999 regarding the

issue of homelessness in Contra Costa County. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

BACKGROUND: 

Government Code Section 8630 required that, for a body that meets weekly, the need to continue the emergency

declaration be reviewed at least every 14 days until the local emergency is terminated. In no event is the review to

take place more than 21 days after the previous review.

On November 16, 1999, the Board of Supervisors declared a local emergency, pursuant to the provisions of

Government Code Section 8630 on homelessness in Contra Costa County.

With the continuing high number of homeless individuals and insufficient funding available to assist in sheltering all

homeless individuals and families, it is appropriate for the Board to continue the declaration of a local emergency

regarding homelessness. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Lavonna Martin,
925-313-6736

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 99

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: CONTINUE Extension of Emergency Declaration Regarding Homelessness



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Board of Supervisors would not be in compliance with Government Code Section 8630.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/50 as approved by the Retirement Board, which establishes retirement plan

contribution rates for the period January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection

District and employer contribution rates to be effective for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for the

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

See 'Background' below. 

BACKGROUND: 

The employer contribution rates for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District for the current and next fiscal

year are based on December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 Actuarial Valuation reports. Those reports only

included employer contribution rates for the District for members in PEPRA Tiers limited to a 3% annual

post-retirement cost-of-living adjustment (COLA). Since those reports were published, a new MOU was approved by

the Board of Supervisors with a 2% COLA provision for those who become members on or after January 1, 2015.

Additionally, on December 30, 2014, the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District made a $5 million prepayment

towards their December 31, 2013 Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). The prepayment will be amortized

over 18 years as a level percent of pay and will be used to reduce Central Contra Costa Sanitary District's UAAL

contribution rate. The rate reduction for the District will be effective on July 1, 2015, which is the date that the

contribution rates from the December 31, 2013 valuation become effective. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   02/03/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director 335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes
of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, Auditor-Controller,   Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant Auditor-Controller,   Jeff Carmen, Fire Chief,   Kurt Schneider, Deputy Chief Executive

Officer   

C.100

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: February  3, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR 1/1/2015 THROUGH 6/30/2015 AND FY

2015/2016 FOR CCC FIRE PROTECTION & CENTRAL CC SANITARY DISTRICTS



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

> 

At its January 28, 2015 meeting the Retirement Board reviewed and accepted the actuary’s calculations of the

employer contribution requirements for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District and Central Contra

Costa Sanitary District. Copies of the Board memorandum is available from CCCERA upon request. Attached are

the contribution rates effective January 1, 2015 for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District and July 1,

2015 for the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District submitted for adoption by the County Board of Supervisors by

the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association. 

Please note the following: 

The rates are the employer required rates without taking into consideration any employer subvention of

employee contributions.

The rates are before any increase in employee rate to pay a portion of the employer contribution. If an

employee’s rate needs to be increased to pay a portion of the employer contribution, both employee and

employer rates would need to be adjusted accordingly.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Rates will not reflect those adopted by the Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Board.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/50 

Exhibit A and B 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 02/03/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

John Gioia

Candace Andersen

Mary N. Piepho

Karen Mitchoff

Federal D. Glover

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/50

Subject: Approving Contribution Rates to be charged for members by the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement

Association

Pursuant to Government Code Section 31454 and on recommendation of the Board of the Costa Costa County Employees'

Retirement Association, BE IT RESOLVED that the following employee and employer contribution requirements (Exhibits A

and B) are approved to be effective for the period January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015 for the Contra Costa County Fire

Protection District and employer contribution requirements to be effective for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 for

the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District.

I. Employer Contribution Rates for Basic and Cost-of-Living Components and Non-refundability Discount Factors

A. For Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (31676.16 and Sec. 7522.20(a)) - See attached Exhibit A

B. For Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (Sec. 7522.25(d)) - See attached Exhibit B

II. Employee Contribution Rates for Basic and Cost of Living Components

A. For Safety Members Employed by Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (Sec. 7522.25(d)) - See attached Exhibit B

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director

335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the

date shown. 

ATTESTED:    February  3, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, Auditor-Controller,   Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant Auditor-Controller,   Jeff Carmen, Fire Chief,   Kurt Schneider, Deputy Chief Executive

Officer   

5



Exhibit A

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
GENERAL TIER 1 and GENERAL PEPRA TIER 4

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION RATES
EFFECTIVE FOR JULY 1, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016

Cost Group #3
Central Contra Costa

Sanitary District

BASIC Contribution Rates

Legacy Members* 41.11%

(Tier 1)

PEPRA Members with 3% Maximum COLA** 37.05%

(Tier 4)

COLA Contribution Rates

Legacy Members* 18.20%

(Tier 1)

PEPRA Members with 3% Maximum COLA** 17.42%

(Tier 4)

Refundability Factors

Legacy Members 0.9581

(Tier 1)

PEPRA Members with 3% Maximum COLA 0.9650

(Tier 4)

* For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.
* The rate should only be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.
** The rate should be applied to all compensation (whether or not in Social Security) up to the applicable
    annual GC 7522.10(d) compensation limit.

Page 1 1/28/2015



Exhibit B
Cost Group #8 - PEPRA Tier E

Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

Employer Contribution Rates
Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Effective 1/1/15 - 6/30/15

Basic COLA Total

Normal Cost 11.54% 3.05% 14.59%

UAAL 26.63% 29.09% 55.72%

Total Contributions 38.17% 32.14% 70.31%

Effective 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

Basic COLA Total

Normal Cost 12.45% 3.28% 15.73%

UAAL 21.90% 27.67% 49.57%

Total Contributions 34.35% 30.95% 65.30%

Member Contribution Rates
Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Effective 1/1/15 - 6/30/15
Basic COLA Total

11.66% 3.09% 14.75%

Effective 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

12.45% 3.28% 15.73%

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation (whether or not in Social Security) up to the
             applicable annual Gov. Code 7522.10(d) compensation limit.

  Page 1


	Agenda
	D.3_Appeal of the County Planning Commissions Approval of LP12-2073 (Phillips 66 Rodeo Refinery)
	D.3_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_37
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _1_ CPC Resolution No. 19-2013
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _2 Conditions Approved by CPC
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _3a_ Appeal Letter 11_22_13 Shute Mihaly and Weinberger, LLP (SMW)
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _3b_ SMW 11_18_13 Letter and Related Fox Report
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _4a_ Appeal Letter 12_02_13 Communities For A Better Environment (CBE)
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _4b_ CBE 1_19_13 Letter by Roger Lin
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _4c_ CBE 11_19_13 Letter and Related Report by Greg Karras
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _4d_ CBE 12_12_13 Letter Regarding WesPac Project
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _4e_ CBE 01_07_14
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _5_ Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _6 County Responses to Project Appeals
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _7_ Phillips 66 Response to Appeals
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _8_ CPC 11_19_13 Staff Report
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _9_ Notification List
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _10_ Maps
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _11_ CBE 01_14_14 Letter
	D.3_ATT_Exhibit _14_ Comments Received During Continued BOS Hearings
	D.4_Implementation of Laura's Law in Contra Costa County
	D.4_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_9
	D.5_Pacific Gas and Electric (PGandE) Pipeline Pathways Project Framework Agreement
	D.5_ATT_PGandE Agent Agreement
	D.5_ATT_PPP Framework Agreement
	D.6_Resolution No. 2015_38 Extending the Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU United Healthcare Workers West (UHW)
	D.6_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_38
	D.7_APPOINTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
	C.  1_Partially close a portion of Parker Avenue on March 14, 2015 for the Annual Little League Opening Day Parade, Rodeo area. (District V)
	C.  1_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_32
	C.  2_Contract Amendment with Mark Thomas and Company, Inc., Clayton area.
	C.  3_Accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09303, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)
	C.  3_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_39
	C.  3_ATT_Bond Rider
	C.  4_Accepting completion of improvements for subdivision SD13-09325, San Ramon (Dougherty Valley) area. (District II)
	C.  4_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_40
	C.  4_ATT_Bond Rider
	C.  5_Final Settlement of Claim, Kathryn Alexander v. County of Contra Costa
	C.  6_claims
	C.  7_Resolution recognizing  Dianne Wilson as the 2015 Moraga Business Person of the Year   __________                      
	C.  7_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_30
	C.  8_Recognizing February as American Heart Month
	C.  8_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_42
	C.  9_Resolution recognizing  Dick Burkhalter as the 2014  Orinda Volunteer of the year
	C.  9_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_43
	C. 10_APPOINTMENT TO THE DIABLO MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
	C. 11_Accept Resignation from Advisory Council on Aging
	C. 12_APPOINTMENT TO THE COUNTY SERVICE AREA P-2A CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	C. 13_REAPPOINTMENT TO THE BYRON-BRENTWOOD-KNIGHTSEN UNION CEMETERY DISTRICT
	C. 14_REAPPOINTMENT TO DISCOVERY BAY P-6 CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	C. 15_Appointments to the Managed Care Commission
	C. 16_Appropriation Transfer for Approved FY 14-15 Venture Capital Projects
	C. 16_ATT_AP_ 5031
	C. 17_EHSD, Workforce Services Bureau, CalWORKs Subsidized Expanded Employment Program
	C. 17_ATT_Appropriation Adjustment _5034
	C. 18_Appropriation Adjustment - Housing Support Program (HSP) - EHSD, Workforce Services Bureau
	C. 18_ATT_Allocation Letter
	C. 18_ATT_Appropriation Adjustment _5035
	C. 19_Appropriation Adjustment, CalWORKs MH and SA Program
	C. 19_ATT_Appropriation Adjustment _5038
	C. 20_Add Positions_ Three (3) Social Service Program Assistant positions in Employment and Human Services Department
	C. 20_ATT_P-300 _21555
	C. 21_Reclassify One Information System Administrator III to Information System Program Analyst III 
	C. 21_ATT_P300 21576_Reclass ISA III to ISPA III in DCD
	C. 22_Add one Pharmacist I position in the Health Services Department
	C. 22_ATT_P-300 _21605
	C. 23_Add and cancel positions in the Health Services Department
	C. 23_ATT_P-300 _21603
	C. 24_2600 Stanwell Drive, Concord _ Lease for Employment and Human Services.
	C. 24_ATT_Lease
	C. 24_ATT_Work Letter
	C. 25_2015_2016 Proud Parenting Program Grant
	C. 26_FY 2015_2016 Evidence-Based Practices Training Project
	C. 27_Grant Agreement _28-360 with State of California, Emergency Medical Services Authority 
	C. 28_2015 - 2017 Low Income Weatherization Program services funding  
	C. 29_Healthy and Active Before 5 Collaborative Grant
	C. 29_ATT_HAB45 grant application
	C. 30_2015 Food Services Agreement with the Catholic Council for the Spanish Speaking of the Diocese of Stockton
	C. 30_ATT_Food Service Agreement
	C. 31_Department of Water Resources Flood Emergency Response Project Grant, West and Central County areas (100% State) 
	C. 32_Amend Contract with Child Abuse Prevention Council
	C. 33_APPROVE a purchase order amendment with Walnut Creek Ford
	C. 34_APPROVE a purchase order amendment with Future Ford
	C. 35_APPROVE a contract with Prime Mechanical Service, Inc.
	C. 36_Contract _26-323-24 with Careerstaff Unlimited, Inc. (dba Therapists Unlimited)
	C. 37_Amend Contract with Aspiranet
	C. 38_Contract with STAND! For Families Free of Violence 
	C. 39_Contract with STAND! For Families Free of Violence
	C. 40_Amendment _26-744-1 with the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of its University of California, San Francisco School of Medicine
	C. 41_Contract with Contra Costa County Schools Insurance Group (CCCSIG) 
	C. 42_Flood Safety Services
	C. 43_Amend Contract with Northwoods Consulting Partners
	C. 44_Animal Services Rolling Cat Cages
	C. 45_Mobile Adoption Vehicle Resolution
	C. 46_Contract _26-788 with Peyman Keyashian, M.D.
	C. 47_Contract _26-756-1 with Cypress Meadows Antioch, LLC
	C. 48_Clerk-Recorder Imaging and Information Systems
	C. 49_Novation Contract _74_190_15 with Mental Health Management I, Inc. (dba Canyon Manor)
	C. 50_Purchase Order with Bay Cities Produce Co. Inc.
	C. 51_Thermo Fisher Scientific, Inc. Purchase Order Amendment 
	C. 52_Abbott Laboratories, Inc. Purchase Order Amendment 
	C. 53_ZEBRA TECHNOLOGIES PURCHASE ORDER AMENDMENT 
	C. 54_BIOMERIEUX INC. BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER 
	C. 55_BECKMAN COULTER, INC BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER  
	C. 56_American Medical Systems, Inc. Purchase Order 
	C. 57_Renewal of Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. Blanket Purchase Order
	C. 58_Correct the January 6, 2015 Board Order Item C. 42, with Election Systems and Software LLC
	C. 59_Amendment _22-852-14 with Greater Richmond Inter-Faith Program
	C. 60_Contract _26-938-22 with David H.C. Raphael, M.D.
	C. 61_Novation Contract _74-468-1 with Rainbow Community Center of Contra Costa County
	C. 62_Novation Contract _74-058-20 with Seneca Family of Agencies
	C. 63_Novation Contract _24_429_57 with Ujima Family Recovery Services
	C. 64_Novation Contract _74_106_17 with Adolescent Treatment Centers, Inc.
	C. 65_3M Gogent, Inc., Modbile Indentification Software Contract
	C. 66_Contract _26-789 with Hugo E. Altamirano, Inc.
	C. 67_Contract _26-971-21 with Ramon Berguer, M.D.
	C. 68_Novation Contract _24-213-51 with Desarollo Familiar, Inc. 
	C. 69_Contract _26-904-28 with Stephen D. Weiss, M.D.
	C. 70_Novation Contract _74-463-2 with Bi-Bett Corporation 
	C. 71_Contract _26-715-3 with Walnut Creek Surgical Associates, Inc.
	C. 72_Contract _26-847-21 with Michael S. Baker, M.D.
	C. 73_Amendment Agreement _23-299-12 with the City of El Cerrito for its Fire Department
	C. 74_Amendment Agreement _23-367-10 with Contra Costa County Fire Protection District
	C. 75_Amendment Agreement _23-389-9 with the City of Pinole for its Fire Department
	C. 76_Amendment Agreement _23-392-7 with the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District
	C. 77_Purchase Order - Producers Dairy Products, Inc.
	C. 78_Purchase Order - Producers Dairy Products, Inc.
	C. 79_APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	C. 80_Contract with CSI Telecommunications, Inc., for Telecommunications Engineering Services
	C. 81_2014-15 Fairgrounds Center Childcare Services Operation, Amendment _2
	C. 82_2014-15 Antioch Kids' Clubs Inc. childcare services contract amendment _1
	C. 83_Purchase Order - Waxie Sanitary Supply
	C. 84_2014-15 Richmond Elementary School, Inc. childcare services contract amendment
	C. 85_Disposal of Surplus Property
	C. 85_ATT_Surplus Vehicles and Equip
	C. 86_Refund Overpayment of Transfer Tax
	C. 87_APPROVE and AUTHORIZE Advertisement of Roof Replacement at 2099 Arnold Industrial Way, Concord (WH286B)
	C. 88_Amendment to the Bylaws of the Arts and Culture Commission of Contra Costa County
	C. 88_ATT_Revised Bylaws - Clean Verison
	C. 88_ATT_Revised Bylaws - Marked Up Version
	C. 89_APPROVE Notice of Intention to Purchase Real Property from Palm Plaza Development. 
	C. 89_ATT_Notice of Intention
	C. 90_CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO INITIATIVE PETITION OF REFERENDUM OF ORDINANCE NO. 2014-10
	C. 91_2014 ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE KNIGHTSEN TOWN ADVISORY COUNCIL
	C. 91_ATT_2014 Knightsen TAC Overview
	C. 91_ATT_2015 Knightsen TAC Objectives
	C. 92_2014 ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE BYRON MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
	C. 92_ATT_2014 Byron MAC Overview
	C. 92_ATT_2015 Byron MAC Objective
	C. 93_2014 ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE BETHEL ISLAND MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
	C. 93_ATT_2014 Bethel Island MAC Overview
	C. 93_ATT_2015 Bethel Island MAC Objectives
	C. 94_Unpaid Student Training Agreement _72-074 with Regents of the University of California, on behalf of University of California San Francisco
	C. 95_2014 Annual Report for the Emergency Medical Care Committee
	C. 95_ATT_Report
	Annual Report for 2014
	II. Accomplishments
	III. Attendance/Representation
	IV. Training/Certification



	C. 96_APPROVE and AUTHORIZE Advertisement of the North Richmond Pump Station Diversion Project (WJ7246)
	C. 97_Annual Report from the Contra Costa Commission on Women
	C. 97_ATT_2014 Annual Report
	C. 98_Transfer of Crockett Co-Generation Plant Property Taxes to Various Crockett Community Projects
	C. 98_ATT_Resolution No. 2014-2
	C. 99_CONTINUE Extension of Emergency Declaration Regarding Homelessness
	C.100_EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR 1_1_2015 THROUGH 6_30_2015 AND FY 2015_2016 FOR CCC FIRE PROTECTION and CENTRAL CC SANITARY DISTRICTS
	C.100_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_50
	C.100_ATT_Exhibit A and B

